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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EE®mE

Dear valued shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
“Directors”) of Kin Yat Holdings Limited (the “Company” or
“Kin Yat”, and, together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”),
| am pleased to present the results for the year ended 31
March 2020 (the “Year”) to our shareholders.

MARKET OVERVIEW

2019/20 was in fact a year filled with unpredictability, as
a result of the prolonged vyet fluctuating trade negotiations
between the People's Republic of China (“China”) or the
“PRC”) and the United States of America (“U.S.”). On the
one hand, in August 2019, the U.S. has delayed more
than half of the 10% tariffs on the U.S. dollars $300 billion
goods list until December 2019, sparing cell phones,
laptop computers, toys and other major consumer
categories from immediate tariffs; on the other hand, a
10% tariffs on about U.S. dollars $125 billion worth of
other Chinese goods, including smart speakers, bluetooth
headphones and many types of footwear, was taken effect
in September 2019. Such policy landscape, and hence
sentiment, has created extra difficulty to manufacturers
similar to Kin Yat, as the impact on customer’s order
could be significant, particularly in an industry where scale
and efficiency are the keys for businesses to be profitable.

To add to the problem, soon after rounds of optimistic
discussion between the two countries, there came the
COVID-19 which has become a global pandemic by
March 2020 which made the current instability was
likely to be exacerbated. World economies literally
went into a shutdown mode, with disrupted supply
chain, rising unemployment rate, reducing purchasing
power all creating an even more unfavourable operating
environment for manufacturers. We have seen an
increasing number of customers are requesting for
diversification of production locations in different
countries. It is against this background that manufacturers
like us will need agile manufacturing solutions, lean cost
structure, strong technical know-how and comprehensive
product range in order to better fit the demand from
downstream customers.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

RESULTS OVERVIEW

Affected by the volatile macro environment caused by
the Sino-US trade dispute and the COVID-19 pandemic,
the majority of downstream brand owners became
increasingly conservative and have subsequently delayed
their orders. This, together with the planned reduction in
the production of the products for our major customer
in the electrical and electronic products segment during
the Year for a better balance of production schedule
and product portfolio, had led to a decrease in the
Group’s consolidated turnover for the Year by 24.8%
year-over year (“yoy”) to HK$3,114,221,000 (2018/2019:
HK$4,139,886,000 (restated)), with gross profit rose to
HK$333,341,000 (2018/2019: HK$289,876,000). Yet,
benefited from our stringent cost control in material,
gross profit margin maintained at 10.7% (2018/2019:
7.0% (restated)). Profit attributable to equity holders
of the Company was HK$170,049,000 (2018/2019:
HK$112,384,000).

Key Achievements in 2019/2020

We have been facing multiple ups and downs in the
past 35 years, while the Year is the toughest moment
as we see it. We are fully aware of the magnitude of the
upcoming uncertainties that might impact our Group,
and a strong cash position should prepare us well for
the upcoming challenges. Hence, the Group has taken
active measures in the Year to improve its cash flow and
cash position. To this end, the Group has disposed two
properties in Hong Kong for an aggregate consideration
of HK$59,250,000 during the Year and entered into
contracts for the disposal of all major operating companies
with respect to its glass business due to its less-
than-expected profit contribution at a consideration
of approximately HK$38,390,000. Together, the asset
optimisation strategy is expected to generate a total of
HK$97,640,000 cash inflow, setting us well for future
business opportunities.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
ETRE®ME

RESULTS OVERVIEW (continued)

Key Achievements in 2019/2020 (continued)

Apart from the corporate actions above, the Group
always aims at maintaining a stringent cost control in
order to reduce operational gearing, wastage and to
raise business profitability. During the Year, the Group
implemented a tighter procurement procedure which
reduces the potential cost aroused from order taken and
raw materials purchase, leading to general maintenance
in gross profit margin. Meanwhile, selling and distribution
has also recorded a decrease of 29.8%. We have also
increased our automation level to improve efficiency and
reduce cost. In the long run, we target to maintain a lean
cost structure through a combination of automation and
efficient management.

In response to the COVID-19 outbreak in the PRC, we
saw an opportunity to manufacture house brand medical
protective facemasks by leveraging on our current
production facilities including clean room facilities,
manufacturing knowhow and experiences. In a few
months’ time, we have successfully managed to build
up the business line with a maximum daily production
capacity of approximately 500,000 pieces of masks and
establish a sizeable network of distribution channels in
Hong Kong. The move does not only represents a way to
fulfill our social responsibility, while showcasing our agile
manufacturing solutions.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

RESULTS OVERVIEW (continued)

Future Development Strategies

Facing one of the toughest challenges of the past
century, the Group didn’t stand still, but plans ahead and
be agile for sustainable development in the long-term
future. Looking ahead, the Group will remain prudent in
operations but be innovative in business development.
The Group will look to further develop its OBM business
as a house brand creates strong brand recognition,
and which brings a higher market barrier with a higher
margin. Specifically, our house brand “Kin Yat Health”
facemask product was launched in April 2020 and has
received positive feedback from customers. Riding on
the opportunities from the pandemic, we will explore the
possibility to develop more healthcare products in order
to further diversify our revenue stream. In the long-term,
we will enrich our brand portfolio and penetrate into other
product streams which have synergies with our experience
and production capabilities, with an aim to extend the
Group’s revenue streams and enhance profitability, while
maintaining the Group’s competence in the market.

On the defensive side, we will continue to adopt a
stringent internal cost control policy to enhance the profit
margin. As the economic impact caused by the pandemic
may take a long time for it to be fully relieved, we will also
constantly review and optimise the Group’s asset mix,
as we are open to the disposal of assets which are not
critical to the operations of the Group in order to generate
extra funds for core business development.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EE®mE

RESULTS OVERVIEW (continued)

Impact of the COVID-19

For the first three quarters of the Year, the Group was
performing quite creditably in the context of what were
gradually facing a difficult period of operations in our E&E
and Motor Segments. In contrast, the overall performance
of the Group was indeed gratifying. The total revenue
and gross profit margins were stable, cash flows were
improving, and we continued to make solid progress in
implementing our key strategic initiatives.

The COVID-19 was initially found in the mainland China
in late 2019. To prevent the spread of the COVID-19,
the Group’s manufacturing facilities and operations in
mainland China were temporarily ceased production
since January 2020. In March 2020, the epidemic has
erupted globally, a number of countries implemented
unprecedented social and economic lockdown that has
yet to be fully lifted.

Although the COVID-19 brought us many difficulties and
took us into unchartered territory creating unprecedented
pressure on our people, our family, our local communities
and our Group. On the other hand, it also opened up a
new opportunity for the Group. With our solid industrial
foundation, after the reporting period, “Kin Yat Health”,
which meets the standards for particulate filtration
efficiency (“PFE”) and bacterial filtration efficiency (“BFE”),
had been launched on the market and available online.
Furthermore, we are working hard to develop products
such as children’s facemasks, protective clothing and
equipment that can be used by medical personnel. The
above products have caught the attention of oversea
customers, and preliminary negotiations are underway.

We are confident that the demand of manufacturing
services will be sustainable, and that with our unremitting
efforts we could outthink and outrun competition by
upholding our core competitive advantages — that is our
good reputation, high quality products, strong R&D, agile
manufacturing capability, and cost-competitive solutions —
the Group would undergo the current challenges.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEN WK D

Kin Yat is one of the leading industrial enterprises primarily
engaged in the development of niche and technology-
driven production of quality electrical and electronic
products. With over three decades of experience in the
industry and strong research and development (“R&D”)
capability, the Group has built up a wide portfolio of
products in the areas of robotics, juvenile products, smart
products and motor drive products. The Group’s non-
manufacturing business scope includes the real estate
development segment. At the beginning of 2020, the
Group has established a health care product business
line under its house brand, “Kin Yat Health” with an aim
to diversify business portfolio with the support of existing
core advanced production equipment and technological
know-how.

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS

In the financial year ended 31 March 2020 (the “Year”),
the economies of key contributing markets of the Group,
the U.S, Europe and the PRC, were inevitably impacted
by the escalating Sino-US trade dispute and the Brexit.
The downward revision to the global economic outlook
continued to cast shadow over consumer sentiment
since 2019. Although after a year of negotiations, the
U.S. and the PRC signed the initial phase of a trade
deal as we entered into 2020, the global outbreak of
the COVID-19 epidemic had brought another major
shock to the economy that has just taken a breath. The
epidemic prevention measures such as city lockdown,
manufacturing plants suspension, flights suspension,
temporary closure of retail stores, not only was like a
punch to the PRC’s domestic manufacturing industry,
but also posed disruption to global commodity supply
chain and global consumer demand. Amidst these
circumstances, customers inclined to postpone
new projects and slow down orders. Being a part of
upstream supply chain, the Group was, hence, inevitably
influenced. This, together with the planned reduction in
the production of the products for our major customer in
the electrical and electronic products segment during the
Year for a better balance of production schedule, leads
to a decrease in the Group’s consolidated turnover for
the Year on a yoy basis by 24.8%, from approximately
HK$4,139,886,000 (restated) to approximately
HK$3,114,221,000.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS (continued)

The total turnover of the Group was accounted for by
segmental external turnover of:

° Electrical and Electronic Products Business
Segment: amounted to HK$2,202,402,000,
representing 70.7% of the Group’s consolidated
turnover for the Year (2019: HK$3,166,417,000,
76.5% (restated));

° Motors Business Segment: amounted to
HK$836,745,000, representing 26.9% of the
Group’s consolidated turnover for the Year (2019:
HK$972,817,000, 23.5% (restated));

o Real Estate Development Business Segment:
amounted to HK$75,074,000, representing 2.4%
of the Group’s consolidated turnover for the Year
(2019: Nil, 0%).

° Glass Technology and Application Segment: in April
2020, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with an independent third party, and
agreed to dispose of the entire interest in all the
PRC subsidiaries engaging in glass technology and
application business. The conditions precedent have
been fulfilled and the transactions were subsequently
completed.

According to HKFRS 5, a disposal group is classified
as held for sale when its carrying amount will be
recovered principally through a sale transaction
rather than through continuing use, and it is available
for immediate sale in its present condition subject
only to terms that are usual and customary for its
sales, and the transaction has to be highly probable.
As at the reporting date, management classified
the glass technology and application business as
discontinued operation and disposal group held for
sale. For details, please refer to the section headed
“Glass Technology and Application Segment” under
“Operation Review” on page 20 of this annual report.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEN WK D

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS (continued)

The Group’s gross profit increased to HK$333,341,000
during the Year from HK$289,876,000 (restated) in the
corresponding period last year. Gross profit margin
increased by 3.7% yoy mainly attributable to the Group’s
sincere effort in internal cost control over raw materials
and labour cost, as well as maintaining a good balance
of production schedule throughout the Year, along with
the mild depreciation in the Renminbi (“RMB”) exchange
rate against the U.S. dollars during the Year. Amidst a
difficult operating environment, the Group had managed
to increase its profit attributable to equity holders of
the Company by 51.3% yoy from HK$112,384,000 to
HK$170,049,000 for the Year. Basic earnings per share
for the Year were HK38.74 cents (2019: HK25.61 cents
(restated)), after the inclusion of the gain on disposal of the
two properties in Hong Kong as announced by the Group
in January 2020.

Regarding the Group’s financial position, amidst a
challenging trading environment, the Group had managed
to and will endeavour to continue to improve its cash
position. During the Year, the Group has successfully
achieved better inventory management and reduced
inventory by 51.5% to HK$298,580,000 (2019:
HK$615,365,000). As at 31 March 2020, the Group’s
current ratio stood at 1.22 times (2019: 0.91 times).
Such improved financial position and flexibility would be
instrumental for the Group to prevail in the volatile global
economy and pursue future opportunities.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OPERATIONAL REVIEW

Manufacturing Businesses

The Group operates three manufacturing business
streams on three major production centres in the PRC,
two of which are based in Songgang, Baoan District,
Shenzhen City (“Shenzhen”) and Shixing County,
Shaoguan City (“Shixing”), Guangdong Province. The third
production centre is located in Dushan County, Guizhou
Province (“Dushan”). The Group’s production base is
supplemented by an additional facility in Johor Babru,
Malaysia for the production of motor drives and motor
drive-related products.

During the Year, the Shenzhen centre continued to be
dedicated to high-value-added processes for robotics
and smart products manufacturing, while Shixing centre
was the major production base for motor drives and
other electrical and electronic products. The Dushan
centre housed motors production, glass technology
and application business, and robotics sub-assembly
business.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEN WK D

OPERATIONAL REVIEW (continued)

Manufacturing Businesses (continued)

Electrical and Electronic Products Business
Segment

This segment is engaged in the development, design and
manufacture of three main product categories: (i) robotics,
(i) juvenile products, and (i) smart products.

During the Year, due to a volatile external business
environment, overall sentiment for consumer products
weakened. The external turnover of this segment
decreased by 30.4% to HK$2,202,402,000 during the
Year (2019: HK$3,166,417,000). This segment remained
a major contributor, accounting for 70.7% of the overall
turnover of the Group, in the Year under review. In
spite of the less satisfactory performance, profitability
of this segment maintained in the first three quarters,
thanks to the segment’s genuine and continues efforts
in maintaining proper cost control and optimisation of
labour efficiency. The segment had proactively lowered
the production of robotic vacuum cleaners (“RVC”) for
a better balance of production schedule given that the
additional production capacity of the Group in Dushan
centre has not yet been commissioned, which helped the
segment to better utilise existing capacities and streamline
manpower usage, and thus, alleviated the pressure on
the segment profit. Segment profit increased by 74.3% to
HK$162,172,000 during the Year (2019: HK$93,035,000).

Looking ahead, the segment will remain prudent and
will adopt a more conservative approach in the short-
run in order to control its risk exposure to the external
instabilities. For the long-term development, the segment
will continue to strategically realign its product mix and
customer portfolio to enable more diversified yet selective
business activities.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OPERATIONAL REVIEW (continued)

Manufacturing Businesses (continued)

Electrical and Electronic Products Business
Segment (continued)

Robotics sector

This sector has established a long-lasting and strong
foundation in niche home-use robotics manufacturing
market successfully together with its long collaborated
renowned global customer. However, as a result of the
escalated Sino-US trade tension and associating tariffs,
sector sales inevitably affected and order placement of
RVC products became conservative.

In order to stay competitive, efforts were placed
to rebalance the production schedule and improve
production efficiency of existing production plants through
optimisation on automation and further upgrade towards
industry 4.0 during the Year so as to serve our major
customer even better. As a result, a more balanced
production planning and efficiency enhancement allowed
the sector to seek for profit margin improvement in the
longer term.

Juvenile products and smart products sectors

Juvenile products sector focuses on baby gears and
juvenile education products, particularly targeting STEAM
related electronic products and smart products sector
focuses on electronic gadget which interrelate with
computing devices like smartphone and tablet. Being an
integrated one-stop personal consumer product solutions
provider, the sectors are at an advantageous position
to ride on its OEM+ services platform, together with its
shrewd market acumen, outstanding technical know-
how, extensive manufacturing experience and long-term
partnership with the internationally renowned consumer of
electronic products brands, to gain business opportunities
with start-ups brands from more diversifying industries
and grow with these potential rising stars.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEN WK D

OPERATIONAL REVIEW (continued)

Manufacturing Businesses (continued)

Electrical and Electronic Products Business
Segment (continued)

Juvenile products and smart products sectors (continued)
Since the beginning of the COVID-19 epidemic in early
2020, some new projects in the sectors were put on hold
and demand was adversely impacted due to worsening
market sentiment. However, the sectors’ diversified
product portfolio mitigated the impact from these factors
because some product lines benefited from the stay-at-
home concept, particularly the baby gears and juvenile
STEAM education products, and hence, the sales surged.

The segment continually made some good progress and
further enriched the product and customers portfolio
in both juvenile products and smart products sectors.
During the Year, the sector has secured the business
for the manufacture of two new educational robots
and successfully became the sole supplier for the
concerned products at this initial stage for a Taiwan-
based multinational computer and phone hardware and
electronics company.

Overall, the sectors will continue to develop new products
to existing customers and explore new opportunities to
enrich the existing customer portfolio to further diversify
risks. With a strong commitment in providing differentiated
services and reinforcing its competitive advantages, the
sectors will continue to invest in its product design and
engineering capabilities R&D. The sectors believe these
products would become another rising stars and will stay
devoted to uncovering more potential ones in the future
ahead.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OPERATIONAL REVIEW (continued)

Manufacturing Businesses (continued)

Diversification of production solutions

In view of the limitation of utilisation rate at the Shenzhen
centre, the segment is driving higher operational efficiency
through geographic diversification of manufacturing
solution. However, due to a delay in the handover of the
factory premises by the Dushan County government,
the capacity expansion plan has been postponed. This
in turn opened additional opportunities of expanding
production base diversification to countries outside of the
PRC, in particular, to Southeast Asian countries to tailor
to customers’ requests and in the longer run, to enhance
the segment’s profitability. Future strategies will remain
conservative and selective with this segment for better risk
assessment. To this end, the segment has been assessing
the feasibility of establishing a presence in the Republic
of the Union of Myanmar, and the process has inevitably
been held up since early 2020 due to the COVID-19
pandemic.

Motors Business Segment

The motors segment is engaged in the development,
design, manufacture and sale of electric motor drives
and related products, ranging from direct-current (“DC”)
motors, alternating-current (*“AC”) motors to encoders and
related products. Its product offerings have continued
to evolve to capture market and technological trends,
including the continued development of larger-sized
motor drives and brushless DC motors. The segment’s
major facilities are currently located in Shixing centre and
Dushan centre, supplemented by the production facility
in Malaysia. Equipped with high-precision equipment
and advanced technologies, this robust production and
R&D platform enables the segment to roll out innovative
and reliable deliverables for customers. The segment
business has been categorised into four sectors for
separate markets for motors, namely automobiles, office
automation equipment, toys, and household appliance.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEN WK D

OPERATIONAL REVIEW (continued)

Manufacturing Businesses (continued)

Motors Business Segment (continued)

Affected by the Sino-US trade dispute and the pandemic
outbreak, some projects were being delayed with some
customers showing extra conservatism in placing orders.
Hence, besides for toys sector, revenue from other
three sectors decreased moderately, in particular, the
automobiles sector recorded a significant decline in orders
during the Year, as a result of the general economic
downturn. Benefitted from the lockdown and stay-at-
home order, there were noticeable increases in the
demand of our motor products driven from online sales
for certain items such as smart vacuum cleaner from
February 2020. The segment also managed to resume
production in a short notice after the Chinese New Year
holiday as most of the employees were local citizens in
the particular regions. The swift reaction has allowed the
segment to capture the opportunities, gaining orders from
peers through high-quality products delivered in a timely
manner.

As a result of the aforementioned impacts, overall
segment external turnover dropped by 14.0%
to HK$836,745,000 during the Year (2019:
HK$972,817,000). Gross profit margin was slightly
improved as a result of the continuous enhancement
of automation, the depreciation of RMB against the
U.S. dollars, and the achievement of the progress of
cost savings. However, primarily due to the decreased
sales volume, the increased depreciation expenses
and the decrease in government subsidies income
recognised during the Year, segment profit margin was
subsequently affected and recorded a decrease of 20.0%
to HK$45,410,000 (2019: HK$56,793,000).

Moving ahead with the uncertain macro environment and
development of the COVID-19, we observe that consumer
confidence remains weak and most industries, particularly
the automobile industry, are facing the harshest operating
environment ever. Hence, the segment will adopt a
prudent and cautious approach in implementing the
following strategies on the segment:
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OPERATIONAL REVIEW (continued)

Manufacturing Businesses (continued)
Motors Business Segment (continued)

(1)

(i)

(i)
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Cost control and automation optimisation

Due to the pandemic, the global economy is
expected to contract, and the full impact has not
yet been fully revealed. In order to stay competitive
among peers, the segment will look for efficient
cost control, instead of price increase, in order to
seek margin protection. Expecting a chained effect
from the economic downturn, the segment will also
increase its automation level in order to lower unit
cost and further enhance profitability.

Diversification of production solutions

As a measure to response to the Sino-US trade
dispute, some of the segment’s overseas customers
also demanded a more agile and diversified
production solutions. To cater for their needs, the
segment has since taken action, exemplified by the
production line relocation from the PRC to Malaysia
for a Korean customer during the Year. As there
could be an increasing demand in similar solutions,
the segment will seek for other cost-effective
production bases in Southeast Asia with a view to
reduce the adverse impact of the Sino-US trade
dispute, while further streamlining the cost structure
by localising its supply chain and hiring labour from
the domestic market. The production line relocation
plan will implement in accordance with the principle
of gradual and orderly progress, and its schedule
will be reviewed and adjusted on a regular basis, in
accordance with the changes in macroeconomy and
the internal cash flows.

Continuous R&D and customer diversification

Over the past years, the segment has been
advancing its R&D capability and developed various
types of motor products. During the Year, the
segment was able to advance the development of
large size motor and brushless motor to the final
stage, and ftrial production and sizable orders are
expected in the upcoming year. Leverage the strong
R&D capability, the segment will also continue to
diversify its customer base into different sectors,
exploring new revenue streams and minimising
the potential risk of industry downturn from any
particular industry.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEN WK D

OPERATIONAL REVIEW (continued)

Manufacturing Businesses (continued)

Glass Technology and Application Segment

This segment is primarily engaged in the sale and
downstream processing of glass including, but not limited
to, thermal insulation glass, glass window modules,
printed glass and marble glass products, as well as
the design, manufacture and installation of curtain wall
systems. The segment is largely focused on domestic
sales in the PRC with a small amount of manufactured
glass export sales. The segment operates through its sole
facilities in Dushan centre.

As disclosed by the Group in the past, the segment
continued to encounter difficulties in collecting receivables
from certain government projects in Dushan County area.
Upon the Company’s strategic review of its investment in
the segment in view of its less-than-expected contribution
to the Group’s turnover and profitability and the low
working capital turnover rate that hindered the growth
potential of the business, it is decided that the Group
should no longer invest and realise any resources possible
to be used to generate revenue and income from the
other business segments of the Group. After the Year
under review, on 20 April 2020, the Group entered into
an agreement pursuant to which the Group agreed to
dispose of all operating subsidiaries of the segment
for a consideration of RMB34,500,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$38,390,000) to Guizhou Lianwei
Investment Company Limited. Due to the gain on disposal
upon completion of this sale and purchase agreement,
the net asset value of the Group has been improved by
an amount of approximately HK$2,101,000. The proceeds
from the disposal will be used as general working capital
of the Group and for its future business development.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OPERATIONAL REVIEW (continued)

Manufacturing Businesses (continued)

Newly Established House Brand

With over 30 years of experience in the electrical and
electronics products manufacturing industry, the Company
has always sought to deliver high-quality and technology-
driven production to customers. As the market became
increasingly competitive with growing cost pressure, at the
beginning of 2020, the Company had taken revolutionary
steps to establish a health care product business line
under its house brand, “Kin Yat Health” commencing
the production and sale of adult and child disposal facial
masks. With the Group’s solid industrial foundation, the
Group has utilised with existing core advanced production
equipment, invested resources and manpower, new
testing and production machinery and equipment.

In response to the COVID-19 epidemic and in view of the
demand for the Group’s internal employee use, the Group
started to conceive a mask production plan in around
February 2020 with the benefits of utilising appropriate
existing production facilities. Up to the date of this annual
report, the Group is able to offer a maximum production
capacity of approximately 500,000 pieces of masks per
day and has been able to offer EN14683 type 2R (non-
sterile) and ASTM-F2100 Level 2 qualified (including but
not limited to both BFE and PFE > 98%) non-medical face
masks for adults and teens under the “Kin Yat Health”
brand. Our face masks are UV + Ozone disinfected and
are available for sale at various online and offline sales
points. In addition, the “CE marking” validation for our face
mask products has also been obtained.

Going forward, in an effort to diversify risk raised by
macroeconomy and geopolitical issues, the Group intends
to allocate more available resources and production
capabilities on newly established house brand - “Kin Yat
Health” - to further develop the business line by enhancing
its product portfolio to include, inter alia, various products
for sterilisation and purification as medical products other
than face masks.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEN WK D

OPERATIONAL REVIEW (continued)

Non-manufacturing Businesses

Real Estate Development Business Segment

During the Year, this segment continued its engagement in
the two residential and commercial property development
projects in Dushan Economic Development Zone, namely
The Royale Cambridge Residences and The Jardin
Montsouris.

The segment was at a loss of HK$1,574,000 during the
Year (2019: a loss of HK$402,000), as a result of the
profit recognised with respect to The Royale Cambridge
Residences project in the Year was not more than offset
by the administrative expenses in relation to The Jardin
Montsouris project which was at pre-sale stage.

(i) The Royale Cambridge Residences
Since beginning of March 2020, the relevant final
acceptance of construction was obtained and
hence the turnover in relation to the pre-sale of the
property units in the past and during the Year of
HK$75,074,000 was recognised as at 31 March
2020 (2019: Nil).

According to the statistics from Guizhou Provincial
Statistics Bureau, the total sales of residential units
in Guizhou Province was inevitably affected by the
COVID-19 adversely. Sales momentum of the project
in Dushan also slowed in general during the Year
with appropriately 40 units sold up to the date of
this annual report. Given a conservative allocation of
resources into the Group’s real estate development
business, cashflow generated from the pre-sale
of the project was partly ploughed back into the
second real estate development business of the
Group in Dushan, the Group has put on hold further
development of the phase Il of this project. Although
the segment expects there could be a boost in
the sales growth when the Guiyang-Nanning high-
speed train station near the site of the project is fully
operational years later, the segment has on the other
hand been exploring the possibility for realising the
project as a whole rather than selling the units to
individual end-users.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OPERATIONAL REVIEW (continued)

Non-manufacturing Businesses (continued)
Real Estate Development Business Segment (continued)

(i)
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The Jardin Montsouris

This resettlement project is located in a site
opposite to our The Royale Cambridge Residences
project. The project was developed with an aim of
providing housing for residents in need of shanty
town relocation owing to resettlement. However,
there has been a delay in development and sales
of the property unit mainly due to delay in the
implementation of shanty town relocation policy
during the Year.

Construction works of Phase | of this project
are ongoing, in particular, the superstructure for
No. 1 residential tower and No. 19 and No. 20
commercial blocks were fully completed, while
the superstructure for the 32 storey-high No. 2
residential tower was completed up to the 18" floor.
The No. 1 and No. 2 residential towers will be first
offered to the market with a total saleable floor area
for residential units of approximately 65,000 square
metres. With the pre-sale of The Jardin Montsouris
units started this Year, approximately 140 units were
contracted to pre-sale to qualified residents who
are affected by residential relocation or independent
property buyers for a total approximately
RMB60,000,000 up to the date of this annual
report. Prepayment amounting to approximately
RMB40,700,000 were received. The segment will
continue to construct more units to cope with the
resettlement demand in particular and plans to
commence the selling of the commercial property
units there.

The management remains cautiously confidence that
these real estate projects will make contribution to
the cash flow and revenue stream of the Group in
the long run. The Group considers the two existing
projects on hand as one-off real estate development
opportunities and does not expect in general to
tender for other property development projects in
other locations in the PRC.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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OUTLOOK

The outbreak of the COVID-19 epidemic since early 2020
has posed a tremendous challenge to the overall global
economy and the Group’s business operation, on top
of the unsettled Sino-US trade dispute and aftermath
of Brexit. In view of these circumstances, the Group
will closely monitor the situation and react proactively
to minimise the impact of the difficult times. Through
implementing the following strategies, the Group strives
to continue stabilise the traditional business segments
by leveraging on its long-standing relationship with the
international renowned brands and expertise in offering
value-added product solutions to alleviate the external
impact, while continues to maintain market competence
and business sustainability by proactively exploration of
new business opportunities and stringent cost control over
operation.

The Group will continue to leverage its growing technical
know-how and production capabilities in the pursuit of
differentiating business into the B2C market. In early 2020,
the Group has taken the first step in the establishment of
the new retail house brand “Kin Yat Health” mask series
and developed a basic network of online and offline sales
channels. Riding on this foundation, in the mid-term, we
are planning to build a new stream of healthcare products,
including but not limited to protective clothing, protective
equipment and disinfection products. In the long-term,
we will further enrich our retail brand portfolio in other
areas where synergies with our experience and production
capabilities, with an aim to extend the Group’s revenue
streams and enhance profitability, while maintain the
Group’s competence in the market.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OUTLOOK (continued)

In addition to widening income sources, the Group
is actively adhering to enhancing profitability through
continuous automation upgrade, strengthening R&D
capabilities and better internal control measures. The
Group will take this opportunity to further streamline
its business process in order to maintain the leanest
cost structure possible, in preparation for the upcoming
challenges and opportunities when the global condition
recovers. Specifically, the Group will continue focus on
stringent cost control measures over raw materials and
labour cost. Also, the Group will remain selective and
prudent on its investment and be open to opportunities
in disposing of non-profiting assets to maintain stable
cashflow when necessary.

Meanwhile, the Group is also actively seeking for
production capacity expansion to locations with
geographical proximity and better plant resources, with
preference to Southeast Asian countries in order to
reduce the potential impact of the Sino-US trade dispute
or geopolitical policy changes, while further streamlining
the cost structure by localising its supply chain and hiring
labour from the domestic market.

The Group remains cautiously optimistic about its long-
term development and prudent towards formulation and
implementation of corporate strategies to create long-
term value for stakeholders. Despite the year ahead will
be filled with challenges, the Group will continue to stand
on this principle and stay competitive in the ever-changing
business environment.

DIVIDENDS

In order for the Company to accumulate war chest to
cope with the uncertainties in the future and to conserve
cash in COVID-19 scenario, the Board has resolved not to
declare any final dividend for the Year (2019: Nil).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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FINANCIAL CONDITIONS, LIQUIDITY
AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group primarily used its internally generated cash
flows and banking facilities to finance its operations
and business development. The Group has always
been executing a prudent and conservative strategy
in its financial management. As at 31 March 2020, the
Group had time deposits of HK$14,641,000 (31 March
2019: HK$13,754,000), cash and bank balances of
HK$256,606,000 (31 March 2019: HK$227,170,000), and
net current assets of HK$283,068,000 (31 March 2019:
net current liabilities HK$192,183,000). As at 31 March
2020, shareholders’ equity was HK$1,225,920,000 (31
March 2019: HK$1,205,512,000). Total consolidated
banking facilities of the Group from all banks as at 31
March 2020 amounted to approximately HK$832,479,000
(81 March 2019: HK$917,563,000). As at 31 March 2020,
total bank borrowings amounted to HK$676,809,000 (31
March 2019: HK$810,106,000).

As at 31 March 2020, the bank borrowings of the
Group was repayable within one year amounted to
HK$413,243,000 (31 March 2019: HK$810,106,000) and
the remaining balance of HK$263,566,000 (31 March
2019: Nil) was repayable within second to fifth years.

As at 31 March 2020, the current ratio of the Group
(current assets divided by current liabilities) was
maintained at 1.22 times (31 March 2019: 0.91 times)
and the gearing ratio of the Group (total bank borrowings
divided by total equity) was 55.2% (31 March 2019:
67.0%).

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 March 2020, the total issued share capital of
the Company was HK$43,896,000 (31 March 2019:
HK$43,896,000), comprising 438,960,000 (31 March
2019: 438,960,000) ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each.
There was no change in the share capital of the Company
during the Year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

CHARGE ON THE GROUP’S ASSETS

There was no charge on the Group’s assets as at 31
March 2020 (31 March 2019: Nil).

FOREIGN CURRENCY EXPOSURE

The Group’s monetary assets, liabilities and transactions
are principally denominated in Hong Kong dollars and
RMB or U.S. dollars. The Group does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy on it. In order to manage and
minimise the foreign exchange risk, the management shall
from time to time review and monitor the foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging the significant foreign
currency exposure when appropriate and necessary.

INTEREST RATE RISK

The Group’s financial facilities are denominated in Hong
Kong dollars and RMB and interests on bank borrowings
are chargeable based on certain interest margin over the
Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate and the People’s Bank
of China lending rate which are therefore of floating rate in
nature. The Group has not entered into any interest rate
risk hedge to mitigate exposure to interest rate risk during
the Year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION
POLICIES

As at 31 March 2020, the Group employed around 8,600
full-time employees, of which less than 110 of them were
stationed in Hong Kong headquarters with the remaining
working in the PRC and Malaysia.

The Board’s remuneration committee of the Company
made recommendation to the Board on the policy and
structure of the Company for all remuneration of Directors,
reviewed and determined the remuneration package of
individual executive Director and senior management of
the Company with reference to the Board’s corporate
goals and objectives, responsibilities and employment
conditions elsewhere within the Group and in the
market. The Group remunerates its employees largely
in accordance with prevailing industry standards. In
Hong Kong, the Group’s employee benefits include staff
retirement scheme, medical scheme and performance
bonus. In the PRC and Malaysia, the Group provides its
employee’s staff welfare and allowances in accordance
with the prevailing labour laws. The Group has also put in
place a share option scheme to motivate and reward staff
with outstanding performance. At the discretion of the
Board, the Group’s employees will be granted the options,
of which the number of options granted is determined by
individual performance and level of responsibilities.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The Register of Members will be closed from Tuesday,
18 August 2020 to Friday, 21 August 2020, both days
inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will
be effected. In order to be eligible to attend and vote
at the annual general meeting of the Company to be
held on Friday, 21 August 2020, all transfers of shares,
accompanied by the relevant share certificates, must be
lodged with the Company’s share registrar in Hong Kong,
Tricor Tengis Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, for registration
not later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 17 August 2020.

Cheng Chor Kit
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 29 June 2020
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Cheng Chor Kit, aged 68, is the chairman and chief
executive officer of the Company. He is the founder of
the Group and is responsible for the Group’s overall
operation and strategic planning. He is also a member
of the Board’s remuneration committee and nomination
committee. Mr. Cheng currently is a Standing member of
the 12" Shaoguan Committee of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference (the “CPPCC”) and also
a former member of the Guangdong Provincial Committee
of the CPPCC. Mr. Cheng has over 40 years of experience
in the toy industry.

Mr. Fung Wah Cheong, Vincent, aged 64, is an executive
Director since August 2005 and is responsible for the
corporate and business management of the Group. He is
also a member of the Board’s remuneration committee
and nomination committee. Mr. Fung holds a Master of
Science Degree in engineering business management
and has over 30 years of experience in the toy industry.
Prior to joining the Group, he worked as an engineering
director in a sizeable toys manufacturing and distribution
company.

Mr. Liu Tat Luen, aged 55, is an executive Director since
December 2009. Mr. Liu holds a Bachelor Degree in
Science (Quantity Surveying) from the University of Hong
Kong and a Master Degree in Business Administration
from the Chinese University of Hong Kong. Prior to
joining the Company, Mr. Liu served as a director and
a responsible officer in a corporate finance advisory
firm (type 6 regulated activities under the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”) in Hong Kong and has over
20 years of working experience in the financial industry in
Asia as a whole.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS

EEEEFE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr. Cheng Tsz To, aged 33, is an executive Director
since June 2014. After graduating with a Master’s degree
of Engineering in Mechatronics with honors from the
University of Sheffield, the United Kingdom, Mr. Cheng
joined the Group in 2010. He is a son of Mr. Cheng Chor
Kit, the executive Director and the controlling shareholder
(as defined under the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Listing Rules”)) of the Company and is the younger
brother of Mr. Cheng Tsz Hang, the executive Director of
the Company.

Mr. Cheng Tsz Hang, aged 36, is an executive Director
since March 2016. After studied Physics and Mathematics
in the Loughborough University, the United Kingdom, Mr.
Cheng joined the Group in 2007. He is the chief executive
officer of the motor business segment of the Group since
July 2013. Mr. Cheng is a son of Mr. Cheng Chor Kit,
the executive Director and the controlling shareholder (as
defined under the Listing Rules) of the Company and is the
elder brother of Mr. Cheng Tsz To, the executive Director
of the Company.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Wong Chi Wai, aged 54, has been an independent
non-executive Director since September 2004. He is the
chairman of the Board’s nomination committee and a
member of the Board’s audit committee and remuneration
committee. He currently also serves as an independent
non-executive director for Bonjour Holdings Limited (stock
code: 0653), C&D International Investment Group Limited
(stock code: 1908) and Arts Optical International Holdings
Limited (stock code: 1120), all of which are listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”). He is currently the chairman of
the audit committee of Bonjour Holdings Limited and Arts
Optical International Holdings Limited and the chairman of
the nomination committee of C&D International Investment
Group Limited. Mr. Wong obtained a Bachelor’s Degree
in Social Science from and was awarded a post-graduate
certificate in laws by the University of Hong Kong in 1988
and 1993, respectively. He is a practising certified public
accountant in Hong Kong and an associate member of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales
(“ICAEW”). He has over 30 years of experience in the
accountancy profession. Other than his private practice in
accounting, Mr. Wong has been admitted as solicitor at
the High Court in March 2019 and currently practice as a
consultant in a law firm.

Dr. Sun Kwai Yu, Vivian, aged 58, has been an
independent non-executive Director since September
2004. She is the chairperson of the Board’s audit
committee and a member of the Board’s remuneration
committee and nomination committee. Dr. Sun is a fellow
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and of the CPA Australia.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS

ESBEREFE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr. Cheng Kwok Kin, Paul, aged 68, has been an
independent non-executive Director since June 2014. He
is the chairman of the Board’s remuneration committee
and a member of the Board’s audit committee and
nomination committee. Mr. Cheng qualified as a Chartered
Accountant in 1976 and he has been a fellow member
of the ICAEW and of the HKICPA since 1982 and 1990
respectively. Mr. Cheng was a member of the Council
of HKICPA in 2006 and 2007 and a member of the
Corporate Finance Committee of HKICPA from 2006
to 2012. Currently, he is a member of the Professional
Conduct Committee of HKICPA. Mr. Cheng is an
independent non-executive director, the audit committee
chairman, a member of the remuneration and nomination
committees of Xinyi Solar Holdings Limited (stock code:
0968). In June 2017, Mr. Cheng was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of Bank of Shanghai
(Hong Kong) Limited, a restricted licence bank in Hong
Kong.

Mr. Cheung Wang Ip, aged 59, has been an independent
non-executive Director since July 2014. He is a member of
the Board’s audit committee, remuneration committee and
nomination committee. Mr. Cheung is a Chartered General
Practice Surveyor by profession and has over 30 years of
professional work experience in the property industry and
related fields, including valuation and feasibility study. Mr.
Cheung is a corporate member of both the Royal Institute
of Chartered Surveyors and the Hong Kong Institute of
Surveyors (General Practice) as well as a member of
Associacao da Avaliacao da Propriedade de Macau.
He is a member of the China Real Estate Chamber of
Commerce Hong Kong Chapter and a member of China
Real Estate Appraiser in the PRC. In addition, Mr. Cheung
is serving as a member of the 12" Shanxi Provincial
Committee of the CPPCC. Currently, Mr. Cheung is
the Operation Head of Hong Kong and Macau and an
executive director of Vigers Appraisal and Consulting
Limited (“Vigers”), he is also an executive director of Vigers
Macao Company Limited (Vigers is an indirectly wholly-
owned subsidiary of a listed company whose shares listed
on the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited).
Prior to joining Vigers in 2006, Mr. Cheung was a senior
director of the Valuation and Consultancy Department in
Savills Hong Kong Limited, where he held the position of
the Head of Hong Kong and Macau valuation team. He
had held various positions in companies including the
Mass Transit Railway Corporation, Guangzhou Investment
Company Limited and Jones Lang Wootton.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company present their report and the
audited financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. Details of the principal activities of the Company’s
principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 14 to the financial
statements. The principal activities of the subsidiaries
consisted of the design, manufacture and sale of
electrical and electronic products, motor drives, sale and
downstream processing of glass, other manufacturing
business and real estate development. There were no
significant changes in the nature of the Group’s principal
activities during the Year.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s profit for the Year and the Group’s financial
position at that date are set out in the financial statements
on pages 86 to 243 of this annual report.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final
dividend to the shareholders for the Year.

DONATIONS

During the Year, the Group made charitable donation of
HK$233,000 (2019: HK$82,000).

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business and the performance of the
Group for the year ended 31 March 2020 is provided
in the chapters of “Chairman’s Statement” and
“Management Discussion and Analysis” set out on pages
4 to 9 and pages 10 to 28, respectively, of this annual
report.
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EEEHE

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT

As a responsible corporation, the Group is committed to
reducing the impact on the environment in its operational
activities, not only by advocating the concept of “green
office”, but also by improving the production process
to reduce energy consumption and emission, so as to
ensure that the operations does not pose risks on the
environment and our neighbours.

Our 2020 Environmental, Social and Governance Report
(the “2020 ESG Report”) prepared in accordance with
Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules will provide further
explanation of our policies and efforts. The 2020 ESG
Report will be published within three months after the
publication of this annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group’s main operations are carried out both in Hong
Kong and Mainland China and are regulated by the local
laws and regulations accordingly. During the Year and up
to the date of this annual report, the Group has complied
with the relevant laws and regulations that have significant
impact on Hong Kong and Mainland China.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND
UNCERTAINTIES

The Group faces various risks and uncertainties in
operations. To cope with the risks, the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems are in place
to ensure the principal risks are continuously identified,
monitored and managed on an established basis.

Global economic and political development

Global economic environment performance and political
instability would influence the conditions on consumer
confidence and their buying habits. The continuing
adverse economic conditions may affect the results
of operation and financial performance of the Group
adversely. The Group continues to implement its
strategies to develop and strengthen the penetration of
different geographical markets to reduce its dependency
on specific markets.

High customer concentration risks

Our large international customers provide valuable inputs
to the Group, especially during the development phase of
new products, for improving the quality of products and
production processes. However, over-reliance on large
international customers may also carry substantial risks
that can far outweigh any benefits in the long term. To
avoid such risk the Group continues to use the existing
customers as a springboard to expand the Group’s
customer base.

Supply chain risks

As a manufacturer, we strongly rely on stable and qualified
materials supply from our materials suppliers. Any
interruption of supply may cause problems in our supply
chain. Without long-term contracts with any suppliers,
and we may need to compete with other companies for
materials. Nevertheless, we have established long-term
partnerships with many suppliers to minimise the impact
of any supply disruption and ensure that we can locate
alternative suppliers of comparable quality at reasonable
prices.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND
UNCERTAINTIES (continued)

People risks

The Group’s future development strongly relies on
recruiting the right people. The shortage or loss of
personnel with appropriate skills or experience could pose
a potential risk in achieving the Group’s strategic goal.
The Group offers competitive remuneration and benefits
package to attract and retrain qualified personnel so as to
satisfy the needs of the corporate development.

Details of the Group’s foreign currency exposure
and interest rate risk are provided in the chapter of
“Management Discussion and Analysis” set out on pages
10 to 28 of this annual report.

The above mentioned does not present an exhaustive
picture of the risks and uncertainties faced by the Group,
the Board must tailor its risk management to match the
nature of risk threats.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH STAFF,
CUSTOMERS, SUPPLIERS AND
SHAREHOLDERS

The Group’s success depends on the support from
key stakeholders which comprise our staff, customers,
suppliers as well as our shareholders.

The Group values our employees as the most significant
and valuable assets to the Group, a comprehensive
benefit package is offered to each employee for
recognising their efforts. The Group also has a significant
mission for providing a healthy and safety workplace to
all employees. During the Year, no significant accident
occurred due to workplace accident.

The Group commits to provide quality services and
products to each customer, any complaints from our
customers are handled and investigated in thorough and
efficient manner.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH STAFF,
CUSTOMERS, SUPPLIERS AND
SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

The purchase of goods and contracting of services are
based solely on need, quality and price of the goods and
services. A fair and open competition in procurement with
high ethical standards promoted by the Group assure
high products quality at all times to gain the confidence of
customers.

For details of relationship with the shareholders of the
Company can be found in the chapter of “Corporate
Governance Report” set out on pages 54 to 76 of this
annual report.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the consolidated results, assets and
liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years is set
out on page 244 of this annual report. The summary does
not form part of the audited financial statements.

BORROWINGS

Particulars of the Group’s bank borrowings as at 31
March 2020 are set out in Note 29 to the financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of movements in the share capital and the share
options of the Company during the Year, together with the
reasons therefor, are set out in Note 31 and Note 32 to
the financial statements, respectively.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and
the Group during the Year are set out in Note 33 to the
financial statements and in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity, respectively.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
bye-laws of the Company (the “Bye-Laws”) or the laws of
Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2020, the Company’s reserves available
for cash distribution and/or distribution in specie,
comprising the contributed surplus and the retained
profits, amounted to HK$461,112,000. Under the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, the Company’s
contributed surplus of HK$104,750,000 may be
distributed under certain circumstances. In addition, the
Company’s share premium account with a balance of
HK$156,015,000 may be distributed in the form of fully
paid bonus shares.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, sales to the Group’s five largest
customers accounted for 73% of the total sales for the
Year and sales to the largest customer included therein
amounted to 55% of the total sales.

Purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers
accounted for 34% of the total purchases of the Group for
the Year and purchases from the largest supplier included
therein amounted to 15% of the total purchases.

As far as the Directors are aware, neither the Directors,
their associates (as defined in the Listing Rules), nor
those shareholders which, to the best knowledge of the
Directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued
share capital, had any beneficial interest in the Group’s
five largest customers and suppliers.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this
annual report were:

Executive Directors
Mr. Cheng Chor Kit
(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Fung Wah Cheong, Vincent
Mr. Liu Tat Luen
Mr. Cheng Tsz To
Mr. Cheng Tsz Hang
Mr. Hui Ka Po, Alex*

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Wong Chi Wai

Dr. Sun Kwai Yu, Vivian

Mr. Cheng Kwok Kin, Paul

Mr. Cheung Wang Ip

* Mr. Hui Ka Po, Alex had resigned as an executive Director
with effective from 8 July 2019.

Biographical details in respect of the Directors at the
date of this annual report is provided in the chapter of
“Biographical Details of the Directors” set out in pages 29
to 32 of this annual report.

In accordance with the Bye-Laws, Mr. Liu Tat Luen, Mr.
Cheng Tsz To and Dr. Sun Kwai Yu, Vivian, being the
Directors who should retire by rotation, will retire at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the
annual general meeting of the Company.

The Directors confirm that the Company has received from
each of its independent non-executive Directors an annual
confirmation of his/her independence pursuant to Rule
3.183 of the Listing Rules, and the Company considers the
independent non-executive Directors to be independent.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Bye-Law 166 of Bye-Laws, subject to
the applicable laws, every Director shall be indemnified
and secured harmless out of the assets of the Company
from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses which he/she may incur or sustain
by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in
or about the execution of his/her office. The Company
has taken out insurance against the liability and costs
associated with defending any proceedings which may be
brought against the Directors.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Mr. Cheng Chor Kit entered into a service contract with
the Company commencing from 1 August 2005 without a
fixed term but subject to termination by either party giving
not less than six months’ notice in writing to the other

party.

Other than Mr. Cheng Chor Kit, all the Directors entered
into a service contract with the Company for a term of
three years, subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at the annual general meeting of the Company in
accordance with the Bye-Laws. Each of the executive and
independent non-executive Directors, unless terminated
by either party giving not less than six months’ notice and
three months’ notice, respectively, in writing to the other
party, the termination of which should not be later than the
end of the three years.

Apart from the foregoing, no Director proposed for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company has a service contract with the Company
which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2020, the interests of the Directors and
chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO
which are required (a) to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which
he/she is taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO); or (b) pursuant to section 352 of the SFO,
to be entered in the register referred to therein; or (c)
pursuant to the Model Code of Securities Transactions
by directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange, were as
follows:

(@) Interests in the shares of the Company

EEEHE

EERBESTHRAERRSG A
FAROREEE2EERAA

RZZEZZEF=—A=+—H XRAIEEK
BEETBRABRARRREER ZE (TR
FHH R HEEMEXVE) 21D - AER G
BREEFEFHEH@Q RIEESH LHBEKRHIEXV
HETRSDHAERNNR MR 2w (8
FERBEBZHF LSRN E BIE X EE
SR A ZESZIORR)  (b) BIFEES
MR E 5P 35215 B A B MR 2 i as
) REBLMEITAESETESFRING
TR ([EESFRD) BEME AR E KRBT
ZHETWIT

(@) REATRGZERE
Approximate
percentage of

Number of ordinary the Company’s

Long position/ shares held issued share
Name of Director short position Capacity FREER EAAFERT
3 #E/ KR 54 ROHE BROZBHEIL
(Note 1) (Hfs£1)
Mr. Cheng Chor Kit Long position Interests on controlling 252,920,000 57.62%
BRELE e EH AR (Note 2) (fiit2)
Beneficial owner 26,444,000 6.02%
BEREAA
Interests held by spouse 3,700,000 0.84%
EEARE#R
Mr. Fung Wah Cheong, Vincent  Long position Beneficial owner 8,152,000 1.85%
BEELE e EREAA
Mr. Liu Tat Luen Long position Beneficial owner 2,000,000 0.45%
BERLLE e BREAA
Mr. Cheng Tsz To Long position Beneficial owner 3,000,000 0.68%
Brekts B ERBERA (Note 3) (f1:23)
Mr. Cheng Tsz Hang Long position Beneficial owner 3,000,000 0.68%
BrELts e ERBERA (Note 3) (f:23)
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES (continued)

(@) Interests in the shares of the Company
(continued)

Long position/
short position Capacity

HE/ %R &t

Name of Director

Esps

EELBEETHRAENRKRG 8
EROEREEEZERRAE &)

(@ REQXTRGz2ERE (&)

Number of ordinary

Approximate
percentage of
the Company’s
shares held issued share
FREER GERAREEST
ROBE ROZBAEIL
(Note 1) (K1)

Mr. Wong Chi Wai

Long position

Beneficial owner

BELLE B ERBEBA
Dr. Sun Kwai Yu, Vivian Long position Beneficial owner
BEmiEt e EEERAA
Mr. Cheng Kwok Kin, Paul Long position Beneficial owner
BEZLE e BEREAA
Mr. Cheung Wang Ip Long position Beneficial owner
REERE B ERBEBA

(1)  The percentage of shareholding is calculated based
on 438,960,000 shares, being the total number of
issued ordinary shares of the Company as at 31
March 2020.

(2)  These shares are held by Resplendent Global Limited
(“Resplendent”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Padora
Global Inc. (“Padora”).

As reported in our 2018/2019 Annual Report, after
the restructuring exercise of the discretionary trust of
which established by Mr. Cheng Chor Kit (the “Trust”)
on 2 April 2019, the Trust ceased to be interested
in the entire interest of Padora. Mr. Cheng Chor Kit
ceased to be interested in 252,920,000 shares in the
Company in the capacity as the founder of the Trust
and has instead become directly interested in 52.0%
of the voting shares in Padora.

(3)  After the aforesaid restructuring exercise, Mr. Cheng
Tsz To and Mr. Cheng Tsz Hang ceased to the
interested in 252,920,000 shares in the Company in
the capacity as the beneficiary of the Trust and has
instead become directly interested in 16.0% of the
voting shares in Padora respectively.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND

DEBENTURES (continued)

(b) Interests in the shares of associated

corporation of the Company

EERRETRAERKM
EROREEEZEERAE @)

(b) RAERXTEBEERMD 2 ER

Percentage
of issued
capital of

the associated
Name of associated Long position/ Number of  corporation
corporation Name of Director short position Capacity Nature of interests shares held B LECE
RBEER ESfE #8/ %% 5t BEkE FrsRf8R ARAZEDY
Padora Global Inc. Mr. Cheng Chor Kit Long position Beneficial owner Personal interest 520 52.00%
BRfEE e EnfEEA AR
Interest held by spouse  Family interest 160 16.00%
LEMEEER RS
Mr. Cheng Tsz To Long position Beneficial owner Personal interest 160 16.00%
BrEnt e ERfEAA fANER
Mr. Cheng Tsz Hang Long position Beneficial owner Personal interest 160 16.00%
grins 55 EnfEEA AR
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND

DEBENTURES (continued)

(c)

Interests in the underlying shares of the

BEERBSTT

BAERKR®SG - H

RO REER 2ERZR AR @)

(c) RAERXTHEBAREG zEHE

Company
Number of
underlying
shares
in respect
of share
options
held and Price of the
approximate Company’s
percentage of shares
shareholding Date of immediately
fisEREL share before the
BBRA  options Vesting period Exercise grant date
Long position/ HAR  granted GEH Exercise price per KAARR
Name of Director short position ~ Capacity BRERY BRE  from to period share REERE
B3t #e/He &b Aflt  RiBE & z k8 SRARE  AMAZRE
HKS #70 HK$ #7
Mr. Wong Chi Wai Long posttion  Beneficial Owner 300,000 29/03/2011 29/03/2011 - 219 2.170
Elgrt i ERERA (0.06%) 28/08/2021
400,000"  07/07/2017 07/07/2017 - 2.262 2.20
(0.09%) 06/07/2027
100,000 07/07/2017  07/07/2017 1210972017 13/09/2017 - 2.262 2.20
(0.02%) 06/07/2027
100,000 09/07/2018  09/07/2018  12/09/2018  13/09/2018 - 2410 2410
(0.02%) 08/07/2028
Dr. Sun Kwai Yu, Vivian Long posttion  Beneficial Owner 300,000 29/03/2011 29/03/2011 - 219 2.170
FENEL ffe EAEAA (0.06% 28/03/2021
100,000 09/07/2018  09/07/2018  12/09/2018  13/09/2018 - 2470 2470
(0.02%) 8/07/2028
Mr. Cheng Kwok Kin, Paul - Long position  Beneficial Owner 100,000 07/07/2017 07/07/2017 - 2.262 2.220
LTl fie ERERA (0.02%) 06/07/2027
100,000 09/07/2018 09/07/2018 - 2470 2470
(0.02%) 08/07/2028
Mr. Cheung Wang Ip Long posttion  Beneficial Owner 100,000 09/07/2018  09/07/2018  20/07/2018  21/07/2018 - 2410 2410
% S fe EREAA (0.02%) 08/07/2028

*  Vested upon granted.
RS o
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EEGHRE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S EERERETHRAERER®G -8
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN BROREEBCEZRAR &)
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND

DEBENTURES (continued)

(c) Interests in the underlying shares of the (c) RAEQTEBERMDzER (Z)
Company (continued)
The Directors’ interests in the Company’s share BEERARNRIBRE SN BHRE
options are disclosed in Note 32 to the financial M 5E32H #5755 o
statements.
Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2020, MR EXFIIEEEN  RZE_FTF=H
none of the Directors nor chief executive of the =t+—H BMEARAEERESTH
Company had interests or short positions in any AERARAISKEAREHEE (T&
securities of the Company or any of its associated RFBEHE R IBEEMIEXVED) 2 T FH
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the FHEB B BIEEARIEENEXY
SFO) which are required (a) to be notified to the EBEET7 M8 BB A E AN B K B A P 2
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to @IARE (BEREZAFRAEEN
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including EHEYFEHEEESE BERS Z S
interests or short positions which he/she is taken FORA) ¢ Sib) BIFEHF R EEHE
or deemed to have under such provisions of the 352{§ B AB MR Z RS IAR
SFO); or (b) pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to g (c) IRIBZRETFRIEMG AR R RE#R
be entered in the register referred to therein; or (c) T2 ERSRA -

pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS AR 32 ) 89 17 i

Other than the share option scheme of the Company as BRETIREE 2 NN B 2 B REET &4 - AR
disclosed, no equity-linked agreements that will or may ERRAFELERE - ARARBER LT
result in the Company issuing shares or that require the EEMERERH AR EE SR ERRNA T
Company to enter into any agreements that will or may TR SR EANR A)E] M #E & s Al EHAK
result in the Company issuing shares were entered into by RAEEITRG 2 E T -

the Company during the Year or subsisted at the end of

the Year.
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EEEHE

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Directors’
and chief executive’s interests and short positions in
shares, underlying shares and debentures” of this chapter
and in the share option scheme disclosures in Note 32
to the financial statements, at no time during the Year
were there any rights to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in the Company granted to any
Directors or their respective spouses or minor children,
or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the
Company, or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries
and fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to
enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any other
body corporate.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

Details of the Company’s share option schemes are
disclosed in Note 32 to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Connected
Transactions” below, none of the Directors nor their
respective associates had a material interest, either
directly or indirectly, in any transactions, arrangements
or contracts of significance to the business of the Group
to which the Company, or any of its holding companies,
subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries was a party during the
Year.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS, DISPOSALS
AND SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Connected
Transactions” below, during the Year, the Group was
neither involved in any significant investment, nor in any
material acquisition or disposal of any subsidiary.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the Year under review, certain related party
transactions are connected transactions subject to
the reporting, announcement, and/or independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules. Details of the transactions were set
out in the announcement and circular of the Company
dated 21 January 2020 and 11 March 2020 respectively.

Connected Transactions

On 21 January 2020, Kin Yat (HK) Holdings Limited
("KYHK”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company and Mr. Cheng Chor Kit (“Mr. Cheng”), the
executive Director, the chairman of the Board, the chief
executive officer and the controlling shareholder of the
Company (as defined under Listing Rules), entered into
the sale & purchase agreement (the “S&P Agreement”).
Pursuant to the S&P Agreement, KYHK agreed to sell and
Mr. Cheng agreed to acquire, by a cash consideration
of HK$39,500,000, the entire equity interest in Unicon
Investments Limited (“Unicon”), an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company.

On the same date, Kin Yat Industrial Company Limited
(“KY1”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company and Century Grand International Limited
(“Century Grand”), a company wholly owned by Mr.
Cheng, entered into a memorandum agreement
(the “Memorandum Agreement”). Pursuant to the
Memorandum Agreement, KYI agreed to sell and Century
Grand agreed to acquire the property held by KYI for a
cash consideration of HK$19,750,000.
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EEEHE

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Connected Transactions (continued)

The above transactions, resulted in gain of
HK$48,258,000 calculated based on the carrying values of
the land portion of the subject properties measured under
cost model and in accordance with the requirement under
HKFRS 16.

As the date of signing of the aforesaid agreements,
Mr. Cheng was directly and indirectly interested in
approximately 64.48% of then issued share capital of the
Company as well as the executive Director, the chairman
of the Board and the chief executive officer of the
Company. Accordingly, Mr. Cheng is a connected person
of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Such disposals had been subsequently approved by the
independent shareholders of the Company at the special
general meeting held on 30 March 2020.

Connected Transactions - leasing

Upon completion of the aforesaid disposal of Unicon,
it becomes an associate of a connected person of the
Company and hence itself becomes a connected person
of the Company. On 1 April 2020, KYI (as a lessee)
entered into a lease agreement with Unicon (as a lessor)
for a term of three years commencing from 1 April 2020
and ending on 31 March 2023. Pursuant to the lease
agreement, KYI| agreed to lease back the subject property
for an annual lease rental of HK$1,498,000 (inclusive of
government rent, rates and management fees).
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND
OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2020, so far as is known to any Director
or chief executive of the Company, the following persons
had an interest or short position in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company which would fall
to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were
recorded in the register to be kept by the Company under

Section 336 of the SFO, were as follows:

EEEHE

TERRREMALRARSG - A
BRORERERE 2 ED

R-ZE-_ZTFE=ZA=+—H ' BAQRAEM
EFTRRETBRAEBRMA U TALTRAR
AR - HERD REEBFEE ARE
BHE N EIEHIEXVERE2 M35 B A A
NEWE - IRIEES M EEEF 3361558
ARRABTFENECMOERIABNT

Approximate
percentage of

Number of the Company’s Number of
ordinary issued shares share options
shares held HERQEE held
Name of Shareholders Capacity FEBLER BRITR®BZ sk
RRERZHB ) ROHE BRBEDL 2R
(Note 1) (Hi#£1)
Mr. Cheng Chor Kit Interests on controlling 283,064,000 64.48% -
B corporation, beneficial (Note 2) (#152)
owner and interests
held by spouse
T A B R
ERBEBEAR
REBMEAZER
Mdm. Tsang Yuk Wan Interests on controlling 283,064,000 64.48% -
BREEL+ corporation, beneficial (Note 3) (#15£3)
owner and interests
held by spouse
NG 2o
ERBEBEAR
AEEAEA 2R
RUAN, David Ching-Chi Interests on controlling 28,434,000 6.48% =
corporation (Note 4) (f174)
AR R
RAYS Capital Partners Limited Investment manager 28,434,000 6.48% =
ERERBERAA REKE (Note 4) (Hfi£4)
Asian Equity Special Opportunities Beneficial owner 28,434,000 6.48% =

Portfolio Master Fund Limited

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 4 [Z i

ESBEBA

(Note 4) (f174)

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED &#&BEAR A A

49



50

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

EEEHE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND
OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES (continued)

Notes:

(1)  The percentage of shareholding is calculated based on
438,960,000 shares, being the total number of issued
ordinary shares of the Company as at 31 March 2020.

(2)  This refers to the same block of shareholding of Mr. Cheng
Chor Kit described in the section headed “Directors’ and
chief executive’s interests and short positions in shares,
underlying shares and debentures” above.

(3)  Mdm. Tsang Yuk Wan is the spouse of Mr. Cheng Chor
Kit and is deemed to be interested in the shares which are
interested by Mr. Cheng Chor Kit under Part XV of the SFO.

(4)  Refer to the information available on the website of the
Stock Exchange, Asian Equity Special Opportunities
Portfolio Master Fund Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary
of RAYS Capital Partners Limited which in turn is owned as
to 95.24% by Mr. RUAN, David Ching-Chi.

All the interests stated above representing long position.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2020, the
Directors and chief executive officer of the Company were
not aware of any person who had an interest or short
position in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register to
be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

DIRECTORS’ AND CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS’ INTEREST IN
COMPETING INTERESTS

The Directors are not aware of any business or interest
of the Directors, the controlling shareholder and their
respective associates (as defined under the Listing Rules)
of the Company that compete or may compete with the
business of the Group and any other conflict of interest
which any such person has or may have with the Group
during the Year.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF
LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed
securities during the Year.

DISCLOSURES PURSUANT TO R13.21
OF THE LISTING RULES ON THE

STOCK EXCHANGE

In April 2015 and November 2017, the Company as a
borrower, entered into a renewed and new term loan
facility agreements of HK$100,000,000 each with The
Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited for
a term of 60 months of each term loan facility respectively.

In July 2015 and November 2017, the Company as a
borrower entered into term loan facility agreements of
HK$100,000,000 and HK$150,000,000 with Hang Seng
Bank Limited (“HSB”) for a term of 36 months of each
term loan respectively. In January 2019, HSB revised
the abovesaid term loan facilities and entered into a
renewed term loan facility agreement with the Company
(the “Renewed Agreement”) to substitute the original term
loan agreements. Pursuant to the Renewed Agreement,
the renewed term loans are for a period of 36 months and
included term loans of HK$45,000,000 to finance capital
expenditure of the Company and of HK$217,500,000 to
refinance the outstanding balance of the loans previously
granted.
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DISCLOSURES PURSUANT TO R13.21
OF THE LISTING RULES ON THE
STOCK EXCHANGE (continued)

In May 2018, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company as a borrower, entered into a new term loan
and trade-line facility agreement of total HK$100,000,000
with Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited for a term of 36
months and the purpose of the aforesaid term loan is used
for financing capital expenditure.

In addition to general conditions, each of the term loan
facility agreement imposes, inter alia, a condition that
Mr. Cheng Chor Kit, the Director and the controlling
shareholder (as defined under the Listing Rules) of the
Company, and the discretionary trust set up by him for
the benefit of his family (the trust agreement between
Mr. Cheng Chor Kit and HSBC Trustee International
Limited, the trustee of the trust, has terminated on 2 April
2019. For details, please refer to the section headed
“Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short
Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debenture”
in this chapter); collectively shall beneficially or directly
maintain a shareholding of not less than 50% of the issued
share capital of the Company (the “Specific Performance
Obligations”). A breach of the Specific Performance
Obligations will constitute an event of default under the
relevant facility letter. Upon the occurrence of such event,
each of the loan shall become immediately due and
repayable on demand.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard
of corporate governance practices. Information of the
corporate governance practices adopted by the Company
is set out in the chapter of “Corporate Governance
Report” on pages 54 to 76 of this annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, the
Company has maintained the prescribed public float under
the Listing Rules during the Year and up to the latest
practicable date prior to the issue of this annual report.

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AFTER THE
REPORTING PERIOD

Details of events after the reporting period had been
disclosed in Note 40 to the consolidated financial
statements of this annual report. Other than disclosed
above, there is no significant event after the reporting
period that should be notified to shareholders of the
Company.

AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers were first appointed as auditor
of the Company in 2018 upon the retirement of Ernst &
Young.

PricewaterhouseCoopers will retire and a resolution for
their re-appointment as auditor of the Company will be
proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Cheng Chor Kit
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 29 June 2020
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The Company strives to attain high standards of corporate
governance at all time and in all areas of its operations
for maximising long-term shareholder value while
balancing broader stakeholders’ interests. The corporate
governance principles of the Company emphasise quality
of the Board, effective internal control, stringent disclosure
practices, an ethical corporate culture and accountability
to all stakeholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

The Board regularly reviews the guidelines and latest
development in corporate governance. In the opinion of
the Board, the Company has complied with the code
provisions as set out in the Corporate Governance Code
(the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing
Rules throughout the year ended 31 March 2020 except
for the deviation from provision A.2.1 of the CG Code as
described in the section “Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer” in this Corporate Governance Report (the “CG
Report”). The Board has also reviewed the CG Report and
is satisfied that it has been in full compliance with all the
requirements stipulated in the CG Report in Appendix 14
of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ AND RELEVANT
EMPLOYEES’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its own code on terms
no less exacting than the required standard set out in
the Model Code regarding securities transactions by the
Directors.

Having made specific enquiry of the Directors, all the
Directors confirmed that they have complied with the
required standard set out in the Model Code throughout
the Year. All relevant employees of the Group who,
because of their office in the Group, are likely to be in
possession of unpublished price sensitive information have
been requested to comply with the provisions of the Model
Code.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition of the Board

The composition of the Board shall comprise of a
balanced mix of Directors and shall have a sufficient
number of Directors to provide a breadth of knowledge
as well as the ability to make insightful discussions on key
issues.

As of the date of this annual report, the Board comprises
nine members, the Board is confident that the balance
between the number of executive and independent non-
executive Directors has been reasonably and adequately
established in order to protect the interests of the
shareholders and the Company as a whole.

During the Year and up to the date of this annual report,
the Directors were:

Executive Directors
Mr. Cheng Chor Kit
(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Fung Wah Cheong, Vincent
Mr. Liu Tat Luen
Mr. Cheng Tsz To
Mr. Cheng Tsz Hang
Mr. Hui Ka Po, Alex*
* Mr. Hui Ka Po, Alex had resigned as an executive Director
with effective from 8 July 2019.

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Wong Chi Wai

Dr. Sun Kwai Yu, Vivian

Mr. Cheng Kwok Kin, Paul

Mr. Cheung Wang Ip

All Directors come from diverse businesses and
professional backgrounds and expertise as shown in the
chapter of “Biographical Details of the Directors” on pages
29 to 32 in this annual report.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Composition of the Board (continued)

Mr. Cheng Tsz Hang and Mr. Cheng Tsz To are the
sons of Mr. Cheng Chor Kit, the executive Director and
the controlling shareholder (as defined under the Listing
Rules) of the Company. Save as disclosed above, none of
the Directors has any financial, business, family or other
material or relevant relationships among the Directors.

All Directors disclose to the Company the number and
natures of offices held in other public companies or
organisations as well as other significant appointments
annually which ensures that all Board members are
capable of inputting enough time and devoting enough
attention to the Company’s affairs.

Functions of the Board

The Company’s overall management is vested on its
Board which accepts that it is ultimately accountable and
responsible for the performance and affairs of the Group.
The Board’s role is to provide entrepreneurial leadership
set the Company’s strategic aims and the Company’s
values and standards, and to ensure that its obligations
to its stakeholders and others are understood and met.
To facilitate the operations, the Board has established a
schedule of matters reserved for its approval. The specific
responsibilities reserved for the Board include (1) setting
the Group’s strategies and dividend policy, (2) approving
budgets, reviewing operational and financial performance
(3) approving major investments and divestments, (4)
reviewing risk management and internal control system
of the Group, (5) ensuring appropriate management
development and succession plans in place, (6) approving
appointments of Directors and other senior executives,
(7) approving corporate social responsibility policies, (8)
ensuring effective communication with shareholders and
(9) other significant operational and financial matters.

An update list of Directors identifying their role and
function is available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED w5 E AR A A

BEEg®)

BEESAN(Z)

WTE RS TEEEAAATRITES
$ERBRE(FER FHAN) BREELE
BT -BRNLFABBEN SESHGE
EMBR - 275 - REN M EAKAME
% o

EREFHEFAARABRBEERNEMAR
NE S EEATE RS BB 2T M EA
EAED HREBEFTGNEEAHYAR
A2 FBHRA R E LT -

ExgomEE
ARARZEREEGBREESRAE ME
FEARAEEZRRALEHIELERHE
kBB BFgzAGCRHEGCEEE 4
EARAREEFRERAAREEBRMEE
WHERLEEETERNDEREMBALTERK
RE - BTEEFGEF EFECHTE—
MBEEBFEYREBERER EFTSZETE
BB« (1)HIE AN & B 2 B R K ARSI
RQUEBRER RN EELRVBRE
OIEERRERBE ORI AKEZ
R EENMAREZEGE  OEREEEE
BERNETTE - O EZTEEE RHEM
BRTBAE  MHECELEEEER -
@EREBRETAXBBLOEMENE
ENPBEER -

RFVIAEAGTRBRENESTLE - AN
R RARBABUEER

7

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 4 [Z R



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Delegation of Authority

The Board has delegated the authorities and day-to-
day responsibilities to the management and requires the
management to execute the objectives and strategies
established by the Board. The Board also exercises a
separate and independent assessment to the performance
of the management on a periodical basis.

The management is responsible for running the
Company’s businesses and for proposing the
development of the Group’s strategies and overall
commercial objectives in consultation with the Board.
The management is also responsible for implementing
decisions of the Board and its committees, developing
main policies and reviewing the business organisational
structure and operational performance. Furthermore, the
management is obligated to supply relevant, adequate,
clear and timely information and report to the Board and
its committees in a consistent format. The Board, where
necessary, can make further enquiries to the management
on any matters they are concerned.

Board Meeting

For the Board discharges their responsibilities, the
Directors are required to meet in person regularly. The
schedule of the Board meetings for the coming year is
determined and informed all Directors in the fourth quarter
meeting annually.

Prior to the meetings of the Board, as delegated by
the chairman of the Company, the company secretary
or a designated person of the Company prepares and
despatches the notice of meeting together with the
relevant documents and information to all Directors in a
timely manner to ensure that all the participants are given
the opportunities of reviewing and preparing the matter
discussed for making informed decisions in the meeting.

The Board met four times during the Year and meeting

attendance records are set out on page 76 of this annual
report.
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Board Meeting (continued)

The minutes of the Board meetings are prepared by the
company secretary or a designated staff of the Company
who are delegated by the Board. The draft minutes
are circulated to all members of the Board for their
commentary. The final minutes are open for inspection
by all members of the Board at the Company’s principal
place of business in Hong Kong.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer shall be separated
and should not be performed by the same individual and
the division of responsibilities between the chairman and
chief executive officer should be clearly established and
set out in writing.

The roles of the chairman and the chief executive officer
of the Company are not separated and are performed
by the same individual, Mr. Cheng Chor Kit. The balance
of power and authority is ensured by the operations of
the Board which comprises experienced and high caliber
individuals, with a highly independent element in the Board
where the Board members meet regularly to discuss
issues affecting operations of the Company. The Board
believes that this structure is conducive to strong and
consistent leadership, enabling the Company to make and
implement decisions promptly and efficiently.

Independent non-executive Directors

The corporate governance stresses the importance of
independent non-executive directors. The independent
non-executive Directors bring in a wide range of skills and
business experience to the Company, and also bring in
independent and sound judgement on issues relating to
strategy, performance and risk through their contribution
to Board and to its committees.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Independent non-executive Directors (continued)

In compliance with Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules,
there are no less than three independent non-executive
directors and at least one of them has appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise. The independent non-
executive Directors are all experienced individuals from
various professionals, their skills and experience are an
important element in proper functioning to the Board. The
Board believes that a strong independent element on the
Board can provide a higher level of “checks and balances”
on the Company’s key decision-making mechanism as
well as monitor the Company’s affairs effectively.

The Company has received, from each of the independent
non-executive Directors, the written confirmation of his/
her independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. Evaluated the independence of all independent
non-executive Directors on an annual basis and based on
their confirmation, the Board considers the independence
of the independent non-executive Directors have been
adequately maintained.

Under provision A.3.1 of the CG Code, the independent
non-executive Directors are identified as such in all
corporate communications containing the names of the
Directors.

Directors’ Appointment, Re-election and Removal
Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service
contract with the Company for different terms and subject
to a termination by giving not less than six months’ prior
written notice.

Under provision A.4.1 of CG Code, non-executive
directors should be appointed for a specific term, subject
to re-election. Each of the independent non-executive
Directors has entered into a service contract with the
Company for a term of three years and subject to a
termination by giving not less than three months’ prior
written notice.
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Directors’ Appointment, Re-election and Removal
(continued)

All Directors appointed to fill a casual vacancy are
subject to election at the annual general meeting after
appointment. All Directors are subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting of
the Company in accordance with the Bye-Laws.

Under provision of A.4.3 of CG Code, any further re-
appointment of an independent non-executive Director
who has served the Board for more than nine years
will be subject to separate resolution to be approved
by shareholders in the annual general meeting of the
Company.

Dr. Sun Kwai Yu, Vivian (“Dr. Sun”) has served as
independent non-executive Director more than 9
years and her re-election will be subject to a separate
resolution to be approved by the shareholders. Taking
into consideration of Dr. Sun independent scope of works
during her tenure of office, she has not involved in any
daily management but yet expressed objective views and
given independent guidance to the Company over the
years. As an independent non-executive Director with in-
depth understanding of the Company’s operations and
business and with professional qualifications, the Directors
consider that the long service of Dr. Sun would not affect
her exercise of independent judgement and is satisfied
that Dr. Sun has the required character, integrity and
experience to continue fulfilling the role of independent
non-executive Director. The Directors consider the re-
election of Dr. Sun as independent non-executive Director
is in the best interest of the Company and shareholders as
a whole.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Nomination Policy

The Company’s Nomination Policy provides the framework
by which criteria and process in the nomination,
appointment and re-election of Directors can be clearly
defined and to ensure that the Board has a balance of
skills, experience and diversity of perspectives which
are appropriate to the requirements of the Company’s
business. In considering the suitability of a proposed
candidate, a number of factors including qualifications,
integrity, reputation, time commitment, skills and
experience relevant to the Company’s businesses will be
taken into consideration. The decision of appointment or
re-appointment of a director will be made subject to the
Company’s Board Diversity Policy and the relevant Listing
Rules. The above selection process will be conducted by
the nomination committee of the Board (the “Nomination
Committee”) to identify potential candidate for new
directorship or for re-appointment of a Director. The
recommendations of the Nomination Committee on the
selected candidates will be communicated to the Board
for their consideration and approval. The Nomination
Policy also includes the Board succession planning policy
outlining the process that the Board need to use for
planning to replace Board members due to the Directors’
resignation, retirement and other circumstance. The
Nomination Policy will be reviewed on a regular basis.

Board Diversity Policy

In order to enhance the effectiveness and the balanced
development of the Board, the Company is committed
to promoting diversity among the composition of its
Board members. The current Board Diversity Policy
provides a process and guideline which the Company
will implement to achieve its diversity and ensures the
Board has the appropriate balance of skills, experience
and diversity of perspectives that are required for the
Company’s businesses. The Company recognises
the importance of a corporate culture that embraces
diversity and believes that a diversity commitment can be
achieved through consideration of a wide range of factors,
including gender, age, skills and industry experience,
cultural and educational background, length of services
in designing the Board composition. The Nomination
Committee has the primary responsibility for identifying
suitable candidates to become Board members based
on the selection criteria. The Board Diversity Policy and
the diversity of the Board will be reviewed on a regular
basis to ensure the continued effectiveness of our Board
Diversity Policy.
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Directors’ Training

Every Director should keep himself or herself abreast
of the responsibilities as a Director and of the conduct,
business activities and development of the Company.
Each new incoming Director receives an induction
package covering the introduction of Group’s businesses
and real-life overview of the Company, induction of their
roles and responsibilities, the practical procedure duties
and the compliance of laws and regulations.

All Directors are encouraged to pursue an ongoing
development and refreshment of their knowledge and
skills to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains
relevant and productive.

On 27 September 2019, a tailor-made seminar
was organised to Directors in related to the recent
development of corporate governance. All Directors on
that date participated in this seminar.

The training of each individual Director for the Year is set
out below:
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Types of training

Name of Director EEHR EAER
Executive Directors BITES

Mr. Cheng Chor Kit B E A& A/B
Mr. Fung Wah Cheong, Vincent HEERAE A/B
Mr. Liu Tat Luen BEELE A/B
Mr. Cheng Tsz To B FiELE A/B
Mr. Cheng Tsz Hang BrEks A/B
Mr. Hui Ka Po, Alex* FFR AR S 4> Not applicable 7~ i@ F

Independent non-executive Directors BIFHITESE

Mr. Wong Chi Wai =M A
Dr. Sun Kwai Yu, Vivian BEmEL
Mr. Cheng Kwok Kin, Paul BB 57 % &
Mr. Cheung Wang Ip RARFERE

A Attending briefings/seminars/conference/forums.

B Reading/studying training or other materials.

* Mr. Hui Ka Po, Alex had resigned as an executive Director
with effective from 8 July 2019.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Directors’ and Officers’ Liability Insurance

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance
coverage on directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of
any legal actions taken against the Directors and senior
management of the Company arising out of corporate
activities. The insurance coverage is reviewed on an
annual basis.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established the following Board
committees, all chaired by independent non-executive
Directors, with clearly defined terms of reference, which
are on no less exacting terms than those set out in the CG
Code of the Listing Rules:

- Remuneration Committee (the “Remuneration Committee”);
- Nomination Committee; and
- Audit Committee (the “Audit Committee”)

The roles and responsibilities of each Board committee is
set out by the Board with clearly defined written terms of
reference and this document is available on the websites
of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

Pursuant to the written terms of reference, each
Board committee has authority to engage outside
consultants or experts as it considers necessary to
discharge the committee’s responsibilities. Minutes
of all Board committees meetings are circulated to all
Board members. To further reinforce independence
and effectiveness, all Audit Committee members being
appointed are independent non-executive Directors, and
the Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee
have been structured with a majority of independent
non-executive Directors being the Board committees’
members. During the Year and up to the date of this
annual report, each Board Committee’s members include:
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Remuneration Nomination Audit
Committee Committee Committee
FMWzag REZES EREES
Mr. Cheng Chor Kit Executive Director Member X & Member A 8 =
HRELE HITEZE
Mr. Fung Wah Cheong, Vincent — Executive Director Member f% & Member i & =
BEELE HWITES
Mr. Wong Chi Wai Independent non-executive Director Member 5 & Chairman % & Member 7 &
EMgELE BUaTES
Dr. Sun Kwai Yu, Vivian Independent non-executive Director Member X & Member i &  Chairperson £ /&
BENEL BUFHTES
Mr. Cheng Kwok Kin, Paul Independent non-executive Director Chairman £ & Member A 8 Member f &
HEe Lt BUFHITES
Mr. Cheung Wang Ip Independent non-executive Director Member fX & Member % & Member % &
REFELE BUFHTES
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Remuneration Committee

The remuneration packages offered by the Company
should be able to attract and motivate the Directors and
senior management of the Company for their sufficient
quality, whilst at the same time taking into account
the shareholders’ interests as well. The main roles
and responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee is
aimed to assist the Board to develop and administer
fair and transparent procedures for setting policy on
the remuneration of Directors and senior management
of the Company, and to ensure no individual Director
or any of his/her associates can determine his/her own
remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee reviews and determines,
with delegated responsibility, the remuneration
packages include but not limited to basic salaries,
deferred compensation, stock options and any benefits
in kind, pension rights, incentive payments and any
other compensation payments, of individual executive
Directors and senior management of the Company with
reference to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives,
responsibilities and employment conditions elsewhere
within the Group and in the market. The Remuneration
Committee also independently reviews and approves the
compensation and related arrangements for executive
Directors and senior management of the Company in
respect of any loss or termination of office or appointment.

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting
during the Year to review and approve the Directors’
remuneration packages. Meeting attendance records of
the Remuneration Committee are set out on page 76 of
this annual report.

Information relating to remuneration of each Director for
the Year is set out in Note 10 to the financial statements.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Nomination Committee

The primarily responsibility of the Nomination Committee,
followed the Nomination Policy and Diversity Policy
as mentioned above, reviews the composition of the
Board from time to time and gives advice to the Board
on the candidates, conditions, selection standards and
procedures of the proposed appointment of Directors and
senior management of the Company.

The Nomination Committee is also responsible for
recommending to the Board all new appointments of
Directors and senior management of the Company
identify by referral or intermediary agencies. The
Nomination Committee considers the past performance
and qualification of the candidates for Directors and
senior management of the Company, reviews general
market conditions and the Bye-Laws in selecting
and recommending candidates for directorship and
management.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during
the Year to review and discuss the composition of the
Board, assess the independence of the independent non-
executive Directors and to make recommendations to the
Board on the re-election of Directors. Meeting attendance
records of the Nomination Committee are set out on page
76 of this annual report.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Audit Committee

The main roles and responsibilities of the Audit Committee
are to assist the Board in (1) maintaining an effective
risk management and a system of internal control and
compliance with the Company’s obligations (including
external financial reporting obligations) under the Listing
Rules as modified from time to time and applicable laws
and regulations is in place; (2) overseeing the integrity
of the financial statements of the Company; and (3), on
behalf of the Board, (i) selecting the Company’s external
auditor and approving their remuneration, (i) assessing the
independence and qualifications of the external auditors,
and (iii) the overseeing the performance of the Company’s
internal audit function.

During the Year, the Audit Committee has reviewed with
the management the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group and financial reporting matters
including the review of the audited financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2019 as well as the
interim report for the six months ended 30 September
2019. The Audit Committee also reviewed the Group’s
financial controls, risk management and internal control
systems, discussed internal control matters, conducted
discussions with the external auditor on financial reporting,
compliance, the effectiveness of the audit process, and
reported all relevant matters to the Board during the year
ended 31 March 2020. In addition, the Audit Committee
has met with the external auditor of the Company and
reviewed the financial results of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2020, including the accounting principles
and practices adopted by the Group.

The Audit Committee held four meetings during the Year.
Meeting attendance records of the Audit Committee are
set out on page 76 of this annual report.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Corporate Governance Function

The Company has not deliberately established a corporate
governance committee and the Board delegated its
responsibilities to the Audit Committee with clearly defined
written terms of reference, for performing the corporate
governance functions:

1. to develop and review the policies and practices of
the Company on corporate governance and make
recommendations to the Board;

2. to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and senior
management of the Company;

3. to review and monitor the policies and practices
of the Company on compliance with legal and
regulatory;

4.  to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct
and compliance manual applicable to the Directors
and employees of the Group; and

5.  to review the compliance by the Company with the
CG Code and the disclosure requirements for the CG
Report.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Directors’ and External Auditor’s Financial Reporting
Responsibility

The management has timely and frequently provided
a balanced and understandable assessment of the
Company’s performance to the Board. The Board has
an ultimate responsibility for preparing the financial
statements which give a true and fair view of the Group’s
state of affairs and the results together with cash
flows situation for the Year. In preparing the financial
statements, the generally accepted accounting standards
in Hong Kong have been adopted; appropriate accounting
policies have been used and applied consistently; and
reasonable and prudent judgments and estimates have
been made.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)

Directors’ and External Auditor’s Financial Reporting
Responsibility (continued)

Other than the discussion in respect of the financial
conditions, liquidity and financial resources on the chapter
of “Management Discussion and Analysis”, the Board
is not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
Accordingly, the Board has continued to adopt the going
concern basis in preparing the financial statements of the
Group.

The Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 77 to 85 of
this annual report has set out the reporting responsibilities
of the external auditor of the Company.

Auditor’s Remuneration
The auditor’s remuneration and the fee for non-audit
services for the Year are as below:

Nature of services R E
Audit services 2% B AR 1%
Non-audit services IEZ BUR TS

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED w5 E AR A A
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for overseeing
the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management, internal
control systems as well as financial control. The risk
management mechanism can provide reasonable but not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss,
and is designed to manage rather than to eliminate risk of
failure to achieve business objectives.

The Group has adopted a three-tier risk management
approach to identify, access and manage different
types of risks. As the first line of defence, operational
management of the Group are responsible for identifying,
assessing and monitoring risk associated with each
business activities or transaction. The management of the
Group, as the second line of defence, defines rules sets
and models, provides technical support, develops new
system and oversees project management. It ensures that
risks are within the acceptable range and that the first
line of defence is effective. As the final line of defence,
an internal control advisor assists the Audit Committee to
review the first and second lines of defence.

The Group is committed to set up and maintain a sound
and effective internal control system which is designed to
provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against
material misstatement or loss and to manage rather than
eliminate risks of failure in the operational system and
achievement of the Group’s objectives.

An internal control advisor was appointed by the Company
as an outsourced internal audit function to assist the
Group to conduct annual review on the internal controls
system according to the internal audit plan agreed by
the management of the Group and Audit Committee. The
internal control advisor reported the internal audit findings
and recommendations to both the management of the
Group and Audit Committee. The management of the
Group agreed on the internal audit findings and adopted
the recommendations accordingly.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (continued)

Based on the risk management mechanism and internal
audit review activities, the management of the Group had
provided a confirmation to the Board that the Group had
maintained an effective risk management mechanism and

internal control systems during the Year.

INSIDE INFORMATION

Kin Yat, as a listed corporation, must, as soon as
reasonably practicable after any inside information has
come to its knowledge, disclose the inside information
to the public, unless the information falls with any of
the “Safe Harbours” as provided in SFO. Every Director
must take all reasonable measures from time to time to
ensure that proper safeguards exist to prevent a breach
of a disclosure requirement in relation to the Company.
In addition, as included in our staff handbook, a strict
prohibition to all Directors and relevant employees on
the unauthorised disclosure or use of confidential and
inside information as well as deal in the securities of the
Company when they are in possession of undisclosed

inside information.

To fulfil the disclosure obligation, during the Year, the
Company has disclosed inside information to the market
as a whole by way of the electronic publication system
operated by the Stock Exchange and other means in
accordance with the Listing Rules so that all participants
of the market have equal and simultaneous access to the

same information.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Chan Ho Man (“Mr. Chan”) has been appointed as
the company secretary of the Company since 1996 and
is responsible for overseeing all the company secretarial
matters of the Group. Mr. Chan is a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and an
associate member of the HKICPA.

Mr. Chan confirmed that he has taken no less than 15
hours of relevant professional training during the Year.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS
Shareholders’ Rights

1.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 4 [Z i

Rights to convene Special General Meeting
Pursuant to the Bye-Laws, any one or more
registered shareholders holding at the date of
deposit of the requisition not less than 10% of the
paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of
voting at the general meetings of the Company shall
at all times have the right, by a written requisition,
to require a special general meeting to be called
by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall
be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition.

The written requisition must state the purpose of
the meeting, signed by the requisitionist(s) and be
delivered to the Board or the company secretary of
the Company at the Company’s principal place of
business at 7/F., Galaxy Factory Building, 25-27 Luk
Hop Street, San Po Kong, Kowloon, Hong Kong, and
such may consist of several documents in like form,
each signed by one or more requisitionist(s).

If within twenty-one days of such deposit the
Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting,
the requisitionists themselves or any of them
represented more than one half of the total voting
rights of all of them, may convene a meeting in
accordance with the provisions of Section 74(3) of
the Companies Act of Bermuda.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS (continued)

Shareholders’ Rights (continued)

2.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at
shareholders’ meetings

Any one or more registered shareholders, at the
date of submission of written requisition, represents
either (a) not less than 5% of the total voting rights
of all shareholders; or (b) not less than one hundred
shareholders, entitled to submit a written requisition
for putting forward proposals at the general meeting.

The written requisition duly signed by the registered
shareholders, must state the purpose of the written
requisition, together with a statement of not more
than one thousand words with respect to the matter
referred to in the proposed resolution must be
deposited at the principal place of business in Hong
Kong, not less than six weeks before the general
meeting in case of a requisition requiring notice of a
resolution; or not less than one week in case of other
requisition.

Procedures for directing shareholders’
enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries to
the Board in writing through the company secretary
of the Company whose contact details are as
follows:

7/F., Galaxy Factory Building, 25-27 Luk Hop Street,
San Po Kong, Kowloon, Hong Kong

Fax: (852)-2351-1867
Email: webmaster@kinyat.com.hk
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS (continued)

Investor Relations

2
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Shareholders’ communication

The Board recognises the importance of maintaining
clear, timely and effective communications
with shareholders. Annual and interim reports
are published to provide shareholders with
comprehensive information of the Company’s
operational and financial performances. The
Company practices timely dissemination
of information and makes sure its website
(www.kinyat.com.hk) contains the most current
information, including annual reports, interim reports,
announcements, monthly returns and press releases,
and is updated in a timely manner to ensure
transparency.

The Board endeavour to maintain an ongoing and
transparent communications with all shareholders
and, in particular, use general meeting as a platform
for shareholders to state and exchange views with
the Board directly and encourage their participation.
The Directors are available to answer questions from
shareholders throughout an annual general meeting.
External auditor is also available at an annual
general meeting to address shareholders’ queries in
accordance to the requirements of applicable Listing
Rules.

The annual general meeting for the year of 2019
of the Company (the “2019 AGM”) was held on 28
August 2019 and all the members of the Board
together with the external auditor presented in the
2019 AGM. Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing
Rules, any vote of shareholders on all resolutions
at general meetings must be taken by poll. The poll
results in respect of the resolutions proposed at the
2019 AGM were published on the websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company on 28 August
2019.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS (continued)

Investor Relations (continued)

72

Shareholders’ communication (continued)

The annual general meeting for the year of 2020
of the Company (the “2020 AGM”) will be held on
Friday, 21 August 2020, for details of the information
on the 2020 AGM, please refer to this annual report
and its accompanying Explanatory Statement.

The Board continues to maintain regular dialogue
with financial analysts and institutional investors
as appropriate to keep them informed the
Group’s strategies, operations, management and
plans. In order to strengthen the bi-directional
communications between the Company,
shareholders and investors, an email contact
(webmaster@kinyat.com.hk) responded by senior
management of the Company are available to
shareholders and investors.

Sufficient and timely information

The Board recognises the significance of providing
information to shareholders to enable each
shareholder to make an informed assessment for
the purposes of voting on each of the matter put
before shareholders at the general meeting. Copies
of the annual report, financial statements and related
documents are despatched to shareholders in
accordance with the statutory requirements.

Significant constitutional documents
There was no change in the Company’s
constitutional document for the Year.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS (continued)
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Investor Relations (continued) REEBR(E)
4. Dividend Policy 4. REBF
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Sharing the fruit of our effort and providing a stable and
sustainable return to our shareholders is our goal. The
Company has adopted a Dividend Policy (the “Dividend
Policy”) which is a guideline on distribution of dividends
to shareholders of the Company.

In considering the payment of dividends, there
shall be a balance between maintaining sufficient
capital for expanding the Group’s business as well
as rewarding the shareholders of the Company.
The Board shall also take into account, among
other things, when considering the declaration and
payments of dividends:

- the actual and expected financial performance
of the Group;

AERMBNOXR - AREEGEEE
GRECCEEVEEEE REIND
ERBREBE ([ REBHE) (FAAIR
BREFAARBEZ I3 -

ZRIRMNBER  BEARARESH
AEBERREBUANEDRRARFBRRZ
BESFE  EFTEERE IR MK K
ERTAZE(REPEE)ATEE:

- AKEZERMBHMBRER

- the capital and debt level of the Group; - AKREFEZE® KEBEKE
- the general market conditions; - —RmEARR

- any working capital and capital expenditure
requirement;

- any future development plans of the Group;

- retained earnings and distributable reserves of
the Company and each of the members of the
Group;

- [ERZEEESNEAFEER:

- AEEZRREBEREREED
— ARFAUEAREEEXERRZ
RE BN N A DIk

- the liquidity position of the Group; — AEBZRBESMKR

— any restrictions on dividend payouts imposed — KREBFERAMBNZ D IREKER
by any of the Group’s lenders; il

- the statutory and regulatory restrictions which — AREBETHEBSTZEENREES
the Group is subject to from time to time; and B4l &

- any other relevant factors that the Board may
deem appropriate.

Under our Dividend Policy, the recommendation
of the payment of any dividend is subject to the
absolute discretion of the Board as well as any
restrictions under the law’s requirements of Bermuda
and Hong Kong, the Listing Rules and the Bye-Laws
of the Company. The declaration of final dividend will
be subject to the approval of the shareholders.

The Dividend Policy shall in no way constitute
a legally binding commitment by the Company
in respect of its future dividend. In addition, any
dividend unclaimed shall be forfeited and shall revert
to the Company in accordance with the Bye-Laws of
the Company.
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DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION OF
DIRECTORS UNDER RULE 13.51(B)(1)
OF THE LISTING RULES

Pursuant to Rule 13.51(B)(1) of the Listing Rules, there is
no changes in information of the Directors subsequent to
the date of the 2019/2020 interim report of the Company.

THE ATTENDANCE RECORD OF EACH
MEMBER OF THE BOARD IN 2019/2020
The number of Annual General Meeting, Board and its

Committees meetings attended by each Director for the
Year.

B £ 8 Bl 513.51(B) (1) #
EEEEH

BiE FHRAE13.51B)(1)E  RAQAF-F
—N/—E_TFEREREARE  EF
BRI E o

—E-N/CR-BEEERE
MBHEEEEE

REAFERN BUEEMHFEZRRBFAX
€ EFSREFZEEERRH-

Annual Special

General General Full Remuneration ~ Nomination Audit

Meeting Meeting** board Committee Committee Committee
Name of Director BEEfg BRRBEFAE RREIAE+ 28EEE HHZEE REZEE EBRZES
Executive Directors HTES
Mr. Cheng Chor Kit BhxE 11 1 4/4 11 1 NATER
Mr. Fung Wah Cheong, Vincent B & %4 il 11 4/4 11 il N/A @ B
Mr. Liu Tat Luen BEELE 11 i 4/4 N/A AjE N/A RiEA N/A A8
Mr. Cheng Tsz To BrEist 11 11 4/4 N/A A& N/A RiE A N/A A58
Mr. Cheng Tsz Hang BrEnt 1/1 1/1 44 NATER  NATER  NATER
Mr. Hui Ka Po, Alex* FRRE A N/A N E A N/A FiE R 0/1 N/A 8 N/A i A N/A N E R
Independent non-executive BIHTES

Directors

Mr. Wong Chi Wai Elsis 1/1 1/1 4/4 1/1 1/1 1/1
Dr. Sun Kwai Yu, Vivian ZENET 11 i 4/4 /1 11 11
Mr. Cheng Kwok Kin, Paul BEZEE 11 1/1 4/4 1/1 11 111
Mr. Cheung Wang Ip REERE 11 1/1 4/4 1/1 1/1 1/1
* Mr. Hui Ka Po, Alex had resigned as an executive director with effective from 8 July 2019.

HARREEEBHERTEE BT NFLANBRBER-

** The Special General Meeting of the Company held on 30 March 2020.

AARIRREIAGER S -_TEF=A=+HET-
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

_a

pwec

To the Shareholders of Kin Yat Holdings Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Kin Yat Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
set out on pages 86 to 243, which comprise:

° the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 March 2020;

° the consolidated income statement for the year then
ended;

° the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income for the year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of changes in equity for
the year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended; and

o the notes to the consolidated financial statements,
which include a summary of significant accounting
policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 31 March 2020, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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18 M % BLED R

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgement, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised
as follows:

o Fair value estimation of freehold land and buildings
and investment properties

° Provision for inventories
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

B M % AR S

BRETEEH @

Key Audit Matter
HRETBR

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RPN EFNATEEBRENSE

Fair value estimation of freehold land and buildings and investment properties

KARBELIHRBTFURRENEN D FEMES

Refer to Notes 4.1(a), 15 and 16 to the consolidated
financial statements.

FLMSEEU B HRENE41(@) - 156216 °

As at 31 March 2020, the Group had freehold

land and buildings of HK$330,485,000 included

in property, plant and equipment, and investment
properties of HK$57,975,000. The revaluation
deficit and fair value loss recognised during the
year amounted to HK$4,864,000 and HK$229,000,
respectively

MRZBEZZTF=A=+—H0  E5EFHEKAERE
+ ih K 42 F330,485,0008 7T (BERME - BE K&
B RITE W ES7,975,0008 7T + FAD B ERE
BB R A FEE5 184,864,000/ 7T K. 229,000/ 7T °

Management engaged an external valuer to
determine the year-end fair value of the freehold
land and buildings, and investment properties
based on market comparable method or direct
replacement cost method. The valuations are
dependent on certain key assumptions that require
significant management judgement, including
estimated useful life, unit rates, replacement cost,
and capitalisation rate.

ERERE —ZIBEEMBETISLEAREE
BERRNEZEEKAZRL M RBFUARREYE
RERBNRFE- - HERARTEZERE i%l"%utﬁ
BE TERMER - SEMEERAIERF  BE -
AR R B A& e

We focused on this area due to the significance of
the balance and significant management judgement
and estimates involved in the fair value estimation
of freehold land and buildings and investment
properties.

BMEITNUER AN ERERRKAERE L
REFURREMEN AT EMGT I REREEEH
A fhET o

Our procedures in relation to management’s
valuation of freehold land and buildings and
investment properties included:
BPEREHKAREL MW EETUALIREY X
WEERITHIZEF B

° Evaluation of the external property valuers’
competence, capabilities and objectivity;

FHESNEMEGHEMNERE - e W NEBIKE

o Involving our in-house valuation experts to
assess the methodologies used in valuation by
referencing to market practices;
FERAFABYEEZERSEMISE I LART 4
HEMRANTE

° Involving our in-house valuation experts
to assess the appropriateness of the key
assumptions of estimated useful life, unit rates,
replacement costs, and capitalisation rate by
referencing to market data; and
HERIAMAMBHHEZERLSE TS BB G
IO RAEH  BE SERNARERNMCER
FRERRNBRENL &

° Assessing the appropriateness of the
disclosures in the financial statements.

AHEMBHRREBEZTENREE -

We found the assessment were supported by the
available evidence. We found the disclosures to be
appropriate.
EMBRTECERERE
ZHERE -

B o BAPIE IR E
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

BRETEEH @

Key Audit Matter
BREENSE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EMNESTONEEBRENSE

Provision for inventories

FERHE

Refer to Notes 4.1(b) and 22 to the consolidated
financial statements.

FELMEAU B RERWEL () K22 -

At 31 March 2020, the Group held inventories of
HK$319,943,000 and the provision for obsolete

or slow moving inventories was HK$21,363,000.
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and

net realisable value in the consolidated financial
statements. Management assesses the provision for
obsolete or slow moving inventories at each period
end based on their consideration of obsolescence
and the net realisable value of inventories. The
determination of estimated selling price less cost to
sell requires the use of significant judgement and
estimates, including consideration of condition of
products, latest selling price, expectation of future
sales orders, market trends and customer demands.
RZE_ZTF=A=+—H BE5EFENF

B /319,943,000 T - RESFHTFERBR
21,363,000/ 7T ° be\ﬁzﬁﬁizﬁﬁ—fmfﬁ@ﬁ?ﬁ%m?
BRERGEMBHRERINE BEEERNHGFERE
BEIEAEZRFENZSE REHAREREL
HHEENBEETNG BEEASERHEENX
AEECAERAEG MG - BEHEMRR - &I
HIEE  RRHEEFENTEE  MSEBEREPTX
HEE -

We focused on this area due to the significance of
the balance and, significant management judgement
and estimates involved in determining the provision
for obsolete or slow moving inventories.

BT IR UEREDHNEREAREEREL R

HEERERY RENEEEHE MG

Our key procedures in relation to management’s
assessment of the provision for obsolete or slow
moving inventories included:
BMEREEHRESFHETERBRET AT
HERIEF B -

° Understanding and validating key control
procedures over the aging schedule and the
estimation of inventory provision;

BRI ZEHRKRGERNEERBEFOHE
WREHIRE R

° Testing, on a sample basis, the net
realisable value of selected inventory items,
by comparing the carrying amount of the
inventory items against their selling price
subsequent to the year end;
KAMEAALEMEFENREESANEF
R ERB  HMETENZR FEETH

2

° Attending the inventory count to observe the
inventory condition;

SEGFERMUBRGFEMRR

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED w5 E AR A A
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B %A RS

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued) AR ESTEIE ()
Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BAEENSE KN ESTNMEERERETSE
Provision for inventories
FERE

o Testing, on a sample basis, the accuracy of
the ageing profile of individual inventory items
by checking to the underlying procurement
correspondence and invoices; and
KAMEAABREEERBEERMEZROAH
BERIFERERENERE &

° Assessing the reasonableness of inventory
provision by comparing against historical sales
or usage pattern.

BBEFESL EERERENETHLER  FEF
ERENaEE -

We found that management’s assessment of the
provision for obsolete or slow moving inventories
was supported by the available audit evidence.
BMEREREYREIFHEFERBNTGHEE
FBMBE B -
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises all of
the information included in the annual report other than
the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon, which we obtained prior to the date
of this auditor’s report, and the Environmental, Social
and Governance Report, which is expected to be made
available to us after that date.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

When we read the Environmental, Social and Governance
Report, if we conclude that there is a material
misstatement therein, we are required to communicate
the matter to the directors and take appropriate action
considering our legal rights and obligations.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS
AND THE AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA, and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED #E#&EBAR A7
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with Section 90 of Companies Act
1981 of Bermuda and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 4 [Z i
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the
directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED #E#&EBAR A7
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit
Committee, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Ms. Chung Kit Vi, Kitty.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 29 June 2020
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

e W R

For the year ended 31 March 2020
HE_Z-_ZTF=FA=1+—HIFE

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income and gains, net

Selling and distribution expenses
Administrative expenses

Impairment losses on financial assets
Finance costs, net

Share of losses of associates

Profit before income tax
Income tax expense

Profit for the year from
continuing operations

Discontinued operation
Loss for the year from
discontinued operation

Profit for the year

Profit/(loss) attributable to:

Equity holders of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Profit/(loss) attributable to the
equity holders of the Company
arisen from:

Continuing operations
Discontinued operation

iy 2

35 & AR

EH

H g AR s F5
HERDHAX
1T X

TREEZRERBRE
MBER  F8
FEREE RAIZ BB

B FT 15 %5 A0 28 A
PSR X

FEEEER 2
FREF

ERIEREEK
ERIEEERH
FAREE

FRE R

U & IE fEfh s F,
(B#]) -
RRAFEZFTAA
FEIRR R

ARTEBEEFEEA
FEMRSEF (BR)
E£B:

FE TS

ERIEREXRH

The above consolidated income statement should be read
in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED

BasEARAR

2020 2019

—E-EF —E-NF
Notes HK$°000 HK$’000
raF FETT FET
(Restated)

(& E7))
5 3,114,221 4,139,886
8 (2,780,880) (3,850,010)
333,341 289,876

6 101,647 76,412
8 (46,791) (66,619)
8 (169,759) (148,418)
(3,283) (3,299)
7 (17,742) (12,729)
21 (955) (827)
196,458 134,396
11 (22,821) (19,178)
173,637 115,218
(8,272) (4,807)

165,365 110,411

170,049 112,384
(4,684) (1,973)

165,365 110,411

175,343 115,598
(5,294) (3,214)

170,049 112,384

i AR S W a2k B 22 [ BB B B s — R B GE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
mEEERER

For the year ended 31 March 2020
HE_Z_TF=-A=+—HLEFE

2020 2019
—E-EHE —ZET-NF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
bt FET FET
(Restated)
(gg=E5)
Profit for the year FREF 165,365 110,411
Other comprehensive loss arising REFEREERZ
from continuing operations: Hih2HEEE -
Item that may be reclassified to the A E D2 W K
income statement: ZIEE
Exchange translation reserve on BREGIEBEEZ
translation of foreign operations bE 5 e (88,942) (76,878)
________ (68,942) (76,878
Other comprehensive (loss)/income not R H & Hif&] 1~ & & #
to be reclassified to the income DEBEW R EM
statement in subsequent periods: 2EH (EE) . Was -
(Deficit)/surplus on revaluation of land T REFEM
and buildings (B /B (4,864) 68,930
Deferred tax credited/(debited) to REESLEFEE
asset revaluation reserve A (F0RR)
ZIEEFI IR 30 3,576 (13,977)
__________ (1,288) 54,953
Other comprehensive loss arising RECRIEBEEK
from discontinued operation: Htt2mEIE :
Item that may be reclassified to the A] #7728 2 Y 75 7%
income statement: ZHEA -
Exchange translation reserve on BREGINEBEEZ
translation of foreign operations bE 5 27 (262 (19
Other comprehensive loss FRAHEHME2EERE
for the year, net of tax MERBLIE (90,492) (21,943)
Total comprehensive income FRAEZHEHKEETRE
for the year 74,873 88,468
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

AeZHEWEKR

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BRE_Z-_TEF=_A=1+T—HILFE

2020 2019
—E-EHE —T—hF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
iz FET FET
(Restated)
(& E7))
Total comprehensive income/(loss) UT&EEGEFAZE
for the year attributable to: Wz (B58) #58 .
Equity holders of the Company ZANYNIE: EE S TS DN 79,462 90,519
Non-controlling interests FEVE A R 2 (4,589) (2,051)
74,873 88,468
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for XA TR EFE AL
the year attributable to equity holders FRZEW
of the Company arisen from: (BR)BAEELR
Continuing operations BECEER 84,923 93,745
Discontinued operation BRI E T (5,461) (3,226)
79,462 90,519
Earnings/(losses) per share EATERITEAEMN
attributable to equity holders BRERN(FE)
of the Company
Basic BN
Continuing operations SEICE XTI HK39.95 cents %fll  HK26.34 cents 71l
Discontinued operation ERIEEEER HK(1.21) cents 4l HK(0.73) cents il
Total — included discontinued operation %2t — 8 #FE 2 &K1
REET 13 HK38.74 cents &l  HK25.61 cents I
Diluted e
Continuing operations SRS EET HK39.95 cents &fl  HK26.32 cents il
Discontinued operation B T HK(1.21) cents 1l HK(0.73) cents 7l
Total — included discontinued operation #2:t —8#FE 2 K1
REER 13 HK38.74 cents &fl  HK25.59 cents il
The above consolidated statement of comprehensive il hR A 2 U ES K R I8 R BE B B 5 — 61 B
income should be read in conjunction with the iE o

accompanying notes.

88 KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED &E#&EABR AR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e MR R

As at 31 March 2020
R—ZZE-_TF=A=+—H

2020 2019
—E-EF —E-hF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
otz FET FAET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets EREBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - WENMKRE 15 989,154 1,123,724
Investment properties HEYE 16 57,975 65,070
Prepaid land lease payments AR THEE 17 - 23,437
Right-of-use assets CREEE 17 26,243 -
Properties under development ERPME 19 42,534 44,847
Intangible assets mEEE 18 7,873 35,779
Investments in associates REEE AR ZIEE 21 4,854 12,065
Financial assets at fair value BBEBEDREZEATFEYEE
through profit or loss LERMEE 25 12,336 -
Prepayments and deposits ENFIENES 24 163,964 210,642
Deferred tax assets BEETIAE E 30 20,886 25,920
Total non-current assets nBEEME 1,325,819 1,541,484
Current assets RBEE
Properties under development BRPWE 19 269,847 485,863
Completed properties held for sale #H{EHEZ R T W% 20 154,464 -
Inventories PENCY 22 298,580 615,365
Accounts and bills receivable JiE g B 3 N R 23 221,017 312,149
Contract assets BHEE 5(d) - 22,983
Prepayments and deposits FENFRIBERES 24 190,221 155,772
Financial assets at fair value BRBEREAFEYEREZ
through profit or loss TREE 25 8,533 14,140
Tax recoverable A Uk B 75 18 2,480 791
Time deposits EHF R 26 14,641 13,754
Restricted bank deposits TR ERITIER 26 11,925 5,017
Cash and cash equivalents RekRESERY 26 244,681 222,153
1,416,389 1,847,987
Assets classified as held for sale DEALELE 27 132,153 -
Total current assets mENAEMRE 1,548,542 1,847,987
Total assets BHEE 2,874,361 3,389,471
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to equity KA EZIFENEN
holders of the Company s
Share capital [N 31 43,896 43,896
Reserves H 33 1,182,024 1,161,616
1,225,920 1,205,512
Non-controlling interests FERERS 162 4,414
Total equity A 1,226,082 1,209,926
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e B R IR R 3R

As at 31 March 2020
R-E-_FEF=AH=+—H

LIABILITIES

Non-current liabilities

Deferred income and other payable
Bank borrowings

Lease liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities

Total non-current liabilities

Current liabilities

Accounts and bills payable,
other payables and provisions

Contract liabilities

Bank borrowings

Lease liabilities

Tax payable

Liabilities directly associated with
assets classified as held for sale

Total current liabilities
Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

af\

FRBEE

A SE WA B L A B A5 R IR
RITIEE

HE&RE

EENIARE

ERBaERR

REBAEE
e R A R RE -

Ho Al &S SRR S B R
BHAERE
RITEE
HEBRE

FET IR
HBoEABIEHEEE
HEEHEzaE
e AERTE

MmaE

HERKAE

The above consolidation statement of financial position
should be read in conjunction with the accompanying

notes.

These consolidated financial statements on pages 86
to 243 have been approved for issue by the Board of
Directors on 29 June 2020 and were signed on its behalf.

Cheng Chor Kit

R A

Director

EZE

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED w5 E AR A A

2020 2019

—E_FF —TNF

Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
iz FET THET
28 83,371 82,090
29 263,566 =
17 2,150 -
30 33,718 57,285
382,805 139,375

28 624,131 1,000,597
5(d) 68,092 166,181
29 413,243 810,106
17 1,850 -
62,562 63,286

1,169,878 2,040,170

27 95,596 -
1,265,474 2,040,170

1,648,279 2,179,545

2,874,361 3,389,471

st R A B RS AR 0 5K A2 (R I Y B R — B B

mJEH

o

F=1I13

l

FOOE243B A EHR AV B RRERES
EN_TE-F E/—H +HBHERITI R

o

THEFRERR

Fung Wah Cheong, Vincent

BES
Director

EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

GEEmBER

For the year ended 31 March 2020
HE_Z_TF=-A=1+—HLEFE

At 31 March 2019
Effect on adoption of HKFRS 16 (Note 2.3)

At April 2019

Revaluation deficit, net (Note 1)
Deferred tax credited to asset revaluation reserve

Exchange translation on translation of foreign
operations

Deferred tax credited to asset revaluation reserve
upon disposal of property, plant and equipment

Deferred tax credited to asset revaluation reserve
upon disposal of a subsidiary

Proft for the year

Total comprehensive income/loss) for the year

Capital injection by non-controling interest to
a subsidiary

Release of asset revaluation surplus upon
disposal of property, plant and equipment

Release of asset revaluation surplus upon
disposal of a subsidiary

Lapse of share option (Note 32)

Disposal of subsidiaries

At 31 March 2020

At 31 March 2018
Revaluation surplus, net (Note 15)
Deferred tax debited to asset revaluation reserve

Exchange translation on translation of

foreign operations
Profit for the year

Total comprehensive income(loss) for the year
Final 2018 dividend paid (Note 12)

Interim 2019 dividend paid (Note 12)
Issue of shares (Note 31)

Non-controling interest arose from acquisition
Equity-settled share option expense (Note 9(a))

At 31 March 2019

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

RZF-NE=A=1-8

RE-NEDA-R

Bt #
HAAEERRRZ
EiEHA
BEBNEHIERER

HENE BRRRER
SAREERREELHE
HE-ERBANRTA
BEEHARZELHE
ERai

FhemEbE/ (BB 4E
FrkEER-BHELR
hid

HENE BRRRERER
AEERER
E-BHBLTHRR
AEERER

BREXN (%)
HEHBAT

ENEBENEE

ERREhE/ (FR)LE
EffZF-/\FRARE

kb Hisr)

BBELZHERE

EREE BRE
R (9

Bk

R=E-NE=RA=1-A

ADAREREAER
Reserves
]
Share-
Share based Asset Exchange  Capital Non-
Share  premium  payment revaluation translation redemption Contributed Other  Retained Total controlling Total
capital  account  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  surplus  reserve profits  reserves interests equity
HRHA

BN BEER BARE
ke RHEER ARERE i EXEE B HARR HbEE REEN  GEEE FERER  REAE
HK$000  HK$'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$000  HKS000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000
Fér  FEr  FEr  TEr TEr TEr TEr FEr FEr FET TR FEn
4389 156,015 3921 218369 (20,694) 1% 6,150 (8,040) 806,775 1,161,616 4414 1,200,926
- - - (14149 - - - - 15005 (59,054 - (59,054
4389 156,015 3921 144220 (20,694) 14 6,150 (8,040) 821,870 1,102,562 444 1150872
- - - (4,864) - - - - - (4,864) - (4,864)
- - - 704 - - - - - 704 - 04
- - - - (89299 - - - - (89,299 95 (89,204
- - - 2,263 - - - - - 2,263 - 2,263
- - - 609 - - - - - 609 - 609
- - - - - - - - 170049 170,049 (4,684) 165,365
- - - (1,288 (89,299) - - - 170049 79,462 (4589) 74873
- - - - - - - - - - 349 349
- - - (4,691) - - - - 4,691 - - -
- - - (2,644) - - - - 2,644 - - -
- - (2,159) - - - - - 2,159 - - -
- - - - - - - - - - (12 (12)
4389 156,015 1,768 135,507 (109,093) 14 6,150 (8,040) 1,001,413 1,182,024 162 1,226,082
43846 154672 3209 163416 56,124 14 6,150 (8940) 738287 1,112932 1,266 1,158,044
- - - 68,930 - - - - - 68,930 - 68930
- - (1397) - - - - - (1397) - (1397)
- - - - (16818 - - - - (76818 (18 (76,89%)
- - - - - - - - 112384 112384 (1978 110411
- - - 54953 (76818 - - - 12,3 90,519 (2,081) 88468
- - - - - - - - 078 (30728 - 30728
(13168 (13,169 - (13,168)
50 1,343 (262) — - B - - - 1,081 289 1420
- - - - - - - - - - 4910 4910
- - 980 - - - - - - 980 - 90
438% 156,015 397 218369 (20,694 14 6,150 (8940) 806,775 1,161,616 44141200926

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 4 [Z i

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED &#&BEAR A A

91



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
RERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BRE_Z-_TEF=_A=1+T—HILFE

2020 2019
g S 3 “2-NE
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
hriz FAET FET
(Restated)
(&E5)
Cash flows from operating activities RETEH HERE
Profit before tax W B A T 196,458 134,396
Adjustments for: RATEBEELAZ
Interest expenses FlEHZ 7 18,945 14,135
Bank interest income HBITHEWA 7 (1,209) (1,406)
Fair value loss/(gain) on financial assets at BRERRATEIE L
fair value through profit or loss, net CRMEEZLTFEERE/
(W) - 58 6 4,956 (6,720)
Fair value loss/(gain) on investment BEMELATFEZ
properties BB/ (M) 6 229 (5,383)
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - HEMRENE
equipment 8 114,167 101,850
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CREEENE 8 3,771 -
Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments  FBff it fA £ B 35 8 - 650
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, plant and ~ HEME - BE K&
equipment, net B/ () 38 6 622 (1,438)
Provision for impairment of financial assets TREERERE 3,283 3,299
(Write-back)/provision for impairment of BERE (D), BE
inventories, net FE 8 (12,725) 3,034
Equity-settled share option expense DEGEE 7 BRERY - 980
Gain on disposal of an associate HE—HBE AR 6 (1,013) -
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary ik =N 6 (31,416) -
Gain on disposal of a property HE— IR 2 e 6 (16,842) -
Share of losses of investments in associates ~ EHREE ARG ZE B 955 827
Deferred government subsidies income BT EUE R B A (16,021) (32,262)
Write-off/(Write back of impairment) of ME  BERREME/
property, plant and equipment (RERE) 5,624 (7,189)
269,790 204,773
Decrease in completed properties held for sale #H{EHE v & TH ¥ 69,832 -
Increase in properties under development EREPYERN (65,670) (127,165)
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERD /(2 312,565 (156,362)
Decrease/(increase) in accounts and YR R R,/ ()
bills receivable 58,039 (72,045)
Increase in prepayments and deposits BRRERRSEMN (1,007) (4,796)
(Decrease)/increase in accounts and bills ERERRER - B EMNFE
payable, other payables and provision REHCRD) /M (298,778) 109,538
(Decrease)/increase in contract liabilities ANEBECHD) /B (99,343) 27,068
Increase in restricted bank deposits SR BRI T LM (6,730) -
Decrease in financial assets at BERBREATEIEY
fair value through profit or loss SREERD 3,936 23,886
Cash generated from continuing operations SECEEBMELRS 242,634 4,897
Interest received B B 1,203 1,406
Interest paid ETFLE (27,793) (23,895)
Hong Kong profits tax paid ENABNEH (11,251) (5,856)
Overseas income taxes paid BB S B (7,787) (5,896)
Net cash (used in)/generated from operating ~ E#RIFELER 7 KL EE
activities from discontinued operation (i) /EXvBeFE 27 (2,826) 1,107
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from TETHZBERAN/ (L) 38
operating activities 194,180 (28,237)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of a subsidiary, net of
cash acquired
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Increase in short-term bank deposits
Investment in financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of a property
Net cash inflow as a result of disposal of
a subsidiary
Proceeds from disposal of
investment property
Net cash used in investing activities from
discontinued operation

Net cash outflow from investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from issues of shares upon
exercise of share options

Dividends paid

Proceeds from bank borrowings

Proceeds from other financing

Repayment of other financing

Repayment of lease liabilities

Repayment of bank borrowings

Capital injection to discontinued operation

Net cash generated from financing activities
from discontinued operation

Net cash (outflow)/inflow from financing
activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the
beginning of year

Effect of exchange rate changes on
cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year

Analysis of balances of cash and cash
equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents included in assets
classified as held for sale
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RETHIALHE
e I G
FERE

BENE  BERRH
EERTEREN
FBEREATEIIEY
SRMEERA
HEDE - PR RRERERE

HE—BMEZREHE

ﬁ%g%%%@ﬂZﬁ@ﬁA
x|

HMEREMERSHE

ERIBEXB I REED
FRZREFE

RERBZRTREFER

MEEBCRERE
TEBBENETRNELL

BiTEEEL Y FERE
EMBEEE FERE
AT
RERESR
BERTR
CErA L EY 3
BELEEER B
EOELRLFE

HEEDZBS (R,
RAEE

ReRBEERN

12 nEE
FNZBERALERY
ExEsURe LR SR

=2
e

FRZAERBEERN

RERREERNEHIN
RERRAEFAN

BERDESREHEEECRS

LEEERM

= A\ N — |

mEBRERER
For the year ended 31 March 2020

HE_Z-_ZTF=FA=1+—HILFE

2020 2019

—g_%s —E-hfE

Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
ik FET FET
(Restated)

(e E5)
- (36,791)
(115,663) (316,196)
(868) (2,109)

(15,621) -

35(a) 3,154 10,639
17,290 -

34(b) 39,448 -
16 3,609 -
27 (1,952) (1,762)
(70,603) (346,219

31 - 1,131
12 - (43,896)
488,582 648,597

34,267 162,342

(571) -

(3,268) -
(616,495) (366,178)

(5,324) -

27 5,324 -
(97,485) 401,996

26,092 27,540

222,153 199,855
(2,969) (5,242)

245,276 222,183

26 244,681 222,158
27 595 -
245,276 222,153
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Kin Yat Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) are principally
engaged in the design, manufacture and sale
of electrical and electronic products, motors,
glass technology and application and real estate
development.

The Company is a limited liability company
incorporated in Bermuda. The address of its
registered office is 7/F., Galaxy Factory Building, 25-
27 Luk Hop Street, San Po Kong, Kowloon, Hong
Kong.

The ordinary shares of the Company are listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.

The Company is a subsidiary of Resplendent Global
Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands. The directors of the Company consider
Padora Global Inc., a company also incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands, to be the ultimate holding
company of the Company.

Comparative amounts in certain notes have been
reclassified to conform with the current year’s
presentation.

These financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HKD”), unless otherwise stated.

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED #E#&EBAR A7

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 i a MY =

—REH

EaEEARAR ([ARA]) REHE
RAE(BEIAEE]) T2RERT  #
ENHEERLAETER  EH KB
Rtk ERIAREHEERR -

ARBRB—FRBREEMKILZAR
N HiEfM SRt REENEN
SRR 2R 2T HRER TMAEE -

RAREBBEREEMARZABRA
AlEMRLEM -

R 7 AResplendent Global LimitedZ
WEBRAR  ZAaRNEBE TS M
B 37 ° 7N A B] ¥ F 3R BPadora Global
Inc. (MAREBELZBESHMKZZA
) BARRAZEEERAF -

ETHREZEREBEKLEHROHE - AU
NERNFEZZY -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

This note provides a list of the significant accounting
policies adopted in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated. The financial
statements are for the Group consisting of the
Company and its subsidiaries.

2.1 Restatements due to discontinued

operation

The presentation of comparative information in
respect of the consolidated income statement,
the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year ended 31 March
2019 has been restated in order to disclose
the discontinued operation separately from
continuing operations.

As the restatements do not affect the
consolidated statement of financial position,
it is not necessary to disclose comparative
information as at 1 April 2018.

B 7% ¥R AR MY 5

TEESTHEBE

AR R R AR TR A M RRE A
KRNI ESABREE -BE5FHA
S ZEBRRAAZ2BFEER
R - UHBEB/AKE (BARAR
HBARAR) RE -

21 RERLREXBEHRZY

HzE-_Z—NAF=ZA=+—81
FEZEARSER  KezmEkE
ERIEEHEREROEBRER
BB ED - UEBBER LS
EBEFBECEEROHEE -

HREMZINTZEHEA MBI
nER - AESFERENR_FT—\F
OA—BHLLEER -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% ¥R AR MY 5

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Basis of preparation

(a)

(b)

Compliance with HKFRS and HKCO

The consolidated financial statements
of the Group have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”) and
disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance Cap. 622.

Historical cost convention

The consolidated financial statements
have been prepared on a historical cost
basis, except for certain financial assets,
certain classes of property, plant and
equipment and investment properties,
which are measured at fair value.

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED w5 E AR A A

2 FESHBEBE )

22 REEEE
(a) BTEBUKBREEARSE
B A TR

(b)

REBEREMBEHRE THIRR
BB EHE LR ([HEY
HREER]) MBI LGS
622F N Al & B 2 # TR E
mEl o

FE 2 RL A &
A BB mR IR IRE LK
AR ERETARFE
AEZEREE  BFTER
ZME - BB RREI KR
BRI
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Basis of preparation (continued)

(c)

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 4 [Z i

New and amended standards adopted
by the Group

The Group has applied the following
standards and amendments for the first
time for their annual reporting period
commencing 1 April 2019:

Annual Annual
Improvements Improvements
Project 2015-2017 Cycle
(Amendments)

HKAS 19 Plan Amendment,
(Amendments) Curtailment or

Settlement

HKAS 28 Long-term Interests

(Amendments) in Associates and
Joint Ventures

HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features

(Amendments) with Negative
Compensation
HKFRS 16 Leases

HK (IFRIC) — Int 23 Uncertainty over
Income Tax
Treatments

The Group had to change its accounting
policies as a result of adopting HKFRS 16
as disclosed in Note 2.3. This is disclosed
as below. The other amendments listed
above did not have any impact on the
amounts recognised in prior periods and
are not expected to significantly affect the
current or future periods.

B 7% ¥R AR MY 5

2 FESHBEBRE®E)

22 wREEE(E)

(c)
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RIER TR RAEFT A
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) BHRZFE

R

EEEIE BT B
RIZ19% WLk
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BEEHE RBERAR
RIZ8T  AEREY

(1BETA) REIER
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(1BET &)

HEVKH HE
HAHERE

1658

BB (BB MEHEEZ
PBmE THEHEZ
ZEZE

g)— R

T2 E235%

FANFT FE2. 3FT KR ER - A E
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% ¥R AR MY 5

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Basis of preparation (continued)

(d)

New standards and amendments to
HKFRS in issue but not yet effective
Certain new accounting standards and
amendments have been published that
are not mandatory for 31 March 2020
reporting periods and have not been early
adopted by the Group.

HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 (Amendments) Amendments to Definition

2 FESTTHEMEME®)

22 mBEEHE(E)

(d)

CEMAEERERZEBTE
ERER 2 AR RIBFT A
R-_E-_EF=ZA=+—H
WEHEEB/ME KRR E
MEAREBMIWERFHEMAZ
AT SRR RISFTA »

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
RUTBEHSEZ#%
HHrzastBER

1 April 2020

R G ERFE15H K E8HR of Material —ZT_ZTFMA—H
(EFTA) HEZL R EEEET

HKFRS 3 (Amendments) Definition of Business 1 April 2020

BBV BREEUNEI (BEIXR) EHHNTE —E-_EFMA—H

HKAS 39, HKFRS 7 and Hedge accounting 1 April 2020
HKFRS 9 (Amendments) Epih- 4 —E-_ETFMA—H

BB S ERFEI9 - BB
B sR S ERIE 78R BB
B 15 3R &5 Y E RIS 0%k (85T K)

Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting 2018
“E-N\FUBRERSIESR

HKFRS 16 (Amendments)

FRMBHREERE165 (BRI A)

HKFRS 17

RV BREERE175R

HKAS 28 (Amendments) and
HKFRS 10

Revised Conceptual
Framework for Financial
Reporting

AEIEETR I R B fE4E

Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions

2019F7 2t it ik &5
6B = R

Insurance Contracts

R & [A

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its

1 April 2020
—E-FTFHA—H

1 June 2020
—E-FTFRNA—H

1 April 2021
ZE-—FHEA—H
To be determined

fFiE

EB eI ERIZE285% (BRI AN)
REBMEHRELERIFEI105%

Associate or Joint Venture
REEZHRBERFIRE E1

RZEREEL & E

The Group will apply the above new
standards and amendments to standards
when they become effective. The
directors of the Company assess that
the adoption of the new standards
and amendments to standards is not
expected to have any significant impact
on the results and the financial position of
the Group.

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED #E#&EBAR A7

7R ER B bl R R K
Rl Z BRT A e A B
AIRMER] - BARBERZ
APl - BRI SR AT R R
EUPACTIRGS-—F RN S 1
AN EREMRE
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-
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %% i a MY =

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.3 Changes in accounting policy 23 BBEEH

2 FESHBEBRE®E)

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 4 [Z i

This note explains the impact of the adoption
of HKFRS 16 Leases on the Group’s financial
statements.

As indicated in above, the Group has
adopted HKFRS 16 from 1 April 2019 using
the modified retrospective approach without
restating comparatives for the 2019 reporting
period, as permitted under the specific
transition provisions in the standard. The
reclassifications and the adjustments arising
from the new leasing rules are therefore
recognised in the opening balance sheet on 1
April 2019.

On adoption of HKFRS 16, the Group
recognised lease liabilities in relation to
leases which had previously been classified
as ‘operating leases’ under the principles of
HKAS 17. These liabilities were measured
at the present value of the remaining lease
payments, discounted using the lessee’s
incremental borrowing rate as of 1 April 2019.
The weighted average lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate applied to the lease liabilities on
1 April 2019 was 2.2%.

AW ERARBBBM GRS E
A6 HEH N R B MK ®E

B2 488
s 2 o

AN LA ARBBE TN
FOA-HESRENZHEBE
R STRf 7o REER MR AE T B A IR
B B S e 2R RIS 165% T I
AREN -ZE-NFHREHHLE
2 o B - HIEEERFTSIBZ
B OBNAER _T-NAFMN
A—BWNHMEERBERTRESR

RN E B W H S LR F1657
B ARERBEREBERE S
ERETRORADBEAEEH
EIMHERAHERGE - HFR
ERG THENRNRE RAE
EF-NAFOA-HAEADN
HERRMEYR)AE - BAE
“E-AFNA-HNEERE
B FE A I 3538 B A8 R R
72.2% °
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% ¥R AR MY 5

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.3 Changes in accounting policy (continued)

U]

Practical expedients applied

In applying HKFRS 16 for the first
time, the Group has used the following
practical expedients permitted by the
standard:

o applying a single discount rate to a
portfolio of leases with reasonably
similar characteristics;

o accounting for operating leases with
a remaining lease term of less than
12 months as at 1 April 2019 as
short-term leases;

° excluding initial direct costs for
the measurement of the right-
of-use asset at the date of initial
application; and

° using hindsight in determining the
lease term where the contract
contains options to extend or
terminate the lease.

The Group has also elected not to
reassess whether a contract is, or
contains a lease at the date of initial
application. Instead, for contracts
entered into before the transition date
the Group relied on its assessment made
applying HKAS 17 and Interpretation 4
“Determining whether an Arrangement
contains a Lease”.

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED w5 E AR A A

2 FESHBEBE )

23 EEEESF(E)

U]

FEAER RS
PN e
RIZ16HE - AREE (2
TR A R SRV E B 4R
BHR :

S AAH A BBLUE A
484 R — B

\

B¢ B B

e RZITE-NAFMA—H
SR EEIAO R 1218 A/
REHEARY AEH
HE

o RYIFEMABHGERE
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HATEHFRFEENRES
AHEEXBESHEE - MK
Z BBERHAEI LM E
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.3 Changes in accounting policy (continued)

(ii)

(iif)

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 4 [Z i

Measurement of lease liabilities

Operating lease commitments disclosed
as at 31 March 2019

Less: Discounted using the lessee’s
incremental borrowing rate at the
date of initial application

Less: Short-term leases recognised on a
straight-line basis as expense

Lease liability recognised as at
1 April 2019

Of which are:
Current lease liabilities
Non-current lease liabilities

Measurement of right-of-use assets
All the right-of-use assets were measured
on a modified retrospective basis as if the
new rules had always been applied.

Until 31 March 2019, the Group applied
cost model to account for prepaid
land lease payments in the PRC, and
revaluation model to account for the
leasehold land in Hong Kong classified as
property, plant and equipment.

With effect from 1 April 2019, prepaid
land lease payments and leasehold
land previously presented as separate
items on the consolidated statement
of financial position are reclassified as
right-of-use assets as single class of
asset, of which the Group has elected
to measure at cost. As a result, the
leasehold land which was previously
stated at revalued amount was restated
at cost less accumulated depreciation
on the adoption date. Revaluation
reserve amounted to HK$74,149,000
and the associated deferred tax liabilities
amounted to HK$14,652,000 were
reversed accordingly.

B 75 ¥ 2= B RE

2 FESTHHEMEME®)

23 BIHRE®E(£E)
(i) HEEBZFE

2019
—E-NF
HK$’000
FAET
—E-AF=A=+—H
W EEHEAE 1,204
KEARYFERHB BN
A A 1 S 15 A R
8538 (32)
B NEREERAERX
MR HHEE (217)
R-ZZE—NFWMA—H
BRNEEEE 955
Erh
RBHEAR 516
FERHpHEERE 439
955

(iii) FAKEEZE
FrEFRAEEEREIETE
WERTE MUWE —HER
¥R Ao

BEE-_Z—h&=ZA=+—
B - 24 @ fE AR AR A
BREEIE A B TE T
T UAREREMGHERNAR
BREDBEAME WMENME
ERESHEE LT -

BE-_Z—hFMNA—HE -
ARG E M BMRRAEREZT
ABYIEB 2EMNTHES
FHRETwEEHFOBEAE
AEEEEAE—HAINE
B MASEDREFERK
A2 - @Atk RATIRER
SE2HMMAE iRk AR
BRI M BB BRI E
E 5 o &4 R 74,149,000
BT REBELCHEAR
14,652,0007% jt 2 A It B
@ °
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 i a MY =

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FEETBERBEw
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.3 Changes in accounting policy (continued) 23 EiBREEH(F)
(iv) Adjustments recognised in the (ivy R=ZFE—hEFENA—-HHPE

consolidated statement of financial EHMBERRRERA AR
position on 1 April 2019
The following table shows the adjustments TRIINAMEZSHEEERE:
for change in accounting policy recognised HEES PR - TXEE
for each individual line item. Line items that FEZEBTERT -

were not affected by the changes have not
been included.

31 March 2019 Effect of the
as previously adoption of
reported HKFRS 16 1 April 2019
R® B@hEEHR i
“E-N¥F=8 BREER “Z2-n§
ZT-BUAER EALE A% mA—-H
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
ASSETS EE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment )% « FiE K& & 1,123,724 (76,490) 1,047,234
Right-of-use assets FREEE - 27,176 27,176
Prepaid land lease payments R T4 23,437 (23,437) -
LIABILITIES 8
Current liabilities RBeE
Lease liabilities HEBR - 516 516
Non-current liabilities EkRBEE
Lease liabilities HEBR - 439 439
Deferred tax liabilities ELEHEAE 57,285 (14,652) 42,633
EQUITY B
Retained profits REBER 806,775 15,095 821,870
Asset revaluation reserve BEEMHE 218,369 (74,149) 144,220
(v) Lessor accounting (v) HHEASE
The Group did not need to make any ANEBEBREMNE ST
adjustments to the accounting for assets SR FE16IE M ERIEBEL
held as lessor under operating leases as a EHEALEABEZE
result of the adoption of HKFRS 16. ERNeREERE e -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting

(a)

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 4 [Z i

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including
structured entities) over which the Group
has control. The Group controls an
entity when the Group is exposed to, or
has rights to, variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its
power to direct the activities of the entity.
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from
the date on which control is transferred to
the Group. They are deconsolidated from
the date that control ceases.

Intercompany transactions, balances
and unrealised gains on transactions
between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the transferred asset.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results
and equity of subsidiaries are shown
separately in the consolidated income
statement, consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of financial
position respectively.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 i a MY =

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting (continued)

(b)

(c)

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the
Group has significant influence but not
control or joint control. This is generally
the case where the Group holds between
20% and 50% of the voting rights.
Investments in associates are accounted
for using the equity method of accounting
(see (c) below), after initially being
recognised at cost.

Equity accounting

Under the equity method of accounting,
the investments are initially recognised
at cost and adjusted thereafter to
recognise the Group’s share of the
post-acquisition profits or losses of
the investee in profit or loss, and the
Group’s share of movements in other
comprehensive income of the investee in
other comprehensive income. Dividends
received or receivable from associates are
recognised as a reduction in the carrying
amount of the investment.

When the Group’s share of losses in
an equity-accounted investment equals
or exceeds its interest in the entity,
including any other unsecured long-
term receivables, the Group does not
recognise further losses, unless it has
incurred obligations or made payments on
behalf of the other entity.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Principles of consolidation and equity

accounting (continued)

(c) Equity accounting (continued)
Unrealised gains on transactions between
the Group and its associates are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interest in these entities. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of equity accounted
investees have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted
investments is tested for impairment in
accordance with the policy described in
Note 2.15(d).

2.5 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for
at cost less impairment. Cost includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results
of subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving a
dividend from these investments if the dividend
exceeds the total comprehensive income of the
subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared
or if the carrying amount of the investment in
the separate financial statements exceeds the
carrying amount in the consolidated financial
statements of the investee’s net assets
including goodwill.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% ¥R AR MY 5

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.6 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a
manner consistent with the internal reporting
provided to the chief operating decision maker
(“*CODM”), comprising the Board of Directors of
the Company.

2.7

Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency
ltems included in the financial statements
of each of the Group’s entities are
measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which
the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in HKD
which is the Company’s functional and
presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are
translated into the functional currency
using the exchange rates at the dates
of the transactions or valuation where
items are re-measured. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and
from the translation of monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies at year end exchange rates are
generally recognised in profit or loss.

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED w5 E AR A A

2.7

Wméfwéiﬁﬁﬂé
&é& RE]) R A B HRE
BRI A RS -

S

(a) WERIBEHR
AEEASER ZMBEREK
hrHBEORAREREE

FTaEZzETER ER &K
([MEEEE D FTE - &6 8
BHmERTHAB TTHE - BT
BRARZINER2RE o

(b) XRER#EER
INERZZHEZ S RIGE
(WEEBEEHFE)ER
WIERME BINREEE - 4
EEBRSMERFRER
BREDUIINEIENEEEE
&E%%Fi%%ﬁ%é&
BIERENIESAER

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 4 [Z R



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.7 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(b)

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 4 [Z i

Transactions and balances (continued)
Foreign exchange gains or losses that
related to borrowings and cash and
cash equivalents are presented in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.
All other foreign exchange gains or losses
are presented in the consolidated income
statement.

Non-monetary items that are measured
at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was determined.
Translation differences on assets and
liabilities carried at fair value are reported
as part of the fair value gain or loss. For
example, translation differences on non-
monetary assets and liabilities such as
equities held at fair value through profit
or loss are recognised in profit or loss as
part of the fair value gain or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% ¥R AR MY 5

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.7 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(c)

Group companies

The results and financial position of
foreign operations (none of which has the
currency of a hyperinflationary economy)
that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency
as follows:

assets and liabilities for each
balance sheet presented are
translated at the closing rate at the
date of that balance sheet;

income and expenses for each
income statement and statement
of comprehensive income are
translated at average exchange
rates (unless this is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated
at the dates of the transactions);
and

all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive
income.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.7 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(c)

(d)

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 4 [Z i

Group companies (continued)

On consolidation, exchange differences
arising from the translation of any
net investment in foreign entities,
and of borrowings and other financial
instruments designated as hedges of
such investments, are recognised in other
comprehensive income. When a foreign
operation is sold or any borrowings
forming part of the net investment
are repaid, the associated exchange
differences are reclassified to profit or
loss, as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments
arising on the acquisition of a foreign
operation are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign operation and
translated at the closing rate.

Disposal of foreign operation and
partial disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation
(that is, a disposal of the Group’s entire
interest in a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of control over
a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation or a disposal involving loss of
significant influence over an associate
that includes a foreign operation), all
of the currency translation differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that
operation attributable to the owners of the
company are reclassified to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% ¥R AR MY 5

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.7 Foreign currency translation (continued)

2 FESTTHEMEME®)

2.7 HHEBE(E)

(d) Disposal of foreign operation and

partial disposal (continued)

In the case of a partial disposal that
does not result in the Group losing
control over a subsidiary that includes
a foreign operation, the proportionate
share of accumulated currency
translation differences are re-attributed
to non-controlling interests and are not
recognised in profit or loss. For all other
partial disposals (that is, reductions in the
Group’s ownership interest in associates
that do not result in the Group losing
significant influence), the proportionate
share of the accumulated exchange
difference is reclassified to profit or loss.

2.8 Property, plant and equipment

Freehold land and buildings are recognised
at fair value based on annual valuations by
external independent valuers, less subsequent
depreciation for buildings. A revaluation deficit/
surplus is debited/credited to asset revaluation
reserves in shareholders’ equity.

All other property, plant and equipment are
stated at historical cost less depreciation.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of any component accounted for as a
separate asset is derecognised when replaced.
All other repairs and maintenance are charged
to profit or loss during the reporting period in
which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %% i a MY =

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FEETFBRBE @
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.8 Property, plant and equipment (continued) 28 ME- -BMERFZEGE)

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 4 [Z i

Changes in the carrying amounts arising on
revaluation of buildings are recognised, net
of tax, in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in reserves in shareholders’
equity. To the extent that the increase reverses
a decrease previously recognised in profit or
loss, the increase is first recognised in profit or
loss. Decreases that reverse previous increases
of the same asset are first recognised in other
comprehensive income to the extent of the
remaining surplus attributable to the asset; all
other decreases are charged to profit or loss.
Each year, the difference between depreciation
based on the revalued carrying amount of the
asset charged to profit or loss and depreciation
based on the asset’s original cost, net of tax,
is reclassified from the property, plant and
equipment revaluation surplus to retained
earnings.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-
line method to allocate their cost or revalued
amounts, net of their residual values, over
their estimated useful lives or, in the case of
leasehold improvements and certain leased
plant and equipment, the shorter lease term as
follows:

Freehold land Not depreciated
Buildings in Hong Kong Over the shorter of
lease terms and 4%

Over the shorter of
lease term and 3.3%

Buildings outside
Hong Kong

Moulds, tools, and 10% - 20%
plant and machinery

Furniture, equipment
and motor vehicles

10% - 25%
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% ¥R AR MY 5

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.8 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the
end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined
by comparing proceeds with carrying amount.
These are included in profit or loss. When
revalued assets are sold, it is Group’s policy to
transfer any amounts included in other reserves
in respect of those assets to retained earnings.

Construction in progress represents property,
plant and equipment under construction or
pending installation and is stated at cost
less impairment losses, if any. No provision
for depreciation is made on assets under
construction in progress until such time as the
relevant assets are completed and available
for their intended use. On completion, the
relevant assets are transferred to property,
plant and equipment at fair value or cost less
accumulated impairment losses.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.9

2.10

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 4 [Z i

Investment properties

Investment property, principally comprising
leasehold land and buildings, is held for long-
term rental yields or for capital appreciation or
both, and that is not occupied by the Group.
It also includes properties that are being
constructed or developed for future use as
investment properties. Investment property
is initially measured at cost, including related
transaction costs and where applicable
borrowing costs. After initial recognition,
investment properties are carried at carrying
values, representing cost less depreciation and
impairment provision. Changes in fair values
are presented in profit or loss as part of other
gains.

Prepaid land lease payments

Prior to the adoption of HKFRS 16, the up-
front prepayments made for land use rights
are accounted for as operating leases. They
are recognised in the consolidated income
statement on a straight-line basis over the
periods of the lease or the land use rights,
or when there is impairment, the impairment
is recognised in the consolidated income
statement. Upon the adoption of HKFRS 16,
prepaid land lease payments are accounted
for as right-of-use assets as described in Note
2.29.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% ¥R AR MY 5

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.11 Properties under development and

2 FESHBEBE )

completed properties held for sale

Properties under development and completed
properties held for sale are stated at the lower
of cost and net realisable value. Net realisable
value takes into account the price ultimately
expected to be realised, less applicable
variable selling expenses and anticipated cost
to completion, or by management estimates
based on prevailing market conditions.

Development cost of property comprises mainly
construction costs, cost of land use rights,
borrowing costs, and professional fees incurred
during the development period.

Properties under development and completed
properties held for sale are classified as current
assets unless those will not be realised in one
normal operating cycle.

2.12 Intangible assets

(@) Goodwill
Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries
is included in intangible assets. Goodwill
is not amortised but it is tested for
impairment annually, or more frequently
if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that it might be impaired, and
is carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Gains and losses
on the disposal of an entity include the
carrying amount of goodwill relating to the
entity sold.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Intangible assets (continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 4 [Z i

Goodwill (continued)

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating
units (“CGU") for the purpose of
impairment testing. The allocation is
made to those CGU or groups of CGU
that are expected to benefit from the
business combination in which the
goodwill arose. The units or groups of
units are identified at the lowest level at
which goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes, being the
operating segments (Note 5).

Technology

Technology acquired in a business
combination are recognised at fair value
at the acquisition date. The technology
has a finite useful life and are carried
at cost less accumulated amortisation.
Amortisation is calculated using the
straight line method to allocate its cost
over their estimated useful life of 10
years.

Contract order back log

Contract order back log acquired in a
business combination are recognised
at fair value at the acquisition date.
The contract order back log has a finite
useful life and are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is
calculated using the straight line method
to allocate its cost over their estimated
useful life of 1 year.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 i a MY =

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.13

2.14

Impairment of non-financial assets
Goodwill and intangible assets that have
an indefinite useful life are not subject to
amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment, or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that they
might be impaired. Other assets are tested
for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which
the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount
is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. For the purposes
of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at
the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash inflows which are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other
assets or groups of assets (cash-generating
units).

Non-current assets (or disposal groups)
held for sale and discontinued operation
Non-current assets (or disposal groups) are
classified as held for sale if their carrying
amount will be recovered principally through a
sale transaction rather than through continuing
use and a sale is considered highly probable.
They are measured at the lower of their
carrying amount and fair value less costs to
sell, except for assets such as deferred tax
assets, assets arising from employee benefits,
financial assets and investment property
that are carried at fair value and contractual
rights under insurance contracts, which are
specifically exempt from this requirement.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %% i a MY =

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.14 Non-current assets (or disposal groups)

2 FESTHHERBE®R

214 HEHEZHRBEE (RHES
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held for sale and discontinued operation
(continued)

An impairment loss is recognised for any
initial or subsequent write-down of the asset
(or disposal group) to fair value less costs to
sell. A gain is recognised for any subsequent
increases in fair value less costs to sell of an
asset (or disposal group), but not in excess
of any cumulative impairment loss previously
recognised. A gain or loss not previously
recognised by the date of the sale of the non-
current asset (or disposal group) is recognised
at the date of derecognition.

Non-current assets (including those that are
part of a disposal group) are not depreciated or
amortised while they are classified as held for
sale. Interest and other expenses attributable
to the liabilities of a disposal group classified as
held for sale continue to be recognised.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale
and the assets of a disposal group classified
as held for sale are presented separately
from the other assets in the consolidated
statement of financial position. The liabilities of
a disposal group classified as held for sale are
presented separately from other liabilities in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

A discontinued operation is a component of the
entity that has been disposed of or is classified
as held for sale and that represents a separate
major line of business or geographical area
of operations, is part of a single coordinated
plan to dispose of such a line of business or
area of operations, or is a subsidiary acquired
exclusively with a view to resale. The results
of discontinued operation are presented
separately in the consolidated income
statement and consolidated statement of other
comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% ¥R AR MY 5

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.15 Investment and other financial assets

(a)

Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in
the follow measurement categories:

° those to be measured subsequently
at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVPL”); and

o those to be measured at amortised
cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s
business model for managing the financial
assets and the contractual terms of the
cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value,
gains and losses will be recorded in
profit or loss. For investments in equity
instruments that are not held for trading,
this will depend on whether the Group
has made an irrevocable election at the
time of initial recognition to account for
the equity investment at fair value through
other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”).

The Group reclassifies debt investments
when and only when its business model
for managing those assets changes.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.15 Investment and other financial assets
(continued)

(b)

(c)

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 4 [Z i

Recognition and derecognition
Regular way purchases and sales of
financial assets are recognised on trade-
date, the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Financial assets, including accounts
receivable factored without resources, are
derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the financial assets have
expired or have been transferred and the
Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures
a financial asset at its fair value plus, in
the case of a financial asset not at fair
value through profit or loss, transaction
costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition of the financial asset.
Transaction costs of financial assets
carried at FVPL are expensed in profit or
loss.

Financial assets with embedded
derivatives are considered in their entirety
when determining whether their cash
flows are solely payment of principal and
interest.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% ¥R AR MY 5

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.15 Investment and other financial assets

(continued)

(c) Measurement (continued)
Debt instruments
Subsequent measurement of debt
instruments depends on the Group’s
business model for managing the asset
and the cash flow characteristics of
the asset. The Group classifies its debt

instru

ments as:

Amortised cost: Assets that are
held for collection of contractual
cash flows where those cash
flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest are measured
at amortised cost. Interest income
from these financial assets is
included in finance income using the
effective interest rate method. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition
is recognised directly in profit
or loss and presented in “other
gains/(losses), net” together with
foreign exchange gains and losses.
Impairment losses are presented
as separate line item in the
consolidated income statement.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %% i a MY =

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.15 Investment and other financial assets

(continued)

(c) Measurement (continued)
Debt instruments (continued)

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 4 [Z i

FVOCI: Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash
flows and for selling the financial
assets, where the assets’ cash
flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest, are measured
at FVOCI. Movements in the
carrying amount are taken through
OCI, except for the recognition of
impairment gains or losses, interest
income and foreign exchange gains
and losses which are recognised
in profit or loss. When the financial
asset is derecognised, the
cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in OCI is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss and
recognised in other gains/(losses).
Interest income from these financial
assets is included in finance income
using the effective interest rate
method. Foreign exchange gains
and losses are presented in other
gains/(losses) and impairment
expenses are presented as separate
line item in the statement of profit or
loss.

FVPL: Assets that do not meet
the criteria for amortised cost or
FVOCI are measured at FVPL. A
gain or loss on a debt investment
that is subsequently measured at
FVPL is recognised in profit or loss
and presented net within other
gains/(losses) in the period in which
it arises.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% ¥R AR MY 5

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.15 Investment and other financial assets
(continued)

(c)

(d)

Measurement (continued)

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all
equity investments at fair value. Where
the Group’s management has elected
to present fair value gains and losses on
equity investments in OCI, there is no
subsequent reclassification of fair value
gains and losses to profit or loss following
the derecognition of the investment.
Dividends from such investments
continue to be recognised in profit or loss
as other income when the Group’s right
to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial
assets at FVPL are recognised in other
gains/(losses) in the statement of profit
or loss as applicable. Impairment losses
(and reversal of impairment losses) on
equity investments measured at FVOCI
are not reported separately from other
changes in fair value.

Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward
looking basis the expected credit losses
associated with its debt instruments
carried at amortised cost and FVOCI. The
impairment methodology applied depends
on whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk.

For accounts receivable, the Group
applies the simplified approach permitted
by HKFRS 9, which requires expected
lifetime losses to be recognised from
initial recognition of the receivables, see
Note 3.1 for further details.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.16

2.17

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 4 [Z i

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and
the net amount reported in the consolidated
statement of financial position when there
is a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on
future event and must be enforceable in the
normal course of business and in the event
of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the
company or the counterparty.

Inventories

Raw materials, work in progress and finished
goods are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost comprises direct
materials, direct labour and an appropriate
proportion of variable and fixed overhead
expenditure, the latter being allocated on the
basis of normal operating capacity. Costs
are determined on the first-in, first-out basis.
Costs of purchased inventory are determined
after deducting rebates and discounts.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less
the estimated costs of completion and the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 i a MY =

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.18

2.19

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable are amounts due
from customers for goods sold or services
performed in the ordinary course of business.
Accounts receivable are generally due for
settlement within 60-90 days and therefore are
all classified as current.

Accounts receivable are recognised initially
at the amount of consideration that is
unconditional unless they contain significant
financing components, when they are
recognised at fair value. The Group holds
the accounts receivable with the objective to
collect the contractual cash flows and therefore
measures them subsequently at amortised
cost using the effective interest method. See
Note 2.15 and Note 3.1 for a description of the
Group’s impairment policies.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the
statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits
held at call with financial institutions, other
short-term, highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less that
are readily convertible to known amounts of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts.
Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in
current liabilities in the consolidated statement
of financial position.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.20

2.21

2.22

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 4 [Z i

Share capital and shares held for employee
share scheme

Ordinary shares are classified as equity (Note
31).

Incremental costs directly attributable to the
issue of new shares or options are shown in
equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

Accounts and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods
and services provided to the Group prior to
the end of financial year which are unpaid.
The amounts are unsecured and are usually
paid within 60 days of recognition. Accounts
and other payables are presented as current
liabilities unless payment is not due within
12 months after the reporting period. They
are recognised initially at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost.
Any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption amount
is recognised in profit or loss over the period
of the borrowings using the effective interest
method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan
facilities are recognised as transaction costs
of the loan to the extent that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn
down. In this case, the fee is deferred until
the draw down occurs. To the extent there is
no evidence that it is probable that some or
all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee
is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity
services and amortised over the period of the
facility to which it relates.

B 7% ¥R AR MY 5

2 FESHBEBRE®E)

2.20

2.21

2.22

BAEHBEEROGTHFETNR
7
BBy B AR (MRE31) -

BITHRRBREEREE 2
KBRS - RS R SIERTIS SR 2
R (FOBRTRIR) ©

P& A BR R R HL At BB S SRR

ZE RN B FE A RAR
HIAKE zEmMRHBZRE
BAE - ZFLRABENER
EREROR A - BAKRAK
HiEMNFBINRASRBAE
BRIEM A FER RS B HIE 12
EAREE - BEFREANAE AT
BRER - ARERAERMNE AR E
HARAGHE -

E&
EENTEATFENGRAELER
SRAIRTER o & H H &R
ARG E - FTS3R (IR R B K
R ) BR[O £ B H) Z RN B B AR
ABRRAZEE RS HER - R
EFRMEXNMER  RAER
BRETHMAERERERSER
MR BKA - RUEBERT - ZER
SEEERMBERL - WEALE
EBRBRA RIS THAER
B AIZERERRERN  JHER
BESIRBOTAN TR - AR ER
B E R R o

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED &#&BEAR A A

125



126

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 i a MY =

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.22

2.23

Borrowings (continued)

Borrowings are removed from the balance
sheet when the obligation specified in the
contract is discharged, cancelled or expired.
The difference between the carrying amount of
a financial liability that has been extinguished
or transferred to another party and the
consideration paid, including any non- cash
assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is
recognised in profit or loss as other income or
finance costs.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the reporting period.

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of a qualifying asset
are capitalised during the period of time that
is required to complete and prepare the asset
for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets
are assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended
use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the
period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.24 Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period
is the tax payable on the current period’s
taxable income based on the applicable income
tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by
changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities
attributable to temporary differences and to
unused tax losses.

(a)

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 4 [Z i

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is
calculated on the basis of the tax
laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period in
the countries where the Company’s
subsidiaries and associates operate and
generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulation is subject
to interpretation. It establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of
amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% ¥R AR MY 5

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.24 Current and deferred income tax (continued)

(b)

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full,
using the liability method, on temporary
differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. However, deferred
tax liabilities are not recognised if they
arise from the initial recognition of
goodwill. Deferred income tax is also
not accounted for if it arises from initial
recognition of an asset or liability in
a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax
is determined using tax rates (and laws)
that have been enacted or substantially
enacted by the end of the reporting
period and are expected to apply when
the related deferred income tax asset is
realised or the deferred income tax liability
is settled.

The deferred tax liability in relation to
investment property that is measured
at fair value is determined assuming the
property will be recovered entirely through
sale.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if
it is probable that future taxable amounts
will be available to utilise those temporary
differences and losses.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.24 Current and deferred income tax (continued)

(b)

(c)
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Deferred income tax (continued)
Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not
recognised for temporary differences
between the carrying amount and
tax bases of investments in foreign
operations where the Company is able to
control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable
that the differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Current and deferred tax is recognised
in profit or loss, except to the extent
that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly
in equity. In this case, the tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities
are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and
when the deferred income taxes assets
and liabilities relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either
the taxable entity or different taxable
entities where there is an intention to
settle the balances on a net basis.
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2.24 ENEIREFEFTSH (42)

(b)

(c)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% ¥R AR MY 5

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.25 Employee benefits

(a)

Pension obligations

Employees of the Group in Hong Kong
are required to participate in a defined
contribution scheme as defined in
mandatory provident fund scheme
(“MPF Scheme”). The assets of the
MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group under independently
administered funds. Contributions to
the schemes by the employers and
employees are calculated as a percentage
of employees’ basic salaries. Under the
MPF Scheme, each of the company
(the employer) and its employees make
monthly contributions to the scheme at
5% of the employees’ earnings as defined
under the Mandatory Provident Fund
legislation. The monthly contributions of
each of the employer and the employees
are subject to a cap of HK$1,500 and
thereafter contributions are voluntary.
The Group has no further obligations for
the actual payment of post-retirement
benefits beyond the contributions.

Employees of the Group in the PRC
are required to participate in defined
contribution retirement schemes
administered and operated by municipal
governments. The Group’s subsidiaries
in the PRC contribute funds to the
retirement scheme to fund the retirement
benefits of the employees which are
calculated on certain percentage of the
average employee salary as agreed by the
municipal government. Such retirement
schemes are responsible for the entire
post-retirement benefit obligations
payable to the retired employees. The
Group has no further obligations for
the actual payment of post-retirement
benefits beyond the contributions.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.25 Employee benefits (continued)

(b)

(c)

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 4 [Z i

Employee leaves entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave
are recognised when they accrue to
employees. A provision is made for the
estimated liability for annual leave as a
result of services rendered by employees
up to the date of statement of financial
position. Employee entitlements to sick
and maternity leave are not recognised
until the time of leave.

Share-based compensation
Share-based compensation benefits are
provided to employees via the share
option scheme. Information relating to
these schemes is set out in Note 32.

Employee options

The fair value of options granted under
the share option scheme is recognised
as an employee benefits expense with
a corresponding increase in equity.
The total amount to be expensed is
determined by reference to the fair value
of the options granted:

- including any market performance
conditions (eg the entity’s share
price);

- excluding the impact of any service
and non-market performance
vesting conditions (eg profitability,
sales growth targets and remaining
an employee of the entity over a
specified time period); and

- including the impact of any
non-vesting conditions (eg the
requirement for employees to save
or holdings shares for a specific
period of time).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% ¥R AR MY 5

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.25 Employee benefits (continued)

(c)

(d)

Share-based compensation (continued)
Employee options (continued)

The total expense is recognised over
the vesting period, which is the period
over which all of the specified vesting
conditions are to be satisfied. At the
end of each period, the entity revises its
estimates of the number of options that
are expected to vest based on the non-
market vesting and service conditions.
It recognises the impact of the revision
to original estimates, if any, in profit or
loss, with a corresponding adjustment to
equity.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when
employment is terminated by the Group
before the normal retirement date,
or whenever an employee accepts
voluntary redundancy in exchange for
these benefits. The Group recognises
termination benefits when the Group is
demonstrably committed to either: (a)
terminate the employment of an employee
or group of employees before the normal
retirement date; or (b) provide termination
benefits as a result of an offer made in
order to encourage voluntary redundancy.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %% i a MY =

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.26 Provisions 2.26 #1&

2 FESHBEBRE®E)
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Provisions are recognised when the Group
has a present legal or constructive obligation
as a result of past events, it is probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, and the amount has
been reliably estimated. Provisions are not
recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar
obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will
be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole.
A provision is recognised even if the likelihood
of an outflow with respect to any one item
included in the same class of obligations may
be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value
of the expenditures expected to be required
to settle the obligation using a pre-tax that
reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the
obligation. The increase in the provision due
to passage of time is recognised as interest
expense.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% ¥R AR MY 5

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.27 Revenue recognition

2 FESTTHEMEME®)

2.27 WEETER

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, and
represents amounts receivable for goods
sold or services performed, stated net of
discounts, returns and value-added taxes. The
Group recognises revenue when the specific
criteria have been met for each of the Group’s
activities, as described below.

Revenue is recognised when or as the
control of goods or services is transferred
to a customer. Depending on the terms of
the contract and the laws that apply to the
contract, control of the goods and services
may be transferred over time or at a point
in time. Control of the goods and services
is transferred over time if the Group’s
performance:

° provides all of the benefits received
and consumed simultaneously by the
customer;

° creates and enhances an asset that the
customer controls as the Group performs;
or

° does not creates an asset with an
alternative use to the Group and the
Group has an enforceable right to
payment for performance completed to
date.

If control of the goods and services transfers
over time, revenue is recognised over the
period of the contract by reference to the
progress towards complete satisfaction of that
performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue
is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the goods and
services.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %% i a MY =

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.27 Revenue recognition (continued)

2 FESHBEBRE®E)

2.27 =R (&)
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When determining the transaction price to
be allocated from different performance
obligations, the Group first determines the
service fees that the Group entitles in the
contract period and adjusts the transaction
price for variable considerations and significant
financing component, if any. The Group
includes in the transaction price some of all
of an amount of variable considerations only
to the extent that it is highly probable that a
significant reversal in amount of cumulative
revenue recognised will not occur when
the uncertainty associated with the variable
consideration is subsequently resolved.

When either party to a contract has performed,
the Group presents the contract in the
statement of financial position as a contract
asset or a contract liability, depending on the
relationship between the entity’s performance
and the customer’s payment.

A contract asset is the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for goods and
services that the Group has transferred to
a customer. A receivable is recorded when
the Group has an unconditional right to a
consideration. A right to consideration is
unconditional if only the passage of time is
required before payment of that consideration
is due.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% ¥R AR MY 5

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2 FESHBEBE )

2.27 Revenue recognition (continued)

If a customer pays consideration or the Group
has a right to an amount of consideration that
is unconditional, before the Group transfers a
good or service to the customer, the Group
presents the contract liability when the
payment is made or a receivable is recorded
(whichever is earlier). A contract liability is
the Group’s obligation to transfer goods or
services to a customer for which the Group
has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

The following is a description of the accounting
policy for the principal revenue streams of the
Group.

Sales of goods

Sales are recognised when control of the
goods has transferred, being when the goods
are delivered to the customers, the customers
have full discretion over the goods and there
is no unfilled obligation that could affect
the customers’ acceptance of the goods.
Delivery occurs when the products have been
shipped to the specific location, the risks of
obsolescence and loss have been transferred
to customers, and either customers have
accepted the products in accordance with the
sales contract, the acceptance provisions have
lapsed, or the Group has objective evidence
that all criteria for acceptance have been
satisfied.

A receivable is recognised when the goods are
delivered as this is the point in time that the
consideration is unconditional because only the
passage of time is required before the payment
is due.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %% i a MY =

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.27 Revenue recognition (continued)

2 FESTHHERBE®R

2.27 =R (&)
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Sales of goods (continued)

Sales of goods are recognised when the
risk and rewards of the goods have been
transferred to the customer, which is usually
at the date when a group entity has delivered
products to the customer, the customer
has accepted the products, and there is no
unfulfilled obligations that could affect the
customer’s acceptance of the products.
Accumulated experience is used to estimate
and provide for sales return at the time of sale.

If the services rendered or products delivered
by the Group exceed the payments made
by the counter parties, a contract asset is
recognised. If the payments exceed the
services rendered or products delivered, a
contract liability is recognised.

Sales of properties

For property sales contract for which the
control of the property is transferred at a point
in time, revenue is recognised when the buyer
obtains the physical possession or the legal
title of the completed property and the Group
has present right to payment and the collection
of the consideration is probable.

In determining the transaction price, the Group
adjusts the promised amount of consideration
for the effect of a financing component if it is
significant.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 i a MY =

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.27

2.28

Revenue recognition (continued)

Glass installation

For provision of construction services, the
Group’s performance creates or enhances an
asset or work in progress that the customer
controls as the asset is created or enhanced,
thus the Group satisfies a performance
obligation and recognises revenue over time,
by reference to completion of the specific
transaction assessed on the basis of the actual
costs incurred up to the end of the reporting
period as a percentage of total estimated costs
for each contract.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the
effective interest method. When a receivable
is impaired, the Group reduces the carrying
amount to its recoverable amount, being the
estimated future cash flow discounted at the
original effective interest rate of the instrument,
and continues unwinding the discount as
interest income. Interest income on impaired
loans is recognised using the original effective
interest rate.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %% i a MY =

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.29 Leases 220 HHE

2 FESTHHEMEME®)
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As explained in Note 2.3 above, the Group has
changed its accounting policy for leases where
the Group is the lessee. The new policy is
described below and the impact of the change
in Note 2.3.

Until 31 March 2019, leases in which a
significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership were not transferred to the Group
as lessee were classified as operating leases.
Payments made under operating leases (net of
any incentives received from the lessor) were
charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the period of the lease.

From 1 April 2019, leases are recognised
as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
liability at the date at which the leased asset is
available for use by the Group.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are
initially measured on a present value basis.
Lease liabilities include the net present value
of the fixed payments (including in-substance
fixed payments), less any lease incentives
receivable.

The lease payments are discounted using
the interest rate implicit in the lease. If that
rate cannot be readily determined, which is
generally the case for leases in the Group, the
lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used,
being the rate that the individual lessee would
have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to
obtain an asset of similar value to the right-of-
use asset in a similar economic environment
with similar terms, security and conditions.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% ¥R AR MY 5

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.29 Leases (continued)

2 FESHBEBE )

2.29 E (#&)

RETREERNE - KAEEEA

To determine the incremental borrowing rate,
the Group, where possible, uses recent third-
party financing received by the individual
lessee as a starting point, adjusted to reflect
changes in financing conditions since third
party financing was received, and makes
adjustments specific to the lease.

Lease payments are allocated between
principal and finance cost. The finance cost is
charged to profit or loss over the lease period
S0 as to produce a constant periodic rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability
for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost
comprising the following:

° the amount of the initial measurement of
lease liability;

° any lease payments made at or before
the commencement date less any lease
incentives received; and

° any initial direct cost.

Subsequent to initial recognition, right-of-
use assets are stated at historical cost less
depreciation. They are generally depreciated
over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and
the lease term on a straight-line basis. If
the Group is reasonably certain to exercise
a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is
depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful
life.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.29 Leases (continued)
Payments associated with short-term leases
of properties, equipment and vehicles and all
leases of low-value assets are recognised on
a straight-line basis as an expense in profit or
loss. Short-term leases are leases with a lease
term of 12 months or less.

2.30 Government grants
Grants from the government are recognised
at their fair values when there is a reasonable
assurance that the grants will be received
and the Group will comply with all attached
conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are
deferred and recognised within “Other income
and gains, net” in the consolidated income
statement over the period necessary to match
them with the costs that they are intended
to compensate. Government grant related to
property, plant and equipment are recognised
as deferred income and is recognised in the
consolidated income statement on a systematic
basis over the expected useful lives the related
assets.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 i a MY =

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: market risk (including foreign
exchange risk, interest rate risk and price
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s
overall risk management programme focuses
on the unpredictability of financial markets
and seeks to minimise potential adverse
effects on the Group’s financial performance.
Risk management is carried out by the senior
management of the Company under policies
approved by the Board of Directors of the
Company.

(@) Market risk
(i) Foreign exchange risk
The Group mainly operates in the
PRC and Hong Kong.

The functional currency of the
Hong Kong reporting entities is
HKD and the transactions are
mostly denominated in HKD and
United States dollar (“USD").
For transactions or balances
denominated in USD are reasonably
stable with the HKD under the
Linked Exchange Rate System, the
directors are of the opinion that the
Company does not have significant
foreign exchange risk, the exposure
to fluctuation in exchange rates will
only arise from the translation to the
presentation currency of the Group.
Accordingly, no sensitivity analysis is
performed.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% ¥R AR MY 5

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 MBERERE@®
(continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 31 BXEREBEEE)
(a) Market risk (continued) (a) ™WEEK(E)
(i)  Foreign exchange risk (continued) () SMEEE (E

The functional currency of the
PRC reporting entities is Renminbi
(“RMB”) and the transactions are
mostly denominated in RMB and
HKD, the conversion of RMB into
foreign currencies is subject to the
rules and regulations of the foreign
exchange control promulgated by

the PRC government.

The Group is exposed to foreign
exchange risk primarily through
financing, capital expenditure and
expenses transactions that are
denominated in a currency other
than RMB, which is the functional
currency of the major subsidiaries
of the Group. The Group manages
its exposures to foreign currency
transactions by monitoring the
level of foreign currency receipts
and payments. The Group ensures
that the net exposure to foreign
exchange risk is kept to an
acceptable level from time to time.
The Group is presently not using
any forward exchange contract to
hedge against foreign exchange
risk as management considers its
exposure is not significant.

At 31 March 2020, if HKD had
strengthened/weakened by 5%
(2019: 5%) against RMB with all
other variables held constant,
profit for the year would have been
approximately HK$21,591,000
higher/lower (2019: HK$24,423,000

higher/lower).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% ¥R AR MY 5

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)
Market risk (continued)

(a)

(i)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s main interest rate risk
arises from long-term borrowings
with variable rates, which expose
the Group to cash flow interest rate
risk. The Group’s borrowings and
receivables are carried at amortised
cost.

The Group monitors closely
its interest rate exposure by
maintaining an appropriate floating
rate borrowings and considers
hedging significant interest rate
exposure should the need arise.
The position is regularly monitored
and evaluated by reference of
anticipated changes in market
interest rate.

At 31 March 2020, if interest rates
on bank and other borrowings
had been 50 basis points (2019:
50 basis points) higher/lower with
all other variables held constant,
profit for the year would have been
approximately HK$3,717,000 lower/
higher (2019: HK$4,051,000 lower/
higher) mainly as a result of higher/
lower interest expense on floating
rate borrowings.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %% i a MY =

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(@) Market risk (continued)

(i)

Price risk

The Group’s exposure to price
risk arises from investments held
by the Group and classified in the
consolidated statement of financial
position as fair value through profit
or loss (Note 25).

Profit for the period would increase/
decrease by approximately
HK$853,000 (2019: HK$1,414,000)
as a result of 10% gains/losses on
equity securities classified as at fair
value through profit or loss.

(b) Credit risk

(1)

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 /&

Risk management

Credit risk arises if a customer or
other counterparty fails to meet its
contractual obligations. The credit
risk of the Group mainly arises from
trade and other receivables and
deposits with banks and financial
institutions.

The Group has policies that limit the
amount of credit exposure to any
financial institutions. Substantially
all the deposits in banks are held
in reputable financial institutions
located in Hong Kong and the PRC,
which management believes are of
high credit quality and management
does not expect any losses arising
from non-performance by these
counterparties.

3 BHM¥ERERE#

31 HERKREZE(E)

(a)
(i)

SRR (E)

1B 15 )2 %
REBERZEBFHRE
ﬁﬁ?izmﬂﬂ & I

REBTBHRAER DR
AEBERZATFETD
B8R (FF7E25) °

H R R 58 0,
> #1853,0005 7T (=
Z — NLF 11,414,000
BIL) VRS EA
FRBRIEAFENER
ZRRIEEFI S, EE
10% °
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 i a MY =

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

(b)

(1)

Risk management (continued)

The Group also has policies in place
to ensure that sales of products
are made to customers with an
appropriate credit history. Sales to
large or long-established customers
with good repayment history
comprise a significant proportion
of the total sales. The Group’s
historical experience in collection
of trade and other receivables falls
within the recorded allowances.

The Group has concentration
of credit risk as the top five
trade debtors accounted for
approximately 34% of its total trade
debts balance as at 31 March
2020 (2019: 78%). In view of this,
the management of the Group
regularly assesses by monitoring
the individual profile of its accounts
receivables. The Group also uses
non-recourse accounts receivable
factoring arrangement with bank to
cover the credit risk. In this regard,
management of the Group considers
that the credit concentration risk
has been significantly mitigated.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 kBT =

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(b) Credit risk (continued)

(i)

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 4 [Z i

Impairment of financial assets
Accounts receivable

The accounts receivable of the
Group are subject to the expected
credit loss model. The Group
applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measuring expected
credit losses which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all
accounts receivable.

To measure expected credit losses,
the Group categorises its accounts
receivable based on the nature of
customer accounts and shared
credit risk characteristics.

The expected loss rates are based
on the payment profiles of sales
over a period of 12 months before
31 March 2020 or 31 March 2019
respectively and the corresponding
historical credit losses experienced
within this period. The historical loss
rates are adjusted to reflect current
and forward-looking information
on macroeconomic factors, after
considering the expected market
conditions and economic impact of
the unprecedented COVID-19 on
the countries in which our major
customers operate, affecting the
ability of the customers to settle the
receivables.

The Group also uses trade
receivables factoring facilities
to manage the credit risk of its
trade debtors. As at 31 March
2020, trade receivables of
approximately HK$55,898,000
(2019: HK$162,147,000) was
subject to non-recourse factoring
arrangements and therefore
derecognised. No trade receivables
was subject to recourse factoring
arrangement in 2020 and 2019.

3 BHM¥ERERE#

31 B¥RKEZE(E)
(b) FEERRKE)

(i)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 i a MY =

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 HMHKEBRERE®
(continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 31 BXEREBREZEE)
(b) Credit risk (continued) (b) FERKE)
(i) Impairment of financial assets (i) TEEERE(E)
(continued)
Accounts receivable (continued) FEH&ZEE%’\(?)
On that basis, the loss allowance RIBEZEE R-Z =
as at 31 March 2020 and 31 March EF=ZRA=1+—HE=
2019 was determined as follows for T-NF=ZA=+—H
accounts receivable after factoring: BRI 1% JE W BR RS
BEREEENT :
1-30 31-60 61-90  Over 90
days days days days
Current pastdue pastdue pastdue pastdue Total
BE1E ANNE BH61E  AH90R
Il 308 60H 90A Bt @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS$’000
FEr  TEx  FEr TErn  FELT  TEx
At 31 March 2020 R=B=%%
ZA=t-H
Assets BE
Gross carrying amount BEmE 149,092 34,241 28,604 8,466 8,023 228,426
Loss allowance BEAE (1,567)  (1,277)  (1,273)  (1,218)  (2,074)  (7,409)
147,525 32,964 27,331 7,248 5949 221,017
Expected loss rate BHERE 1.1% 3.7% 45%  144%  25.9% 3.2%
At 1 April 2019 RZE-N%E
mA—-H
Assets BE
Gross carrying amount BEmE 179,622 92,990 26,799 7,885 9,004 316,300
Loss allowance BERE (359) (465) (268) (789)  (2270)  (4,151)
179,263 92,525 26,531 7,096 6,734 312,149
Expected loss rate BHEEX 0.2% 0.5% 1.0%  100%  25.2% 1.3%

W R R B 1R R
R MA 25 RRE
ERFE - RR RS
EEME 2 FIBTAR
—IHBE#H -

Impairment losses on accounts
receivable are presented as net
impairment losses within operating
profit. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are
credited against the same line item.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)

(c)

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 4 [Z i

Credit risk (continued)

(iii)  Other financial assets at amortised
cost
Other financial assets at amortised
cost include other receivables.
Management consider low credit
risk for other financial assets at
amortised cost and did not provide
loss allowance for other financial
assets at amortised cost based on
the historical settlement pattern of
these other financial assets and
the forward looking recoverability
analysis of the counterparties.

While cash and cash equivalents,
time deposits and restricted bank
balance are also subject to the
impairment requirements of HKFRS
9, the identified impairment loss was
immaterial.

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management,
after considering the expected market
conditions and the outbreak of COVID-19,
implies maintaining sufficient cash and
the availability of funding through an
adequate amount of banking facilities.
The Group aims to maintain flexibility in
funding by keeping credit lines available
at all time.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of
the Group’s liquidity reserve on the basis
of expected cash flows. The Group’s
policy is to regularly monitor current and
expected liquidity requirements and its
compliance with lending covenants, to
ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves
of cash and adequate committed lines of
funding from major financial institutions to
meet its liquidity requirements in the short
and long term.

B 75 ¥ 2= B RE

3 BHM¥ERERE#

31 HERKREZE(E)

(b)

(c)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% ¥R AR MY 5

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

(c)

Liquidity risk (continued)

Hong Kong Interpretation 5 requires a
term loan that contains a clause that
gives the lender the unconditional right to
call the loan at any time shall be classified
in total by the borrower as current in
the statement of financial position.
This is irrespective of whether a default
event has occurred and notwithstanding
any other terms and maturity stated in
the loan agreement. As at 31 March
2020, borrowings of approximately
HK$65,000,000 (2019: HK$235,500,000)
was classified as current liabilities due to
this requirement.

At the reporting date, the Group
held cash and cash equivalents of
approximately HK$244,681,000
(2019: HK$222,153,000) (Note 26)
and accounts and bills receivable of
approximately HK$221,017,000 (2019:
HK$312,149,000) (Note 23) that are
expected to generate cash inflows for
managing liquidity risk. In addition, the
Group held financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss of approximately
HK$8,533,000 (2019: HK$14,140,000)
(Note 25), which could be realised
to provide a further source of cash if
needed.

The table below analyses the Group’s
financial liabilities into relevant maturity
groupings based on the remaining period
at the end of the reporting period to the
contractual maturity date. The amounts
disclosed in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows.

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED #E#&EBAR A7

3
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34 HERBREZEZ)
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REBESEMR(E)
EAREFESTRTE  ME
THERES —HIEHR
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BZERZBBEFEBEA
H mTREEEHEENSE
e UREFRBZEAE CE
iEFREESHE RZF
T EFE=ZRA=+—"H"'#%
65,000,000/ 7T (ZZ — /L
£ 1 235,500,000 7T) 2 &
HARLEREMSEER
FaE-

RHEBH  A&EEF
ERekBE2ERDY
244,681,000/ 7T (=& — N
1 222,153,000 7T) (Fff
7126) R IEUW IR B R ZHE LY
221,017,000 T (=& — N
1 312,149,0005% 7T) (Fft
F23) - BHRELSB® R
ANEERSHEL AR -
o AEBEBEEBRER
BEAFENEZEREE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %% i a MY =

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(c) Liquidity risk (continued)

2020

Accounts and bills payable

Financial liabilities included
in other payables, accrued
liabilities

Bank borrowings

Lease liabilities

2019

Accounts and bills payable

Financial liabilities included
in other payables, accrued
liabilities

Bank borrowings

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 4 [Z i

i
EREARER
AARMBERFER
it
TRAR
BIEE

“E-NE
ERERRER
STARMERFER
[EHBEL
tRAR
RITEE

3 MERERERE®
3.1 HMBEABERE)
(c) REBESEREZ)

On demand or One to two Two to five
within one year years years Total
RERG-ER -EZ[/E MERLE @t
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FEx FEx FEx
360,027 - - 360,027
129,786 - - 129,786
428,186 190,480 95,253 713,919
1,988 1,194 1,061 4,243
919,987 191,674 96,314 1,207,975
740,050 - - 740,050
89,321 - - 89,321
840,080 - - 840,080
1,669,451 - - 1,669,451

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED &#&BEAR A A
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% ¥R AR MY 5

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

(c)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The following table summarises the
maturity analysis of bank borrowings
subject to repayment on demand based
on agreed scheduled repayments set
out in the loan agreements. The amount
includes interest payments computed
using contractual rates. Taking into
account the Group’s net assets, the
directors do not consider that it is
probable that the bank will exercise its
discretion to immediate repayment. The
directors believe that such borrowings
will be repaid in accordance with the
scheduled repayment dates set out in the
loan agreements.

3

BERRERE &)
34 HERBREZEZ)

(c)

REBESRME(E)

TREAAREREEZR
TTIEENREO N - DRE
B R 15 P R 2 15 E OE SRR
- ZEEBREAGOF
RABZNENK - BERE
NAKENEEFE EF
RARITITEEBNBERERK
VEERNEETIA -EF
BE REBEREKRER
WEME BT ER A ME

Maturity Analysis - bank borrowings subject to repayment
on demand clause based on their original scheduled repayments

RN -MEREXEERRKZETHE REREENAAR

Within One to Two to Carrying

one year two years five years Total amount

-£R -EZRE MEELF @t REE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000

FEx FEr TiErn fEn FEr

2020 —BCEE 28,643 29,786 42,180 100,609 92,500
2019 ZE-NE 327,615 105,790 157,276 590,681 551,426

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED #E#&EBAR A7
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %% i a MY =

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 BEKERKRER#)
(continued)
3.2 Capital management 32 BEXREHE

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 4 [Z i

The Group’s objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern in order to provide returns
for shareholders and to maintain an optimal
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Group manages the capital structure and
makes adjustments to it in the light of changes
in economic condition. In order to maintain
or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, obtain bank borrowings, or issue
new shares.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the
gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as total
bank borrowings divided by total equity.

Total debt BEFRE
Total equity BiEm

Gearing ratio

The gearing ratio decreased from 67% to
55% following the adoption of HKFRS 16
Leases. Total equity decreased following the
recognition of right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities on 1 April 2019. See Note 2.3 for
further information.

AEBZEAERBREERE
AEBZHERQERN BRI
HEOE - AREERFHENENER
PUBE B AR A

AEEEREAGER  URELH
AR BB EH AR - RERH
BEARGERE ASELeHBEN
BRZB B2 - BEUERTTREREK
BITH

AEBFAEAREELEERE
A o BRI HRER AR
HEAEE o

2020 2019
—E-%F —T-AF
HK’000 HK’000
FET FHT
676,809 810,106
1,226,082 1,209,926
55% 67%

RN E BB 7% 0, E R F 1657
HE®%R  BEEABHEHTRRE
55% c R—E—NFMH A —HI#R
FRABEERTEERREER @ BHEDS
BERL « E—FER RMIFE2.3
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% ¥R AR MY 5

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation
The table below analyses the Group’s financial
instruments carried at fair value as at 31 March
2020 and 2019 by level of inputs to valuation
techniques used to measure fair value. Such
inputs are categorised into three levels within a
fair value hierarchy as follows:

° quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities
(level 1);

° inputs other than quoted prices included
within level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly (that is, as
prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from
prices) (level 2); and

° inputs for the asset or liability that are not

based on observable market data (that is,
unobservable inputs) (level 3).

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED w5 E AR A A

3 B¥EARER#)

3.3

DAFPEMGE
TRIEZFEAFEMAGBEELS
ABBEOERUAEBRN _F =
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52 W CRIGEE) (B—
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %% i a MY =

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 MERERERE®
(continued)
3.3 Fair value estimation (continued) 3.3 DAFEMEE(E)
The following table presents the Group’s TREINZZEZZFER_F—N,
financial assets that are at fair value at 31 FZA=Z+—BAXEBUATFE
March 2020 and 2019. AECESRMEE -
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£-E E°F E=FE @t
HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FEx
At 31 March 2020 R=Z-B£=B=1-H
Assets BE
Financial assets at fair value #BEHEATEYE
through profit or loss LEREE 8,533 - 12,336 20,869
8,533 - 12,336 20,869
At 31 March 2019 RZZ-NE=A=+-H
Assets BE
Financial assets at fair value #EBEHIEATEYE
through profit or loss LEREE 14,140 - - 14,140
14,140 - - 14,140
There were no transfers between Level 1, FR-F—E F_EBHFEZEZ
2 and 3 and no other changes in valuation B mER - (HEFENEEME
techniques during the year. & o
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

Financial instruments in level 1

The fair value of financial instruments traded
in active markets is based on quoted market
prices at the statement of financial position
date. A market is regarded as active if quoted
prices are readily and regularly available from
an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group,
price services or regulatory agency, and those
prices represent actual and regularly occurring
market transactions on an arm’s length basis.

Financial instruments in level 2

The fair value of financial instruments that are
not traded in an active market (for example,
over-the-counter derivatives) is determined
using valuation techniques which maximise
the use of observable market data and rely as
little as possible on entity-specific estimates.
If all significant inputs required to fair value an
instrument are observable, the instrument is
included in level 2.

Financial instruments in level 3

If one or more of the significant inputs is
not based on observable market data, the
instrument is included in level 3. This is the
case for key management insurance.

The fair value of insurance policy investments
that is not traded in an active market is
determined based on the higher of cash
surrender value and fair value determined by
discounted cash flow model. The significant
unobservable inputs that determine the
fair value is cash surrender value, which is
contractually agreed upon entering into the
insurance contract.

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED #E#&EBAR A7
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MERRER 2
3.3 DAFEMEE(E)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3
(continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)
Financial instruments in level 3 (continued)
The following table presents the changes in
level 3 instruments for the years ended 31
March 2020 and 2019.

At 1 April RMUA—H

Additions NE

Fair value loss recognised to RERER
profit or loss NEEEE

At 31 March R=A=+—H”

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES 4
AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and assumptions are continually evaluated
and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events
that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

B 7% ¥R AR MY 5
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TRENE-ETAREE"F
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2020 2019
—g-8F —T AF
HK’000 HK’000
FET FET

15,499 -

(3,163) -

12,336 -

EXRGEHEEH R A

fEt RA B RS EN G LIRBEL
BEhEMAR(BRERBBERLTNAE
RAEBZARKEMH TR MIEL -

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 4 [Z i KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED &#sBEAR A r]

157



158

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 i a MY =

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition seldom equal to
the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year are discussed below.

4.1

(a)

(b)

Fair value of freehold land and
buildings and investment properties
The Group carries its freehold land and
buildings, and investment properties
at fair value with changes in the fair
value recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income
and consolidated income statement,
respectively. It obtains independent
valuations at least annually. At the end of
each reporting period, the management
updates their assessment of the fair value
of each property, taking into account
the most recent independent valuations.
Refer to Note 15 and Note 16 for the
assumptions, valuation techniques and
fair value measurement.

Provision for inventories

The Group’s management reviews the
inventory aging analysis periodically,
and makes allowance for obsolete and
slow-moving inventory items identified
that are no longer suitable for sales. The
Group carries out an inventory review
on a product-by-product basis at the
end of each reporting period and makes
allowance for obsolete and slow-moving
items through management’s estimation
of the net realisable value for such
obsolete and slow-moving items based
primarily on the latest invoice prices and
current market conditions, including the
consideration of potential impacts on the
subsequent sales orders and demand of
its products resulting from the COVID-19
outbreak.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions (continued)

(c)

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 4 [Z i

Useful lives of property, plant and
equipment

The Group determines the estimated
useful lives and related depreciation
charges for its property, plant and
equipment. This estimate is based on the
historical experience of the actual useful
lives of property, plant and equipment
of similar nature and functions. It could
change significantly as a result of
technical innovations and competitor
actions in response to severe industry
cycles. Management will increase the
depreciation charge where useful lives are
less than previously estimated lives, or
it will write-off or write-down technically
obsolete or non-strategic assets that have
been abandoned or sold.

B 7% ¥R AR MY 5
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% ¥R AR MY 5

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions (continued)

(d)

Impairment of property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets,
intangible assets and investments
accounted for using equity method
Assets that have an indefinite useful life
are tested annually for impairment; or
more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that they might
be impaired. Other assets are tested for
impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable.
The recoverable amounts have been
determined based on the higher of value-
in-use calculations or fair value less costs
of disposal. These calculations require
the use of judgements and estimates.
Management judgement is required in
the area of asset impairment, including
the consideration of the expected market
conditions, in assessing: (i) whether an
event has occurred that may indicate
that the related asset values may not
be recoverable; (i) whether the carrying
value of an asset can be supported by the
recoverable amount, being the higher of
fair value less costs of disposal and net
present value of future cash flows which
are estimated based upon the continued
use of the asset in the business; and
(iii) the appropriate key assumptions
to be applied in preparing cash flow
projections including whether these
cash flow projections are discounted
using an appropriate rate. Changing the
assumptions selected by management
in assessing impairment, including
the discount rates or the growth rate
assumptions in the cash flow projections,
could materially affect the net present
value used in the impairment test and
as a result affect the Group’s financial
condition and results of operations.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)
4.1 Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions (continued)

(e)

)

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 4 [Z i

Provision for impairment of financial
assets

The fair value of financial instruments
that are not traded in an active market is
determined using valuation technigues.
The Group uses its judgement to
select a variety of methods and make
assumptions that are mainly based on
market conditions existing at the end
of each reporting period, including the
consideration of the global health issues.
For details of advise impacts on the
demand of its product due to the key
assumptions used and the impact of
changes to these assumptions see Note
3.3.

Provision for properties under
development and completed
properties held for sales

The Group assesses the carrying
amounts of properties under development
and completed properties held for
sale according to their net realisable
values based on the realisability of
these properties and consideration of
the potential impact on selling price
resulting from the COVID-19 outbreak.
Net realisable value for properties under
development is determined by reference
to management’s estimates of the
selling price based on prevailing market
conditions, less applicable variable
selling expenses and the anticipated
costs to completion. Net realisable
value for completed properties held
for sale is determined by reference
to management’s estimates of the
selling price based on prevailing market
conditions, less applicable variable selling
expenses. Based on management’s
best estimates, there was no impairment
for properties under development and
completed properties held for sale.
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B 7% ¥R AR MY 5

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions (continued)

(9)

Impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether
goodwill have suffered any impairment,
in accordance with the accounting policy
stated in Note 2.12. The recoverable
amounts of cash-generating units have
been determined based on the higher
of value- in-use calculations or fair value
less costs of disposal. These calculations
require the use of judgements and
estimates. Management judgement is
required in the area of asset impairment
particularly in assessing: (i) whether an
event has occurred that may indicate
that the related asset values may not
be recoverable; (i) whether the carrying
value of an asset can be supported by the
recoverable amount, being the higher of
fair value less costs of disposal and net
present value of future cash flows which
are estimated based upon the continued
use of the asset in the business; and
(iiiy the appropriate key assumptions
to be applied in preparing cash flow
projections including whether these
cash flow projections are discounted
using an appropriate rate. Changing the
assumptions selected by management
in assessing impairment, including
the discount rates or the growth rate
assumptions in the cash flow projections,
could materially affect the net present
value used in the impairment test and
as a result affect the Group’s financial
condition and results of operations.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions (continued)

(h)

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 4 [Z i

Current and deferred income tax

The Group is subject to taxes in Hong
Kong and the PRC. Significant judgement
is required in determining the provision
for various kinds of taxes. There are
many transactions and calculations for
which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain. The Group recognises liabilities
for anticipated tax audit issues based
on estimates of whether additional taxes
will be due. Where the final tax outcome
of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the consolidated
income statement in the period in which
such determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain
temporary differences and tax losses are
recognized when management considers
it is probable that future taxable profit will
be available against which the temporary
differences or tax losses can be utilised.
Where the expectation is different from
the original estimates, such difference
will impact the recognition of deferred tax
assets and income tax in the period in
which such estimates are changed.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

Chief operating decision maker (“CODM”) has been
identified as the Board of Directors of the Company
(the “Directors”). CODM reviews the Group’s internal
reports in order to assess performance, allocate
resources and determine the operating segments.

For management purposes, the Group is organised
into business units based on their products and
services and has four reportable operating segments
as follows:

(@) the electrical and electronic products segment
consists of the manufacture and sale of Al
robotics, IoT and smart home products,
electronic entertainment products and other
related products;

(b)  the motors segment consists of the development,
design, manufacture and sale of electric motor
drives and related products and encoder film;

(c) the real estate development segment; and

(d) the glass technology and application segment
consists of the sale and downstream processing
of glass as well as the design, manufacture and
installation of curtain wall systems.

The operation of glass technology and application
segment (“Disposal Group”) was discontinued
during year ended 31 March 2020 and its assets
and liabilities were classified as held for sale as
at balance sheet date. Information about the
discontinued operation is provided in Note 27.
The comparative figures in the consolidated
income statement and consolidated statement
of comprehensive income have been restated
to present the results of Disposal Group as
discontinued operation.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

The information about electrical and electronic
products segment, motor segment and the real
estate development segment (collectively the
“Remaining Group”) are presented as continuing
operations in the consolidated financial statements.

Management monitors the operating results of the
Group’s business units separately for the purpose
of making decisions about resources allocation and
performance assessment. Segment performance is
evaluated based on operating profit or loss which in
certain respects, as explained in the table below, is
measured differently from operating profit or loss in
the consolidated financial statements.

Group financing (including finance costs and finance
income) and income taxes are managed on a group
basis and are not allocated to operating segments.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with
reference to the selling prices used for sales made to
the third parties at the then prevailing market prices.

Segment assets exclude unallocated assets as these
assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude unallocated liabilities as
these liabilities are managed on a group basis.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 SEER @)
(a) Operating segments (a) ¥%o8E
The following tables present revenue, results TRE ;‘J ASERBE-ZE-F
and certain asset, liability and expenditure & &—‘ 7_{13# — H\,: + R H %
. | , . R EBHEINS  RHERE
information for the Group’s operating segments THEE BEESTPAR
RE B BE o
for the years ended 31 March 2020 and 2019.
31 March 2020 —E-_EF=H=+—H
Continuing operations Discontinued operation
BEReLy BALEEEE
Glass
Electrical and technology
electronic Real estate and
products Motors  development Others  Eliminations Sub-total application  Eliminations ~ Consolidated
EXRETER B4 RUHERR it By Mt BERERER baf G
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
7 - FEL FEx FEL FEr FEL 7 FEr
Segmentrevenve  HEIE
Revenue from RENEPH
extenal customers 4%
Timing of revenve  BEZNEER
recognition
-Mapontoftime -FEEREE 202402 836,745 75,074 - - 41142 44,033 - 3158254
- Over time -FERRE - - - - - - 9,798 - 9,798
2,202,402 836,745 75,074 - - 3,114,221 53,831 - 3,168,052
Inter-segment sales  HREIMHHEE 31,283 4023 - - (85,306) - 1,802 (1,802) -
Total H) 2,233,685 840,768 75,074 - (35,306) 3,114,221 55,633 (1,802) 3,168,052
Other income/ ElA/
expenses)and  (B) R/
gains/fosses), net  (E) + #8 36,081 38,840 (4 1,040 - 75919 1,090 - 77,009
Segmentresults  HEEE 162,172 45,40 (1,574) (3,022) - 202,986 (8,800) - 194,186
Unallocated gain, net k2B + 38 25,728 25,728
Unallocated expenses 2 B X (13,559) (13,559)
Finance costs, net  BIBER - 8§ (17,74) (17,742)
Share of losses from [E[FiB 22
investment in K& B8
assoclates (955) (955)
Profit before RETERA
income tax a7 196,458 187,658
Income tax fiEH
expensejoredit (%) /#4 (22,821) 528 (22,203
Profitfor the year 7 173,631 165,365
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SRR E

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 So¥EER®
(@) Operating segments (continued) (a) ¥ (#E)
31 March 2020 (continued) “E-EBF=ZRA=+—-H#E)
Continuing operations Discontinued operation
RRAERE BRLEEEH
Glass
Electrical and Real technology
electronic estate and
products Motors  development Others  Eliminations Sub-total application  Eliminations ~ Consolidated
EER RERE

E1ER B RUEIR L0 He i RER Hi &4
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEn FET Fén FEr T FEn T FEn T

Segment assets AREE 1,594,513 1,056,239 600,366 46,485 (922,062) 2,375,541 132,153 - 2,507,694
Unalocated assets ~ RAERZE 366,667 366,667
Total assels BEE 2,742,208 2,874,361
Seqment labiites S BEE 313,635 416,848 679,142 264,869 (922,062) 752,432 95,596 - 848,028
Unallocated liabilties  #7E & & 800,251 800,251
Total liabilties Bak 1,552,683 1,648,279
Other segment EHAEER:
information;
Capta expendire B4 52 33,758 121,117 12 - - 154,887 2033 - 156,920
Depreciaionand ~ FTEREH
amortisation 54,537 61,404 139 1,429 - 117,509 5917 - 123,426
Unallocated amounts~ #7 & 518 429 429
117,938 123,855
Loss/[gain) on LENE BER
disposal of property, FEZEB/
plant and equipment,  (4) - FE&
ngt 652 (30) - - - 622 (36) - 586
Ganon disposal of  HE-EHEY
aproperty & (16,842) - - - - (16,842) - - (16,842)
Write-off tems of
property, plantand AR
equipment 5,624 - - - - 5,624 1,597 - 7,221
Defctsurplus)on ~ ERREREDZ
revaluation of HHRETL
lndand buidings ~ EffH/(24)
recognised directly in
equity 2,931 878 - (731) - 3,084 - - 3,084
Unallocated amounts ~ RAEZE 1,780 1,780
4,864 4,864
Farvalelosson — REMEZATE
investment properties &8 - - 29 - - 229 - - 229
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 i a MY =

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(a)

Operating segments (continued)
31 March 2019

Segmentrevenve  HEIE

Revenue from RENAZP
extemal customers  #%

Timing of revenve ~ BAUEER
recognition

-Atapontoftime -EXEEEY

- Over time -fEER

Inter-segment sales  HEEMHEE

Tota it

Otherincomeand ~ E U\ s »
gains, net it

Seqmentresuls  AEEE

Unallocated geins, net % AN + 58

Unallocated expenses K ARG

Finance costs, net
Share of loss from
investment in

associates

Profit before
income tax

Income tax
(expensg/credit

Profit for the year

HBER 58
EERBEDA
REZER

85 AR
i

fie
(R2)/K%

EREN

5 ZEERM®
(@) ¥EBoEE)
—E-hAFE=A=+—H
Continuing operations Discontinued operation
BEEEEE BRILEREE
Electrical

and (lass

glectronic Real estate technology and
products Motors  development Others Elimination Sub-fotal application  Eliminations  Consolidated

EER RBRI
E1Em B RHELER Eft HH Iy RER 2f 4
HK§'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK8'000 HK§'000 HK8'000 HK§'000 HK8'000
FAT 7T FET FEL FET FET FET 7T FET
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(E5) (#E5) (&5 (#E5) (E5) (#E5)
3,166,417 972,817 - 652 - 4,139,886 45,65 - 4,185,541
- - - - - - 36,337 - 36,337
3,166,417 92817 - 652 - 4,139,886 81,992 - 42218718
46,471 7491 - - (63,962) - 825 (825) -
3,212,888 980,308 - 652 (63,962) 4,139,886 82817 (825) 4221878
14,312 41,809 6,310 7,209 - 69,640 1,473 - 71113
93,03 56,793 (402) 4199 - 163,620 (6,229) - 148,400
6,772 6,772
(12,445) (12,445)
(12,729) (12,729)
(827) (827)
134,396 129,171
(19,178) 48 (18,760)
115,218 10411
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% ¥R AR MY 5

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 S2EER®
Operating segments (continued) (a) XXKoE(E)
31 March 2019 (continued) —E-AE=ZRA=+-—-A8(#E)
Continuing operations Discontinued operation
FEEREE BRILAEEH
Electrical and (lass
glectronic Real estate technology and
products Motors ~ development QOthers Elimination Sub-total application  Efiminations  Consolidated
155 ‘ R
E1ER S BHELRE iff Y g RER 3f ] fa
HK8'000 HK$ 1000 HK8'000 HK$ 000 HK8'000 HK§'000 HK8'000 HK§'000 HK8'000
FET  TEE FET  TEE FBT TEE FBT TEE FhR
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated
(E5]) (&E5) (&) (&E5) (&E5) (&E5)
Segment assets S EEE 2,014,725 1,146,035 590,609 52,961 (921,014) 2,883,316 130,896 (1,378) 3,012,834
Unallocated assets kAR AE 376,637 376,637
Total assefs BaE 3,259,963 3389471
Segment liablites S EEE 682,729 489415 663,131 279,389 (921,014) 1,193,650 90,846 (1,378) 1,083,118
Unallocated liabiities 7 E & 896,427 896,427
Total liabilties #ak 2,090,077 2,179,545
Other segment P EEH:
information:
Capital expenditure  EA% 129,39 169,160 408 68 - 299,031 1,762 - 300,793
Depreciationand ~ FERE
amortisation 52,44 47,049 20 1212 - 100,795 4872 - 105,667
Unallocated amounts % 78 518 1,705 1,705
102,500 107,372
Gain on disposal of  HEHE - BR
property, plant and [ A& 2 Uk -
equipment, net  F8 (1,343) (%) - - - (1,439) - - (1,438)
Surplus on BRRNERRDL
revauationof  HHRETE
land and buildings £ &
recognised directly
in equity (41,487) (14,725) - (7,158 - (63,370) - - (63,370)
Unallocated amounts &% & 5178 (5,560) (5,560)
(68,930) (68,930)
Fair value loss/lgaln) R&NE 2 ATE
oninvestment B8/ ()
properties 638 = (6,021) - - (5,383) - = (6,383)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 i a MY =

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

5 2E&ER @@

(b) Geographical information (b) i E R
United States of America Europe Asia Others Consolidated
EL Bl il it g4
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 219
Z8CR% “T-NF ZRCBE _E-NF CBIRE CTNF CRISE CT-NF ZBIRF CTNE
HKS$'000  HKS'000  HKS$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000
F&r  FEr  TEr  TEr  TErn  FEr FEn TEr TEn TEr
(Restated) (Restated)
(i&E5) (iE3])
Segment revenue: ARUE:
Revenue from extemal customers — RESNERE P A&
- Continuing perations - BREOLER 1,602,165 1715470 505274 949,124 1,005,390 1,283,157 1,392 192135 3114221 4,139,886
- Discontinued operation - BRIHIEEH - - - - 538 B0 - - B3R 81O
The revenue information above is based on the Pt S ER TDIRIER S AT i
locations of the customers. 5 o
Hong Kong Mainland China Malaysia Consolidated
B HER BREE &a
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019

ZEC8E “E-N5F CZBIEE

HK$'000  HK$'000

“E-NF ZBZBfE “S-NF ZBIEE _Z-)F

HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HK§000  HKS$'000
fEr  TErT TRz TErT  TEx  TEL

FER T
Other segment information: ~ Ht 2 E&H
Non-current assets ERBEE
- Remining Group - BT&E 8775 109,114
- Disposal Group - HEE£R - -

(c)

1,250,721 1,378,076 33,101 28374 1,292,597 1,515,064

57,199

- - - 57,199 -

The non-current assets for the above segment
information consist of property, plant and
equipment, investment properties, right-of-
use assets, prepaid land lease payments
which were reclassified as right-of-use assets
under HKFRS 16 on 1 April 2019, investment
in associates, properties under development,
intangible assets and prepayments and
deposits, but exclude deferred tax assets and
financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss.

Information about major customers
Revenue of HK$1,704,319,000 (2019:
HK$2,667,326,000) was derived from sales of
electrical and electronic products to a major
customer, which accounted for 55% (2019:
64%) of the Group’s total revenue.

(c)

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED w5 E AR A A

FRABEERZERDEERR
ERAEEE ALl (R
T-NFMA—-ARBEEBMBH
EERFIHREI DB R ERE
BE) MRBEQRZKRE #ER
hYE - BIZEENRFANKIER
BE  ETERBEREHEEENE
BRERAFEIRZEREE

EBEIXEEF &R

I %51,704,319,000%& T (= =&
— 1% : 2,667,326,000/8 ) JHR
ER—REBRFHEERLE
TER  ZBPEAEBE NS5
55% (=ZF—NF : 64%) °
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% ¥R AR MY 5

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 oEER#)
(d) Assets and liabilities related to contract (d EBEEFEHAZEERERE

with customers
The Group has recognised the following
assets and liabilities related to contracts with

customers:
Continuing operations: BERSEER
Contract liabilities related to EHAHEEED
sales of goods (Note i) aBHaE(Witi)
Contract liabilities related to EHHEEMEL
sales of properties (Note i) A& H )
Discontinued operation: ERIEEEET .
Contract liabilities related to glass BEEEBEENTHE
production and installation EHBE
Total contract liabilities BB ERT
Discontinued operation: ERIEEEET .
Contract assets related to glass EHEEBEEEMLE
production and installation BREE
Loss allowance E RS
Total contract assets AHEERE
Notes:

(i) These consist of advanced payments received
from customers for goods that have not yet
been transferred to the customers.

(i) These consist of advanced payments received
from customers resulting from the properties
sales.

AEBEERBATEREREHN
ZEENAIE:

2020 2019
—E_EHF —E-NF
HK’000 HK’000
FAETT FHET
33,652 92,618
34,440 72,296
68,092 164,914
924 1,267
69,016 166,181
26,598 23,305
(965) (322)
25,633 22,983

Wi -
() HERAHABBREEFPZEM
A 5 P 8 55 W AR 2 3R

(i) WEEXEHEEMEATSAK
PANE

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 4 [Z i KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED &% 5EEAE R A
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 o¥ER@®

TER-E

Revenue recognised in relation to contract (e) MENEBERIAZUz:
liabilities

The following table shows how much of the TERETHEZZ

revenue recognised for the year ended 31 —NAE=ZRA=+T—-"BLEFERE
March 2020 and 2019 relates to carried- BENBBERR 2 WK -

forward contract liabilities:

2020
—E-TF
HK’000
F#ET
Contract liabilities related to EHBEEERMMEZ
sales of goods and properties aHaE
- Continuing operations - FEKEED 158,374

- Discontinued operation — BRI EE 1,267




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6 OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET 6

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 4 [Z i

Fair value (loss)/gain on financial assets

at fair value through profit or loss, net

Fair value (loss)/gain on investment
properties, net (Note 16)

(Loss)/gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment, net

Gain on disposal of a property
(Note 34(b))

Gain on disposal of equity interest
in an associate (Note 21)

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary
(Note 34(b))

Gross rental income

Sales of scrap materials

Subsidy income (Note)

Write-back of impairment in property,
plant and equipment

Others

Note:

Various government subsidies have been received from the
local government authorities for subsidising the operating
activities, research and development activities, and
acquisition of fixed assets. During the year ended 31 March
2020, subsidy income amounting to HK$47,268,000 (2019:
HK$45,545,000) are recognised in profit or loss, including
the recognition of deferred government subsidy income of

HK$36,595,000 (2019: HK$33,112,000).

EBREREAFEYER
ZeMEEZATAE
(E518), /W - F58

KEWMEZ ATE
(E18),/ W - F5
(Htit16)

HEME - BEMKEKEEE
2 (B518), W= - F58

HE—EWEZ W
(B a£341b))

o — BB & R B R
2 WEs (fiE21)

HE—RKBARZ
Wzt (#77234(0b))

e ALz

& R R

WA A (f7:F)

L E =
RN IR

Hh

e

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED & 5= E A R A A

B 7% ¥R AR MY 5

Htb W A R W& - 55

2020 2019
—E-FF —T-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET FET
(Restated)

(geE %)

(4,956) 6,720
(229) 5,383
(622) 1,438
16,842 -
1,013 -
31,416 -
928 3,778
6,024 3,037
47,268 45,545

- 7,189

3,963 3,322
101,647 76,412

RATFIE B & BUT #8E WCERE 1 T
B EEES AR EFHRKERTE
BE RBE-_ET-_ETF=A=+—801
FE WA A 47,268,000 L (=&
— L4 : 45,545,000/ 7T) B R 1B AER
B B SR X AT 6 B U A 36,595,000/ 7T
(ZZ—h%F : 33,112,000 7C) °
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 i a MY =

7 FINANCE COSTS, NET 7 BMBER FH
2020 2019
—E-FF —TNF
HK’000 HK’000
FET FEL
(Restated)
(&%)
Interest expense on bank loans RITERZFERAZ 18,585 14,135
Interest expense on lease liabilities HEBBEIZMBRAX

(Note 17(b)) (K1zt17(b) 360 -
Bank interest income HRITHEUA (1,203) (1,406)
17,742 12,729
During the year ended 31 March 2020, interest REZE_Z_FTF=-HAH=1T—HLHF
of HK$10,003,000 (2019: HK$9,760,000) was & 210,003,000 L (ZZ& — N,
capitalised under properties under development. The % : 9,760,000 ) RERFMEIRT
capitalisation rate used to determine the amount of BRAE o AREE K T &R E K
borrowing costs to be capitalised is the weighted REEMNENMEERBBEANEBRFAE
average interest rate applicable to the entity’s R MEFHFE - B13.6% (ZFE—N

borrowings during the year of 3.6% (2019: 3.7%). F:8.7%) ¢

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED &% EAR A A ANNUAL REPORT 2020 F [& &



ANNUAL REPORT 2020 4 [Z i

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

8 PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after

(crediting)/charging:

Cost of inventories sold

Cost of properties sold

Amortisation of prepaid land lease
payments

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment (Note 15)

Depreciation of right-of-use assets
(Note 17)

Direct operating expenses (including
repairs and maintenance) arising from
rental earning investment properties

Employee benefit expenses (Note 9)

Legal and professional fee

Short-term lease expenses

Operating lease payments in respect
of land and buildings

(Write-back of impairment)/impairment
of inventories (Note 22)

Write-off of property, plant and equipment 5% - W= L& E

B 7% ¥R AR MY 5

8 BRBAIEF
REBZBRBAEFE GTA) /BT
P& IH -
2020 2019
—E-TF —ZET-NF
HK’000 HK’000
FET FET
(Restated)
(gE5)
BEEFEKAK 2,051,161 2,919,209
EEWMERAN 69,832 -
A+ 0 FH & 8
= 650
W BEREETE
(B1a15) 114,167 101,850
FREEETNE
(Hi17) 3,771 -
B S 2 IREMEELE
CHELERY (B
HIERIRE) 130 281
BE®FAZ (A:29) 546,614 735,056
FRNEEEA 6,889 8,942
HEHEERX 1,135 -
THEREFLELRS
3 = 7,268
FECRERE), HE
(M it22) (12,725) 3,034
5,624 -

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED & 5= E A R A A
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 i a MY =

9 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 9 EERAMAX
(a) Employee benefit expenses (including (a) EEEFNMZ(BREEZHMH)
Directors’ emoluments)
2020 2019
—EZEF —ZT-NEF
HK’000 HK’000
F#ET FAET
(Restated)
(&)
Wages, salaries and other I& #Fek
employee welfares Hitvfg B F 544,739 731,962
Retirement benefits costs RRAE R B A 1,875 2,114
Equity-settled share option DHEEREEZERERS
expense (Note 32) (K7a£32) — 980
546,614 735,056
(b) Five highest paid individuals (b) EfuBEESHMAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were NEEAEBAUSZSHFMAL
the highest in the Group for the year include EREEREL (ZZE—NF:14%)
five (2019: five) directors whose emoluments BE BFEESZMeRHIE10
are reflected in the analysis shown in Note 10. SEZ DT R o
(c) During the year, no emoluments have been (c) RERN AEEUEMESI(E
paid by the Group to the directors as an AT & 1E A I A ZN 52 B s i A K
inducement to join or upon joining the Group, EERFMNEE S IEABREEE (=
or as compensation for loss of office (2019: T—NFE M|E) o
Nil).

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED &% EAR A A ANNUAL REPORT 2020 F [& &



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

10 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS (DISCLOSURES
REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE (CAP. 622),
COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF
INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS
OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION
(CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING
RULES)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s
emoluments
The remuneration of every director and chief
executive for the year ended 31 March 2020

10

B 7% ¥R AR MY 5

ExTakExs (REBE(EE
N EMERBI) (5£622F ) % 3831%
(P8 (REBEESAEER) R
AI) (58622GE) R &R L™
HRAEEER)

(@ EERTFETBRAEME

BHE_Z_ZFR-_ZT—NF=
A=+—BLtFE REZREE

and 2019 is set out below: THABEMEMESI BT :
Equity- Pension
Discre- settled scheme
tionary  share option contri-
Fee Salary bonus expense butions Total
RAgs B
e 4 HERL BRERY STEER &
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
&7 &7 &7 FET FE7 &7
2020 ZBIEF
Executive directors and the HTESR
chief executive BETHAE
Cheng Chor Kit (Note j R4 i) - 6,000 - - = 6,000
Fung Wah Cheong, Vincent B%8 - 3,600 - - 18 3,618
Liu Tat Luen BiEg - 1,692 - - 18 1,710
Cheng Tsz To grg - 1,800 - - 18 1,818
Cheng Tsz Hang g1 - 2,160 - - 18 2,178
Hui Ka Po, Alex (Note i SRR (M) - 973 - - 6 979
Independent non-executive directors BUFHTES
Wong Chi Wai i 300 - - - - 300
Sun Kwai Yu, Vivian BEm 300 - - - - 300
Cheng Kwok Kin, Paul BEy 300 - - - - 300
Cheung Wang Ip Ko 300 - - - - 300
1,200 16,225 - - 78 17,503

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 4 [Z i KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED &#sBEAR A r]
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R R Y EE

10 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF 10 EEFERER (RB(ER
DIRECTORS (DISCLOSURES DN EMEBI) (E622F ) 5£3831%
REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF (PE) (HEBEESFRER) R
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES Bl) ($622GE) REER L™
ORDINANCE (CAP. 622), HEABEESR) ()
COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF
INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS
OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION
(CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING
RULES) (continued)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s (a) EERFETHAEMSE (&)
emoluments (continued)
Equity-
settled Pension
Discretionary  share option scheme
Fee Salary bonus expense  contributions Total
hrig Rike
iEa e BERL  BRERR FE [ @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T AT AT FET FET FET
2019 ZE-nf
Executive directors HTEER
and the chief executive ERTBAR
Cheng Chor Kit (Note j BRE W) - 4,500 - - - 4,500
Fung Wah Cheong, Vincent BEE - 2,700 - - 18 2,718
Liu Tat Luen BiEg - 1,269 - - 18 1,287
Cheng Tsz To g1% - 1350 - - 18 1,368
Cheng Tsz Hang g+ - 1,620 - - 18 1,638
Hui Ka Po, Alex (Nots i) SRR Wti) - 2,610 - 17 18 2,745
Independent non-executive directors BIFHTES
Wong Chi Wai i 300 - - 82 - 382
Sun Kwai Yu, Vivian BEm 300 - - 82 - 382
Cheng Kwok Kin, Paul ey 300 - - 82 - 382
Cheung Wang Ip K5 300 - - 82 - 382
1,200 14,049 445 0 15,784

There was no arrangement under which a
director or the chief executive waived or agreed
to waive any remuneration during the year

(2019: Nil).
Notes:

(i) Mr. Cheng Chor Kit, a director of

the

Company, is also the chief executive of the

Company.

(i) Mr. Hui Ka Po, Alex, had resigned as an

executive director with effective from 8
2019.

July

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED &3 &EEBR A A

RER TEEEXHSTRAS

MEXREREZETAME 2 L8

(ZE—NFE) -

BaE

(i) ARRESBRGILETARR
AITTERABEL -

(i) HFRRELECBEHAWNTES B
—E-NAFEANBRERER -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

10 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS (DISCLOSURES
REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE (CAP. 622),
COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF
INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS
OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION
(CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING
RULES) (continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 S /Z k&

Directors’ retirement benefits

None of the directors received or will receive
any retirement benefits during the year ended
31 March 2020 (2019: Nil).

Directors’ termination benefits

None of the directors received or will receive
any termination benefits during the year ended
31 March 2020 (2019: Nil).

Consideration provided to third parties for
making available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the
Company did not pay consideration to any third
parties for making available directors’ services
(2019: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans

and other dealings in favour of directors,
controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entities with such directors
During the year ended 31 March 2020, there
is no loans, quasi-loans and other dealing
arrangements in favour of the directors, or
controlled body corporates and connected
entities of such directors (2019: Nil).

B R Y EE

10 EENRZRER (RKBEEEB
A EEBIY (5£622F ) 5538315
(PRI (BBEENZER) R
AlY (6622GE) R EFRB L™
AAEEER) 2

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

EEEAKEA

BHE2_ZT-_FEF=-A=+—H1
FERN - BEESERIIBRENE
RKREN(ZE—NEF : F)

EEHEEH
HE_T-FF=A=+—A1t
FER - BREFRE RN
ABRER (T —A%: F) -

RERREFRBRATE=S
18
BE-T-SF=A=T-AL
FEAAABERERGES
BB ARETEAE=H (=%
—NEE) .

BREES  SESZHNEAE
ERRE=STHEERAFELNE

RREUER  URERZEES
HMEMRSHER

HE-Z-FF=A=+-AL
FF - ARATBENES  AFE
F2HEEABNBREESEH
BEBEHERRALER - AR
BRESEALHRMZPRH (=
T-NF:F) o

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED &% 5= & A fR A &)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 i a MY =

10 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS (DISCLOSURES
REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE (CAP. 622),
COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF
INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS
OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION
(CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING
RULES) (continued)

(f) Directors’ material interests in (f)
transactions, arrangements or contracts =
Apart from those disclosed in Note 15
and Note 34, no significant transactions,
arrangements and contracts in relation to the
Group’s business to which the Company was
a party and in which a director of the Company
had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at
any time during the year.

10 EEFZRER (KBEEE
A EMEBY (5£622F ) 5538315
(PRI (BBEEENZER) R
AlY (6622GE) kEFER L™
AAWEER) &)

ESERS  RYHAEHNTHNEKX

B B RE15 5 S RE34PT ¢ 58 & 4b -
RAFERLFREMER - 3
BEASEXEGABFECLEER
7 BHREH - RARRRB—
77 ARARREEERIEEL
FHEEANERE

11 INCOME TAX 11 FiI8#H
2020 2019
—B-BF —E-NF
HK’000 HK’000
FET FiET
(Restated)
(&e=E3)
Current — Hong Kong KEF-HB
Charge for the year FAZH 8,599 12,142
Adjustment for current tax of prior years &1 4 /& B H3 F 18 T & 3,412 2,180
Current — Elsewhere REF -Hb @
Charge for the year FAZH 6,987 2,591
Adjustment for current tax of prior years 381 4F /& B B3 £ 18 58 2 (8) (8,118)
Deferred tax (Note 30) RIERIA (B 7#30) 3,831 10,383
Total tax charge for the year FABIBEZ LA 22,821 19,178

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED &3 &EEBR A A
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INCOME TAX (continued)

A reconciliation of the tax charge applicable to profit
before tax at the statutory rates for the locations
in which the Company and the majority of its
subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense at the
weighted average tax rate of 16.7% (2019: 15.7%) is

B 75 ¥ 2= B RE

11 & &)

BRARBRERZHMERRFAEN 2
EEBEAE 2 BARKRB AR 2
BRXERMETFABRE16.7% (ZF
—NF 15.7%) 5H & 2 BIEF X B R 40
T

as follows:

2020 2019

—ECEF —E-hnF

HK’000 HK’000

FET FET

(Restated)

(BE5)

Profit before tax B 750 Al g A 196,458 134,396

Tax at the statutory tax rates IRETERERFE 2718 32,713 21,137
Adjustments in respect of current B 838 7T B [ B A7

tax of previous periods HIB 2 A 3,404 (5,938)

Income not subject to tax BARR 2 BWA (10,825) (2,844)

Expenses not deductible for tax A2 A 3,068 3,874
Tax losses from previous periods utilised 2 ) @7 B~

TIEE 18 (2,084) (952)

Tax losses not recognised RIER 2 TR E 18 2,071 10,679

Effect of different taxation rates under HEEBET TR R
preferential tax treatment T (5,526) (6,778)
Tax charge A H 22,821 19,178

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate
of 16.5% (2019: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable
profits arising in Hong Kong during the year, except
for one subsidiary of the Group which is a qualifying
entity under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime
effective from the year of assessment 2018/2019.
The first HK$2,000,000 of assessable profits of
this subsidiary is taxed at 8.25% and the remaining
assessable profits are taxed at 16.5%.

Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have been
calculated at the applicable rates of tax prevailing
in the countries in which the Group operates. The
tax rate applicable to the subsidiaries in the PRC is
25% (2019: 25%), except for certain subsidiaries of
the Group in the PRC that were approved as High
and New Technology Enterprise during the vyear,
and accordingly, they were subject to a reduced
preferential corporate income tax (“CIT”) rate of 15%
for a 3-year period from 2017 to 2020 according to
the applicable CIT Law.

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED

EBNEHIIRFRNREBMEE Z(G
STRERR T % M IR16.5% (ZF — L 5F
16.5%) 2 TR EHiR il - i ASKE—
BB ARRIN  ZARAEZZE—N/
TE-NRBFERERZWEFNEH
EHETZAERER -ZWBRARZ
B2,000,000/% 7T F& 22 8 i A1) 128.25% Bt
REF - MEGEZRHREFBIR16.5%
TREHH -

RE I8 2 &R A 2 B IR AR A
SEREMEBRRBITZERBR R
B-FR- FEZHBRARZERRE
R25% (ZZF—NF : 25%) « ML E
ERBHMRME R 2 REBE T+ B
BARAIERSN - Ftt - RIBEREEM
BHRUIEEMEIHRI) L ER=F—+
FE_Z_ZF=FHRRI5%RE
BELEMESHBRENBIA -

BasREERAR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 i a MY =

12 DIVIDENDS 12 RE
2020 2019
—E-RF —ET-NEF
HK’000 HK’000
FET FET
Dividends paid during the year FRETRE
No final dividend in respect of the RAFETEREE
financial year ended 31 March 2019 —Z— A4 =H
paid during the year (2019: Final =t+t—HLEBERFE
dividend in respect of the financial IR REBRE (ZE—F
year ended 31 March 2018 - HK7.0 #HZ T — \#F
cents per ordinary share) —A=+—HILEMK
FEZRBARE -
TR ERR7.08) - 30,728
No interim dividend paid during T 7R 6 2 30 R A< AR HA RS
the year (2019: HK3.0 cents per (ZZ—hF:
ordinary share) T EBRS.05 ) - 13,168
- 43,896
The Board has resolved not to declare any final EFeRARTEEREBEE_ZT_ZEF
dividend for the year ended 31 March 2020 (2019: =A=1+—BIFEZFXRERE(ZZ
Nil). —NEE) -

182 KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED #E#&EBAR A7 ANNUAL REPORT 2020 4 [Z R



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 ¥ 2= B RE

13 EARNINGS PER SHARE 13 BREF
A reconciliation of the earnings used in calculating RAUGtESRERN 2 BAEERMT :

earnings per share is as follows:

2020 2019
—B_RF —E-NF
HK’000 HK’000
F#ET FET
(Restated)
(e&E5)
Profit attributable to the ordinary AU ESRERREERF
equity holders of the Company AR EBERFEA
used in calculating basic and diluted  JE{5 % A :
earnings per share:
From continuing operations REFELEETS 175,343 115,598
From discontinued operation REBERIEEEER (5,294) (3,214)
170,049 112,384
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing: FREARZRNTZTY)IEB BRETHE -
- profit for the year attributable to equity holders — ARAERFEAEBGEEERN
of the Company of HK$170,049,000 (2019: 170,049,000/ 7T (ZZE — L5 :

HK$112,384,000),

112,384,000/ 75) -

- by the weighted average number of ordinary — BRUFRBEZETLBRINETS
shares of 438,960,000 (2019: 438,831,233) in £438,960,0000% (Z&F — & :

issue during the year.

Earnings from continuing
operations per share

Losses from discontinued
operation per share

Total basic earnings per share
attributable to the equity
holders of the Company
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438,831,2330%)

2020 2019
—E-EF —E-hF
HK Cents HK Cents
B JEA
(Restated)
(&E5))
BELEER 2 GRER
39.95 26.34
ERIEEEEB 2 GREE
(1.21) (0.73)
KRREZFER ARG
BRERBF BEE
38.74 25.61

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED & 5= E A R A A
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B %5 i a MY =

13 EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued) 13 AR (&)
Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in BREERNNALERAUNEETERELREA
the determination of basic earnings per share to take Mz&BFAG K :

into account:

- the after income tax effect of interest and — HBEgET Lﬁxﬁfﬁﬁ’] f) 8 &%
other financing costs associated with dilutive R ERANBRITSREZE )Si
potential ordinary shares, and

- the weighted average number of additional - BRABEBEHETEREES
ordinary shares that would have been BB R NEITEIINFEINE B
outstanding assuming the conversion of all INREF 158y o

dilutive potential ordinary shares.

A reconciliation of the weighted average number of BUGEEREARANE SRR 2 T B
ordinary shares used in calculating the basic and IR e 2 HER T ¢

diluted earnings per share is as follows:

2020 2019
—B_-RF —E-NF
Weighted average number of ordinary LT EGREARRF 2
shares used in calculating basic TRBNEF S
earnings per share 438,960,000 438,831,233
Weighted average number of ordinary B NERNR ABITERE
shares assumed to have been AR ITE 2 B RS A I (S
issued at no consideration on BT BB INEF
deemed exercise of all options
outstanding during the year - 369,565
Weighted average number of ordinary A E S8 B & 2
shares used in calculating diluted TR BNE &
earnings per share 438,960,000 439,200,798
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IAL STATEMENTS
B %% i a MY =

13 EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued) 13 ERER (&)
2020 2019
—E-RF —ET-NEF
HK cents HK cents
B JBEA
Diluted earnings from continuing SEREEB 2
operations per share SRS ERT 39.95 26.32
Diluted losses from discontinued ERIEREERL 2
operation per share EREEESR (1.21) (0.73)
Total diluted earnings per share KRBT IFE AR
attributable to the equity holders FREERTIERE
of the Company 38.74 25.59
Earnings from continuing FEREEB 2 BREN
operations per share
- Basic earnings per share — BREREAEFR 39.95 26.34
- Diluted earnings per share — BREERT 39.95 26.32
Losses from discontinued BRIEEEER 2 BRBE
operation per share
— Basic losses per share — BIREANEE (1.21) (0.73)
- Diluted losses per share — BIREEEE (1.21) (0.73)
Diluted earnings/(losses) per share BREBEERERN(FE)

The diluted earnings/(losses) from continuing
operations and discontinued operation per share is
equal to the basic earnings/(losses) per share for the
year ended 31 March 2020 as the outstanding share
options did not have dilutive effect because the
exercise price per share option was higher than the
average share price of the Company during the year.

BE_ T TF=A=+—HILFEZ
BERN/ (BR) EZ8KRERRERN,
(B8R RASSOBREZITE
BERARRRNFRZFHRE - it
RITERE AL EHEHR -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 i a MY =

14 SUBSIDIARIES

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at

14 &2 =]
TESFIR-—E-_TEE=-A=+—A>

31 March 2020: TEWMBLAF :
Place of incorporation/  Particulars of Ownership
establishment and issued share interest held
Name kind of legal entity capital by the Group  Principal activities
RSB 3t B R rEEREEZ
ACEE: EAERER ERTRAFE FiEEEs TEEH
Directly held
EEEE
Kin Yat Holdings (BVI) British Virgin Islands, Ordinary share 100% Investment holding
Limited limited liability company USS$1
BEFkE(RERTES) HERZHEE BRAR EBRIET REER
BRAT
Indirectly held
BERE
Guizhou Kin Yat Property The PRC, Ordinary shares 100%  Property development
Company Limited limited liability company RMB130,000,000
EMBREHERRAR hE - BRAA TRRARE FEHERE
130,000,0007T
BNEHELEREBRAR The PRC, Ordinary shares 100%  Property development
limited liability company RMB200,000,000
hE - ARAA TARARYE FiER%
200,000,000t
Guizhou Standard Electric The PRC, Ordinary shares 100%  Manufacture and
Motor Company Limited limited liability company HK$110,000,000 trading of motors
EMBEBHRBRATF hE - ARAA L iA%110,000,0007%5 7 HEREEEH
Kin Yat (Guizhou) Robot The PRC, Ordinary shares 100% Manufacture and trading
Company Limited limited liability company RMB100,000,000 of electronic products
BEEMBEABRRA  HE ARAF LERARE HERBEETER
100,000,0007T
Kin Yat (Hong Kong) Hong Kong, Ordinary shares 100%  Trading of electrical
Corporation Limited limited liability company HK$10,000 products
BHE(ER)EXERAA BB BRRA & 5% 10,0007 7T BEEREM

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED

feaic

SEERAA
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14 SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

14 B AT &7

Place of incorporation/  Particulars of Ownership
establishment and issued share interest held
Name kind of legal entity capital by the Group  Principal activities
SMA R B R AEEEEZ
RAEMR EAERER ERITRAFE FiEEEs TEEH
Indirectly held (continued)
MERE (2)
Kin Yat Industrial Company Hong Kong, Ordinary shares 100%  Trading of toys,

Limited limited liability company HK$3,200,000 electronic products,
and sourcing of
materials

BAEEXBRAA 5% BRLA 3% 173,200,000 7T BEEMA SETEMK

MR

Newway Electrical Industries ~ Hong Kong, Ordinary shares 100%  Trading of electrical
(Hong Kong) Limited limited liability company HK$10,000 household appliances

MEEREE(BR)ARRA &S BRAA L MR10,000/8 7T EEXE

Penta Blesses Enterprises Hong Kong, Ordinary shares 100%  Investment and property
Limited limited liability company HK$1,000,000 holding

IREEERAA % BRLA LiEM%1,000,000% 7T RERFEME

Shaoguan Turbo Electronic The PRC, Ordinary shares 100% Manufacture and trading

Technology Company Limited  limited liability company US$8,000,000 of toys and electrical
appliances

HREEETRRERAA e BRAA L 3B/%8,000,000% 7T HEREEMARER
Shenzhen Kin Yat Power The PRC, Ordinary shares 100%  Manufacture and trading
Electronic Company Limited limited liability company US$5,000,000 of toys and electronic
products
RNEHREEFERARA hE - BRAA L 1B0%5,000,000% 7T HERBETARET
Em
Shixing Standard Motor The PRC, Ordinary shares 100%  Property holding,

Company Limited

MERRENEEEERAA
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limited liability company

hE BERAA

US$23,000,000

% %23,000,000% 7T

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED & 5= E A R A A

manufacture and
trading of motors
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14 SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 14 [EAF (&)

Place of incorporation/  Particulars of Ownership
establishment and issued share interest held
Name kind of legal entity capital by the Group  Principal activities
SMA R B R AEEEEZ
ARER EAERER ERITRAFE FiEEEs TEEH
Indirectly held (continued)
BERkE (2)
Smart Electric Motor Company  Hong Kong, Ordinary share 100%  Trading of motors and
Limited limited liability company HK$1 materials
BEERERDA 5% BRLA LTRBRIET ERSHRIH
Smart Electric Motor Singapore  Singapore, Ordinary shares 100%  Trading of motors
Pte. Limited limited liability company SG$100
g BRAE LR 0057 I3 T EEEH
Standard Encoder (Malaysia) Malaysia, Ordinary shares 100% Manufacture and trading
Sdn Bhd limited liability company RM500,000 of encoder film
HHRAET  ARAA &R AR500,0005 SERBERBRIEMN
Standard Land (Malaysia) Malaysia, Ordinary shares 100%  Property holding
Sdn Bhd limited liability company RM500,000
SRED  ARAA £ % %500,0005 % RENE
Standard Motor Company Hong Kong, Ordinary shares 100%  Trading of motors and
Limited limited liability company HK$40,000,000 sourcing of materials
SREMBEITERRR BB BRRA % i#0240,000,000/8 7T EESRLRRYN
Standard Motor Japan Japan, Ordinary shares 100%  Trading of motors
Company Limited limited liability company JPY10,000,000
BA - BRAF % #0210,000,0007 El EEEHK
World Talent Enterprise Hong Kong, Ordinary shares 100%  Trading of toys
Limited limited liability company HK$1,000,000
REGEXBRAA 5% BRAA 3% 1%1,000,000% 7T BEEMA
glEFae s (EM)BERAR  The PRC, Ordinary shares 64%  Sale and downstream
limited liability company RMB30,000,000 processing of glass
FE - FRAA LERARK HEM TN IHRE
30,000,0007T

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED #E#&EBAR A7
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% ¥R AR MY 5

14 B AT &7

Place of incorporation/  Particulars of Ownership
establishment and issued share interest held

Name kind of legal entity capital by the Group  Principal activities
EMARYL R BR rEEREZ

NEER EABRER BRTRAHFE FrEEERZ TEEY

Indirectly held (continued)

BEEE(E)

BEMEERERETE The PRC, Ordinary shares 64%  Design, manufacture

BRAT limited liability company RMB50,000,000 and installation of
curtain wall systems
FE - BRAA LTBRARE RET EERETER
50,000,0007¢ BERAS
RAMRESBEEERAH The PRC, Ordinary shares 100% Manufacture and trading

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 4 [Z i

limited liability company
mE - ARAA

RMB26,500,000
LEBRARE
26,500,0007C
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EQUIPMENT

31 March 2020

Cost or valuation:

At 31 March 2019

Effect on adoption of HKFRS 16
(Note 2.3)

At 1 April 2019
Additions
Disposals
- Continuing operations
- Discontinued operation
Transfer to assets classified
as held for sale (Note 27)
Write-off
- Continuing operations
- Discontinued operation
Transfers
Disposal of a subsidiary
(Note 34(b)
Deficit/surplus on revaluation
Write-back on revaluation
Exchange realignment

At 31 March 2020

Accumulated depreciation and
impairment;:
At 1 April 2019
Provided during the year
- Continuing operations
- Discontinued operation
Disposals
- Continuing operations
- Discontinued operation
Transfer to assets classified
as held for sale (Note 27)
Disposal of a subsidiary
(Note 34(b)
Write-off
- Continuing operations
- Discontinued operation
Write-back on revaluation
Exchange realignment

At 31 March 2020

Net book value:
At 31 March 2020

15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND

ZECREZfA=1-H
AAEREE:
R-E-AE=R=1-H
RIERUBAL 2N
16 TR WH23)

R-E-NEWA—H
FE

ik

- BEREEH
-BRIEEERE
ERENERAENEEE
(W27)

i

- BEMEER

- BREEER
Bt

HE-RHEAR
(Hs34)
EfEL/BR

B EOE

[

R-F-FE=A=1-H
RTARRAE:

RZE-NENA-H
ERiE

_ ﬁ,@;ﬂ“ ‘““ﬁ%

- BRIEEEEK
ﬁﬁ

- BEBER

_ Emﬂ:g« M%%
ERENEARENEEE

(Hrier)
HE-RHEAR

(Wis#34)
W

- FEBELH
- BRILBERH
Bk D&

[E5 A%

R-2_2F=A=1-H

BHFE:
RZE-FF=A=1-H

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 i a MY =

156 % BERRE

Moulds, Furniture,

Freehold tools, and equipment

landand  Construction plant and and motor
Buildings buildings in progress machinery vehicles Total
KAXRE BR-IR  KR-&% .
BF  1#RET EEIE RERHEES RAE @it
HK$:000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$:000 HK$:000 HK$'000
FET FEL FET FET FET FET
415,517 21,046 97,590 0,990 426,637 2,077,840
(76,490) - - - - (76,490)
339,087 27,046 97,590 1,110,990 426,637 2,001,350
- - 4,390 133,152 19,378 156,920
(2,460) - - (4,616) (1,109) (8,185)
= = = (66) = (66)
- - (7152) (34,045) (6,906) (41,703)
- - - (10,875) (28) (10,903)
- - - (1 178) (700) (1,878)
- - (3,614) 1,609 2,006 =
(4,910) - - - (1,442) (6,352)
(5,040) 176 - - - (4,364)
(13,382) (176) - - - (13,558)
(8,719) (1,137) (3,009) (65,896) (13,960) (82,721)
304,576 26,909 94,605 1,139,085 423,875 1,988,050
= = = 656,792 297,324 954,116
13,382 176 - 74,879 25,730 114,167
- - - 2,483 1,324 3,807
= = (3,319 (1,090) (4,409)
- - - (1) - (1)
- - - (8,314) (1,986) (10,300)
- - - - (338) (338)
= = - (5,265) (14) (6,279)
- - - (199) (86) (281)
(13,382) (176) - - - (13,508)
= = - (30,900) (8,118) (39,018)
- - - 686,150 312,746 998,896
304,576 26,909 94,605 452,935 11,129 989,104

BasEARAR
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15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND

EQUIPMENT (continued)

31 March 2020

An analysis of cost or valuation:
At cost

At 2020 valuation

31 March 2019

Cost or valuation:
At 1 April 2018
Additions
Disposals

- Continuing operations
Acquisition of a subsidiary
Write-off
Transfers
Surplus on revaluation
Write-back on revaluation
Exchange realignment

At 31 March 2019

Accumulated depreciation and
impairment:
At 1 April 2018
Provided during the year
- Continuing operations
- Discontinued operation
Disposals
- Continuing operations
Write-off
Write-back on revaluation
Exchange realignment

At 31 March 2019

Net book value:
At 31 March 2019

An analysis of cost or valuation:
At cost
At 2019 valuation
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“ECREZAZt-H
RARERGEZ A
BRAE
B-E2-RFLHE

ZE-NEZR=t-H

BAAERME:
RZE-\ENA-A
7E

=

- RENEEH
WE-HHEAT
i

2

EfEB%
EFBOE
5%

R-E-NE=A=1-H
R ERAE:

R-E-N\fBA-A
AR

- REEEEH
- CRIEBERE
e

BEFE:
RZE-N§=h=1-H

BAEREEZA -
BRAE
B-F-NEfE

15 ¥ -BMERRKRE®)

Medium term Moulds, Fumiture,
leasehold Freehold tools, and equipment
land and landand  Construction plant and and motor
buildings buildings in progress machinery vehicles Total
hHHE KAXE BA-TR 4R -%&
THEEF  THRET TRIR RERE4E RAE fazt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET AT AT AT AT
- - 94,605 1,139,085 423,875 1,657,565
304,576 25,909 - - - 330,485
304,576 25,909 94,605 1,139,085 423,875 1,988,050
370,074 25,216 52,378 917,165 414,004 1,778,927
- - 50,507 207,348 22,938 300,793
- - - (17,880) (646) (18,526)
- - 147 31,143 7,050 38,340
- - - - (4,204) (4,204)
- - (1,49) 838 658 -
68,754 176 - - - 68,930
(14,650) (176) - - - (14,826)
(8,601) 1,830 (3,946) (47,624) (13,283) (71,594
415,517 27,046 97,590 1,110,990 426,637 2,077,840
- - - 629,926 282,333 912,259
14,650 176 - 61,554 25,470 101,850
- - - 2,375 690 3,065
- - - (8,745) (680) (9,325)
- - - - (3,300) (3,300)
(14,650) (176) - - - (14,826)
- - - (28,318) (7,289) (35,607)
- - - 656,792 297,324 954,116
415,577 27,046 97,590 454,198 129,313 1,123,724
= = 97,590 1,110,990 426,637 1,685,217
415,577 27,046 - - - 442,623
415,577 271,046 97,590 1,110,990 426,637 2,077,840

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED &#&BEAR A A
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15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND

EQUIPMENT (continued)

Depreciation of approximately HK$102,626,000
(2019: HK$87,189,000) is included in cost of sales;
HK$11,541,000 (2019: HK$14,661,000) is included
in administrative expenses in the consolidated
income statement. Depreciation amounted
to HK$1,790,000 (2019: HK$1,433,000) and
HK$2,017,000 (2019: HK$1,632,000) are recognised
in cost of sales and administrative expense in
discontinued operation, respectively.

At 31 March 2020, the Group’s building in Hong
Kong, buildings in Mainland China and freehold
land and buildings in Malaysia were revalued
based on valuation performed by Asset Appraisal
Limited, independent professionally qualified
valuers, at HK$2,460,000 (2019: HK$2,630,000),
RMB271,500,000 (2019: RMB280,050,000)
(equivalent to HK$302,116,000 (2019:
HK$328,577,000)) and Malaysian Ringgit (“RM”)
14,020,000 (2019: RM14,020,000) (equivalent
to HK$25,909,000 (2019: HK$27,046,000)),
respectively.

Revaluation deficits of HK$4,864,000 resulting from
the above revaluation were debited (2019: surpluses
of HK$68,930,000 were credited) to the asset
revaluation reserve.

Each year, the Group appoints an external valuer
to be responsible for the external valuations of
the Group’s properties. Selection criteria include
market knowledge, reputation, independence and
whether professional standards are maintained.
The management discusses with the valuer on the
valuation assumptions and valuation results when
the valuation is performed for financial reporting.

There has been no change from the valuation
techniques used in prior years. In estimating the fair
value of the properties, the highest and best use of
the properties is their current use.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, a property
located in Hong Kong was sold to Century Grand
International Limited, a company wholly owned by
Mr. Cheng Chor Kit, Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer of the Group. Further details are included in
Note 34(b).

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED w5 E AR A A
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R

WX BERERE @

& #49102,626,000 7T (—ZF — 1
4 187,189,000 7T) B it AHE K
K 11,541,000 T (=T — hi:
14,661 oooﬁém)EJM? WsERZ
TR X o #TE1,790,0008 7T (=&
— L4 ¢ 1,433,000/ 7T) &2,017,000
BIL(ZE—NF 1,632,000 7T) B
ﬁ%@ﬁﬁ%ﬁaé&t%«%%a‘%z&ﬁﬁﬁmﬁ
NRITHFE X -

R-E-_ZTF=F=+—H KEBR
BEZEF RABERBZEFERE
R 7 K A FERE 1 T T iRE B
VEELAEREEMPHEEETE
BEEERARMETZEEmEMS - &
B9 Bl A2,460,0008 L (Z T — NLF
2,630,000/ 7T) + A R #271,500,000
T (ZE—NnF: AR®280,050,000
70) (A 74302,116,0008 T (ZZE— 1
4 : 328,577,000 JT)) K& 14,020,000
EE(IEE®])(ZZF — hL&F:
14,020,000 ¥ ) (% 725,909,0007%
T (ZE—HE : 27,046,000/ 7)) °

bl S {h B A 2 E (B #i4,864,0000%8
TEREESHFHENR (Z2— &
=+ AR £268,930,000/ 7T ) °

BE  ARBEZEINEM[ERMETHA
SE2MFE ﬁé’l\*ﬁfﬁfﬁ BEFRER
%m%%ﬂ%& CENE NG R R
BXREE Eﬁﬁﬂ‘%Eﬁ#ﬁLfﬂéﬁﬁﬁ '
EE@J"‘ = ,\145@%*? i {h (B R AR S fh (B

BEFEMBMEERMILEZS) - 75A1EW
AMEZNTER  FEMEZSK
RIEAEASHEBRRAR -

HE_Z-_ZF=-A=+—HULEFE "
fEuM%%ZW%E%%EtI%ﬁ

AR (—HBEAEBEFERTIES
% BEREREBRABZ AR cHE—F
BRI FE34(b) ©
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15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND 15 Y1¥ - BERSKE @
EQUIPMENT (continued)
Fair value hierarchy AFEEEE
The fair values of the Group’s land and buildings at R-B_BFR_T-—NF=A=+—
31 March 2020 and 2019 are estimated by using B AEEz T REF 2 AFETIER
significant unobservable inputs and the fair value RERTIEERBABRBGL RATE
measurement is categorised within Level 3. AESERE=ZET -
During the year ended 31 March 2020 and 2019 REE-_ZE_ZFR_ZFT—NLF=A
there were no transfers of fair value measurements =tT—HLEFE #$EEFAQTVEFE
between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3. KE—EB FE_BHE-"BHE®-
Reconciliation of fair value measurements ENERATFERBE=ZERNZAFE
categorised within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy: AAEZHEK:
Medium term Buildings
leasehold  Buildings in  in Mainland Buildings
landin  Hong Kong China  in Malaysia
Hong Kong  (Industrial)  (Industrial)  (Industrial) Total

REE  ReBEARE REREER

RE#Z BT ZBF BT
hHEELH (I%) (I%) (I%) @t
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FEn FET FET TEn TET

Carrying amount: REE:
At 31 March 2019 RZE-hEZA=1-H 76,490 10,510 328,577 27,046 442,623
Effect on adoption of HKFRS 16 S # B S B RS %S

(Note 2.9) F16R 2T E(i#2.3) (76,490) - - = (76,490)
At 1 April 2019 RZE-NFNA—H - 10,510 328,577 27,046 366,133
Depreciation e - (420) (12,962) (176) (13,558)
Disposal & - (2,460) - - (2,460)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE-HNBAR - (4,910) = = (4,910)
(Deficit)/surplus on revaluation Bt (Bl /B& - (260) (4,780) 176 (4,864)
Exchange realignment AR - - (8,719) (1,137) (9,856)
At 31 March 2020 R-Z-FT£=A=1+-H - 2,460 302,116 25,909 330,485
At 1 April 2018 RZE—-\EMA—H 67,570 11,130 291,375 25,215 395,290
Depreciation ik (2,708) (445) (11,502) (176) (14,826)
Surplus/(dsficit) on revaluation BHAER/ (BH) 11,623 (175) 57,306 176 68,930
Exchange realignment i - - (8,602) 1,831 (6,771)
At 31 March 2019 RZE-h&=A=t-H 76,490 10,510 328,577 27,046 442,623

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 [ #'5 KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED #Ea&BEHBRA 193



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 i a MY =

15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT (continued)

15 ¥ - BMERRE#®)

Fair value hierarchy (continued) AP EEE(E)
Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used MEGEBEMAZEETEZREZH A
and the key inputs to the valuation of properties: BEENT :

Significant Range of unobservable inputs
Class of properties  Valuation techniques unobservable inputs (weighted average)
TUEEBRAHBHE
VEX ] HER% EXRUBERAHE (T 13)
2020 2019
“2-BF —TNF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Hong Kong Market comparable method Gross unit rate per square foot N/A 4,392 to 4,511
B 5B BYRRAEEMER TEA  4,392%4,511
- Leasehold land
-HELH
- Level 3
~#=F
Hong Kong Market comparable method Gross unit rate per square foot 551 to 601 61110 612
B 5 BUE BYHRAEEMER 551Z601 6112612
- Buildings
-BF
- Industrial
— I%
- Level 3
~%=F
Mainland China Direct replacement cost method Gross unit rate per square foot 61 to 134 67 to 145
hE A BEREBERAE BYHRAEMER 612134 67%145
- Buildings
-1
- Industrial
— I%
- Level 3
~%=F
Malaysia Direct replacement cost method Gross unit rate per square foot 467 488
ERAL BEREENAZ BYRRAEMER
- Buildings
-8
- Industrial
-I%
- Level 3
-F=[E

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED w5 E AR A A
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

As at 31 March 2020, the buildings in Mainland
China included certain buildings with a net book
value of approximately HK$102,276,000 (2019:
HK$108,308,000) for which the Group was still in
the process of obtaining the building ownership
certificates.

As at 31 March 2020, had the Group’s buildings
stated at valuation been carried at cost less
accumulated depreciation, they would have been
included in the financial statements at approximately
HK$82,164,000 (2019: HK$173,004,000).

16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

B 7% ¥R AR MY 5

15 ¥ - BMERRE#®)

/)

FERE(E)
—TE-_ZEFZA=+—8H ®#
BRith 2 EFRIESETHRAFEY
102,276,000 L (=2 — L F -
108,308,000/ 7T) 2 #F - NEEHTE
HITHESEEEMAEREZRT -

]

RZBE-ZTHE=A=+—8 HEA&EE
ZEFURNHRRENETEERERE
TIAMBREPEB LI REFZRE
B4 /582,164,000 T (=& — N F :
173,004,000/ 7T) °

16 REWH

2020 2019

—B-EF —E-NF

HK’000 HK’000

FET FET

Carrying amount at the beginning of year  E¥8EEE 65,070 63,061
(Loss)/gain from fair value adjustment KEAFEHRE

(Note 6) (B518) Was (Byite) (229) 5,383

Disposal (Note) & (K57 (3,609) -

Exchange realignment PE & R (3,257) (3,374)

Carrying amount at the end of year FREEE 57,975 65,070
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16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Note:

The balance included the commercial building in The
Royale Cambridge Residences, residential units and
car park, and a commercial leasehold land in Guizhou
Province.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the residential
buildings located in the PRC was sold to an independent
third party at a consideration of RMB3,160,000 (equivalent
to HK$3,609,000) and there is no gain or loss on this
disposal.

The Group’s investment properties were revalued on 31
March 2020 based on valuations performed by Assets
Appraisal Limited, independent professionally qualified
valuers, at RMB52,100,000 (2019: RMB55,460,000)
(equivalent to HK$57,975,000 (2019: HK$65,070,000)).

Each year, the Group appoints an external valuer to be
responsible for the external valuations of the Group’s
properties. Selection criteria include market knowledge,
reputation, independence and whether professional
standards are maintained. The management discusses
with the valuer on the valuation assumptions and valuation
results when the valuation is performed for financial
reporting.

There has been no change from the valuation techniques
used in prior years. In estimating the fair value of the
properties, the highest and best use of the properties is
their current use.

Fair value hierarchy

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties
at 31 March 2020 and 2019 are estimated by
using significant unobservable inputs and the fair
value measurement is categorised within Level 3.
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no
transfers into or out of Level 3 (2019: Nil).

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED #&Em5%EE R

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 i a MY =

16 REWE &)

it -
EHRBEEENENABERZAEEF &
EEMNNEEG  AREmERE LM -

REBEE-Z-_EF=A=+t—BLEFE"
MNRFPEZEFEEFEETFT - EBULE
=4 KRB A ARKS3,160,0007T (HHE R
3,609,000 7T ) - UL T8 & 3 % &= A M & sk
B8 -

R-ZB-_ZTF=ZA=+—0 AEEZRE
MERBBIEESERGEMITHRE
BEFEEEERAGETZHEEEGLA
AR #52,100,0007T (ZZ —1F : AR
55,460,0007T) (185 #57,975,0007% T (=
=T — N4 : 65,070,000 7T)) °

BF AEEZERINEAEMEEHAEE
ZYEETINEEE - BERERBET IS
#oBE BUNKEDHBERRE-F
R BRI T A ER EEEE,JE{EEW
nTuﬁMEETEJLR&1E@

RBEFERBZEETELEES - 0
AMEZRAFER  FENEZRSRRE
RERERRAR -

AFERH
R_B-EFR-F-AF=A=t—
A ARERENENATFEDERE
ARABE AR K LA E 8
BEEE=E  RAEE  BEEAA
FENBEE - ERE-EIHGB
FEGAKHHE=E (ZF 1% :
") -
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16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)
Reconciliation of fair value measurements
categorised within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy:

Carrying amount:

At 1 April 2019

Gain/(loss) from fair value
adjustment

Disposal

Exchange realignment

At 31 March 2020
At 1 April 2018
(Loss)/gain from fair value

adjustment
Exchange realignment

At 31 March 2019

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 4 [Z i

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% ¥R AR MY 5

16 REWHE (&)
NEERE(E)
BHEEANTEERBE=-E2 A ATEF=
AR
Buildings Land in Building in
in Mainland Mainland Mainland
China China China
(Residential) (Commercial) (Commercial) Total
URPERE CRPERE CRPERAY
BT Z1i BT
(F%€) (%) (E%) @t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FAT FET FAT FET
RHEE:
RZF-NFHA—A 3,708 50,215 11,147 65,070
AFEABREL,

W/ (BE) - 228 (457) (229)
HE (3,609) - - (3,609)
BN AR (99) (2,594) (564) (3,257)
RZE-THF

—A=1—H - 47,849 10,126 57,975
RZE—-\$MA—A 4,564 46,995 11,502 63,061
ATEAREEY

(B#) /= (638) 5,781 240 5,383
[ 5 (218) (2,561) (595) (3,374)
RZT—N%

ZA=+—H 3,708 50,215 11,147 65,070

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED & 5= E A R A A
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properties:

Class of properties

LE SVl

Residential properties
in Mainland China

RAEPBE ANz EENF

Leasehold land
in Mainland China
REBEA 2 HE i

Commercial properties
in Mainland China

NSE b A SEXVES

# The higher the gross unit rate per square foot, the #

16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used
and the key inputs to the valuation of investment

Valuation techniques

fEER %

Market comparable
method
5 LB

Market comparable
method
RV

Income method

W AE

higher the fair value.

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED #E#&EBAR A7

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 i a MY =

16 REWE »#)

REMELEMAZGETEREIEEH
ABEBALT

Significant Range of unobservable inputs
unobservable inputs (weighted average)
FTUBERAHEEE
BEAFTTEHERABE (InHEF19)
2020 2019
ZBCEF —E-hE
HK$ HK$
B BT
Gross unit rate per - 951
square foot*
BEHREBMAER
Gross unit rate per 24 26
square foot*
FBEARBBEA(ERE
Gross unit rate per 469 518

square foot*
Y ARBBLER

BFIREBLERDS  QVED

= e
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17 LEASES

(@) Right-of-use assets

At 1 April 2019 RZE-hEMA—A
Inception of lease contracts EkokaR
Depreciation (Note (iv)) e (i)
Disposal (Note 34(b)) W& (i234b)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—EHEBRA
(Note 34(b)) (B1i£34(b))
Exchange realignment X R
At 31 March 2020 R=2-2%=A=+-H
Notes:

(i) The Group obtains the land use rights through
lease contracts with local governments in
the PRC with 50 years term. The balance
is classified as right-of-use assets upon the
adoption of HKFRS 16.

(if) The Group’s interest in leasehold land is on
medium term lease of 50 years and located in
Hong Kong.

(i)  The Group obtains right to control the use
of office and other properties for a period
of time through lease arrangements. Lease
arrangements are negotiated on an individual
basis and contain a wide range of different
terms and conditions including lease payments
and lease terms ranging from 1 to 3 years.

The Group’s lease expenses are primarily for
short-term leases (Note 8).

(ivy)  During the year ended 31 March 2020,
depreciation of right-of-use assets has been
charged in “administrative expenses”.

17 #HE

B 75 ¥ 2= B RE

(a) EHEEE

Prepaid
land

Office

lease Leasehold and other

payments land properties
(Note(i)) (Note(ii)) (Note (i) Total

B BOER
tiEd  HEI  HtthE @t

(W) (WEm)  (BE)
HK$'000 ~ HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

FET

TET TET TET

23,437

(631-)

(63;)

2,788 951 27,176
- 6,040 6,040
(@)  (B04)  (377)
(448) - (448)

(2,031) - (2,031)
- (86) (723)

22,169

210 3,864 26,243

Wi -

(i)

(ii)

(iv)

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 [ #'5 KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED #Ea&BEHBRA

REBEE B D BT BUFR] L
7% HiB0%F HO TH AV BV 1S £+ b (£ A8

o MR E B I IS 4
5']%16%«%:/‘*57%1;"5%?&%3& °

ANEE 2 HE T ERIZ AR50
FeHBHEERBEUARMCRS
7 o
AEBFBEETHNEN B
W R HIl N E R E ) 2
BBRMER - ELH T ZEE
TER - BEERETRGR RG
% BEEENRENTF1E3F
ZHE -

$‘§IZXH X ERREEH
& (Mf5E8) o

HE-T-_TF=A=+—H1t
FE - ﬁﬁﬁf’éﬁé?ﬁ%ﬁﬁ’\\(ﬁ
BRAZ IR -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 i a MY =

17 LEASES (continued)

(b)

(c)

Lease liabilities

At 1 April 2019

Inception of lease contracts

Interest expenses on lease liabilities (Note 7)
Payment for lease liabilities (including interest)
Exchange alignment

At 31 March 2020

Amount due for settlement within 12 months
Amount due for settlement after 12 months

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is
disclosed in Note 3.1(c).

Short-term leases

As at 31 March 2020, the total future lease
payments for short-term leases amounted to
HK$695,000 (Note 38(b)).

17 & (»)

(b) HEERE
HK$’000
FET
R-E-hEWNA—H 955
Giskolr G 6,040
HEaGEZAERZ (WiE7) 360
THHEEERE(BEMBE) (3,268)
& 5 (87)
R-ZE-_ZEF=A=1+—H 4,000
2020
—EEHE
HK$’000
FET
R121E8 B REI B E 2 308 1,850
M2 R & BBl E 2 /I8 2,150
4,000

(c)

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED w5 E AR A A

B B2 BB TR E3.1(0)
W -

EHEE
R-_TE-_FTEF=F=+—H &
HEEZARBENRRAES
695,000/ 7t (K1 5E38(b)) °
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

18 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

At 31 March 2019 and 1 April 2019 R—ZE—-hE=F=1+—-8RK

Cost
Accumulated amortisation

Net book value

Opening net book amount

Transfer to assets classified as
held for sale (Note 27)

Amortisation

- Discontinued operation

Closing net book amount

At 31 March 2020
Cost
Accumulated amortisation

Net book value

At 31 March 2018 and
1 April 2018
Cost
Accumulated amortisation

Net book value

Opening net book amount
Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note)
Amortisation

- Discontinued operation
Exchange alignment

Closing net book amount

At 31 March 2019
Cost
Accumulated amortisation

Net book value

“E-NFMA—H
A
Z5HE

REFE

FONRMFE
EBREDEABIENELE
(fri227)

B

- DRIEBLER

FREmFE

R-E-THE=ZA=+—H
B AR
B3

REFE

RZB-NEF=ZA=+-8Rk
“E-NFMA—H

AR

£

REFE

ENREFE

Wi —mH B AR (i)
3

- BRIERERT
BB

FREREFE
R-_Z-NF=A=+—H
A

Rt #H

REFE

Amortisation of intangible assets is included in
administrative expenses of discontinued operation.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 4 [Z i
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18 B EE
Goodwill Technology
[k Bl &R @t
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FAT FET FET

Contracts Total

18,586 18,100 900 37,586

- (1,207) (600) (1,807)
18,586 16,893 300 35,779
18,586 16,893 300 35,779
(10,713) (15,083) - (25,796)

- (1,810) (300) (2,110)
7,873 - 5 7,873
7,873 - 5 7,873
7,873 - - 7,873
7,872 - - 7,872
7,872 - - 7,872
7,872 - - 7,872
10,713 18,100 900 29,713

- (1,207) (600) (1,807)

1 - - 1
18,586 16,893 300 35,779
18,586 18,100 900 37,586

- (1,207) (600) (1,807)
18,586 16,893 300 35,779

EREERHECTACRIEEEERZ
THAZA -
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18 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Note:

On 3 April 2018, Kin Yat Enterprises (BVI) Limited (“Kin
Yat Enterprises”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group,
entered into a sales and purchase agreement with a third
party to acquire 13% equity interest in Progress Power-
Saving Glass Technology Co., Limited (“Progress Power-
Saving”) together with shareholder’s loan amounting to
HK$1,386,000 provided by the seller to Progress Power-
Saving at a total cash consideration of HK$7,647,000.

On 25 July 2018, Kin Yat Enterprises entered into a sales
and purchase agreement with Silurian Resources Limited,
which is wholly owned by Mr. Cheng Chor Kit, the chairman
of the Board of Director and chief executive officer of the
Company. Pursuant to the agreement, Kin Yat Enterprises
will further acquire 51% equity interest in Progress Power-
Saving together with shareholder’s loan amounting to
HK$16,820,000 provided by Mr. Cheng Chor Kit to
Progress Power-Saving at a total cash consideration of
HK$30,000,000.

The acquisition was completed on 14 August 2018. Upon
the completion, the Group holds 64% equity interest
of Progress Power-Saving, of which its wholly owned
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the sales and
downstream processing of glass.

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED #E#&EBAR A7

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 i a MY =

18 B EE &)

G

R-ZZE—N\FOA=ZR AEBZ2EWE
A AIKin Yat Enterprises (BVI) Limited ([Kin
Yat Enterprises)) 815 = F i 2 B B 1% -
AW Rl E e IR A B R AR ([8l 2
Bige]) 213%MREE R = 5 M Al 2 & e i
2 B85 B 31,386,000/ 0 - AR S R E A
7,647,000 7T, ©

R-ZE—NFE+AHA-+HAHH"  Kin Yat
Enterprisesfi 5B L ERABR AR (AR
RAESFCEIRFTREZEE G LER
BB LEE M - BEZBZE - Kin
Yat Enterprisesis # — 25 Uk B 8l 22 &7 &
51%% e 35 [F) 80 218 48 5% 4 ) 8l 2 &0 pe 1R it
Z PR B B 516,820,000/ 70 - BEENREA
30,000,000/ 7T °

WEEBER=ZZ—N\FE/\A+HWBZEK -
R IE - NEE IS H B & BL64% R &
ZRNRZEENBRARESHEHEN TN
MM -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %% i a MY =

18 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 18 BREEE (&)
Note: (continued) Kt (&) -
The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of BlEEe NI B BRI EERAEBN
Progress Power-Saving as the acquisition date were as ANFEAT :
follows:
HK$'000
FET
Consideration: RE:
Cash R"e 37,647
Recognised amounts of identifiable assets AEZENBEER
acquired and liabilities assumed EREABZECRIALE
Cash and cash equivalents RekREERAY 856
Property, plant and equipment Y - WEREE 38,340
Inventories FE 14,885
Accounts and other receivables JE AR 3R K B b FE WK IR 33,897
Intangible assets mEE 19,000
Accounts and other payables FE AR SR R B b FE S RRIR (88,590)
Deferred tax liability EEFIBEBE (4,750)
Total identifiable net assets B UEBEERE 13,638
Non-controlling interests IR (4,910)
Amounts due to shareholders assigned to i 5% FKin Yat EnterprisesZ
Kin Yat Enterprises J& 15 AR 3R K IE 18,206
Goodwill e 10,713
37,647
The goodwill of HK$10,713,000 arising from the acquisition U B8 BT EE £ 2 75210,713,0008 T Th R B &
is attributable to the synergies from combining the HAREENEZSHE S BRELS ZHER
operations of the Group and Progress Power-Saving. None JE - EHIMECERAB S0 M EHREL N
of the goodwill recognised is expected to be deductible for T e

income tax purpose.
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18 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Impairment test for goodwill
Management review the business performance
based on type of business as follows:

Electrical and electronic products
Motors £
Glass technology and application

At 31 March

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the management
of the Group determined that there was no impairment of
the CGU to which the goodwill has been allocated. The
recoverable amount of goodwill is determined using a
value in use calculation with cash flow projections based
on financial budgets covering a five-year period approved
by senior management. The key assumption for the cash
flow projections is the budget gross margin which is the
average gross margin achieved in the years before the
budgeted year and the discount rates applied to the cash
flow projections for electrical and electronic products and
motors segments were 14% and 14% (2019: electrical
and electronic products, motors, and glass technology
and application segments were 14%, 14% and 17%)
respectively. The financial budgets are prepared reflecting
actual and prior year performance and development
expectations.

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED #E#&EBAR A7

BRM&EFEM

K IE B B e R

R=ZA=+—H

18

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 i a MY =

BEEE®)

L D-A=b

CEEREN TERENERHELE
iH

2020 2019
—EB=FF —E-NF
HK’000 HK’000
FET FET
3,223 3,223
4,650 4,650

- 10,713

7,873 18,586

REE-_ZT-_ZTF-_A=+—BHLFE-
AEEEREET BHoRBBCzRSEL
BRI ERE - 82 Al E B RRE A
BEFHET mEREANFASHRER
Bl EZRERFH2UMBEBE 2RSSR
EEAGE REeRBEAZEERRARE
HEME HAENBEFEMEFANMER
ZEFHEFE BRERRETERULER
PEZEREAKAZMRESFA14%
B14% (ZZ—hF  BEEREFEM B
HAREBEMREADE  14% - 14% K%
17%) - MBEECGHREERMER R L
FEMFENEEERS -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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19 PROPERTIES UNDER
DEVELOPMENT

Movements in the properties under
development are as follows:

At beginning of the year

Addition

Transferred to completed properties
held for sale (Note 20)

Exchange alignment

At end of the year (Note)
Current portion

Non-current portion

Note:

Properties under development comprise:

Construction costs and capitalised
expenditures

Interests capitalised

Land use rights

20 COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD

FOR SALE

At 31 March 2019

Transferred from properties under development

(Note 19)
Properties sold
Exchange realignment

At 31 March 2020

19 EHPYE
2020 2019
—EBF — 4
mwmm HK$’000
FET FET
BRPYEZESHMOT -
G 530,710 294,963
RNE 32,373 256,113
ERERERE Y
% T W% (K 720) (228,385) -
ME 5, 58 B (22,317) (20,366)
RER ML) 312,381 530,710
BNHAEE 5 (269,847) (485,863)
JEBNERE 42,534 44,847
gz
HRPYE I
2020 2019
—E_EHF —nF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
BERANBEAME ST
168,124 331,532
SN ¥4 21,591 30,961
o {5 R 4 122,666 168,217
312,381 530,710
20 HEHEZRIYWE
HK$’000
FET
R-_ZE—hhF=A=+—8H =
EReRRPYE
(B15£19) 228,385
EEWE (69,832)
FE 5 % (4,089)
RZE_ZEF=A=+—H 154,464

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 4 [Z i

The completed properties held for sale are located in
the PRC. The cost of properties sold recognised as
expense and included in “Cost of sales” amounted to
approximately HK$69,832,000.

REREZRTYWEMRFR - BEHE
1) 3£ AKX 969,832,000 7T HE 72 4 5 52
Wt ATSHERKA] ©
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 i a MY =

21

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

21 REtE RN B2 RE

2020 2019
—E-BF —ZT-hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Movements in the investment in REE QA2
associates are as follows: AT
At beginning of the year NG 12,065 6,183
Addition (Note i) WE (K7t - 7,189
Disposal (Note i) & (A azii) (5,806) -
Share of post-tax losses JEAEBR B2 518 (955) (827)
Exchange alignment ME 5 38 B (450) (480)
At end of the year RERX 4,854 12,065
Place of
business/
country of % of Nature of the =~ Measurement
Name of entity establishment effective interest  relationship method Carrying amount
B4y
BEAR RIER ERERESN  BEME SRR REE
2020 2019 2020 2019
ZBI8F TN ZBIRE T
HK$'000  HK$'000
TET TET
EMENEHERRAA The PRC 33.33%  33.33% Associate Equity 4,854 5,419
i BE BRE
BIEREFEENBERAF  The PRC = 46.7% Associate Equity = 6,646
i e ERE

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED #E#&EBAR A7
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

21 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

(continued)
Notes:
(i) During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group

has directly acquired 19.9% of the equity interest
in EMENEFEREMBARAT (“FERIEM) at
a consideration of RMB5,970,000 (equivalent to
HK$7,189,000) settled by fixed asset injection.
The remaining interest of $EfE2EHf is held by
another associates, BN AN FEBEHR A A, as
a result, the Group effectively held 46.7% of §% &
2EH1.

(i) On 18 March 2020, the Group entered into sales
and purchase agreement with a third party,
pursuant to which the independent third party
agreed to purchase, and the Group agreed to
sell 19.9% of equity interests in $EE$E# at cash
consideration of RMB5,970,000 (approximately
HK$6,819,000).

The transaction was completed on 24 March
2020 resulting in a gain on disposal of
approximately HK$1,013,000.

B 7% ¥R AR MY 5

21 REEE N B 2RE (&)

()

(i)

HE-_ZT-hAhFZA=+—H1
FE - -AEEEEBREEMNE
NEEBEEM AR AR ([EEEL
M1)219.9% K - REAARE
5,970,0007T (48 £ $27,189,000/%
L) BUEABEEBEEF AT
EEEMOMBR TSRS — H
ERRENEANEWERR A A
BBt AEEERBAERE
M 246.7% °

R-ZE-TFZA+N\HB A%
EHE-ZE=FTLEEHE
Bl Z%EBILE=FREWK
BOomAEERELEERLEN
219.9%#E BeREAARE
5,970,0007T 476,819,000/ 7T ) °

REXGER_ZBE_ZETFE=A
TtTHEEK EARERED
1,013,000/ 7T °
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% ¥R AR MY 5

22 INVENTORIES

Raw materials R

Work in progress &M
Finished goods LK o

Less: Provision for impairment B R E R

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and
included in “Cost of inventories sold” amounted
to approximately HK$2,051,161,000 (2019:
HK$2,919,209,000). Write back of provision
amounted to HK$12,725,000 (2019: Provision
HK$3,034,000) was included in the “Cost of sales”
in the consolidated income statement during the
year ended 31 March 2020. Cost of inventories
amounted to appropriately HK$31,466,000 (2019:
HK$52,351,000) is recognised as expense and
included in “Cost of sales” in discontinued operation.

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED #E#&EBAR A7

22 FE

2020 2019
—E-EHF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
211,393 442,778
22,780 47,342
85,770 159,333
319,943 649,453
(21,363) (34,088)
298,580 615,365

BRAEAIRFAIBEEFTERA] Z
FERAL BE2,051,161,00058 T (— =
— L4 : 2,919,209,000/8 7T) ° B
12,725,000 T (ZE — NF : BB
3,034,000 ) ERBE T -_TF =
A=+ —BHBLEFEFAGAKREERDN
[HERA] o IF &R ANKY31,466,000/%8
T (—Z— N5 : 52,351,000/ ) #ER
BRAZ WA ARRIEEEER Z[HE
AN o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

23 ACCOUNTS AND BILLS

RECEIVABLE

Accounts and bills receivable JEURBR SR R IR
Loss allowance &5 18 B 1

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are
mainly on credit, except for new customers, where
cash on sale or payment in advance is normally
required. The credit period is generally for a period
of one to two months, extending up to three
months for certain well-established customers. Each
customer has a maximum credit limit. The Group
seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
receivables and has imposed tightened control to
minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed
regularly by senior management. The Group does
not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements
over its accounts and bills receivable balances.
Accounts and bills receivable are non-interest-
bearing.

The Group also uses trade receivables factoring
facilities to manage the credit risk of its trade
debtors. As at 31 March 2020, trade receivables
of approximately HK$55,898,000 (2019:
HK$162,147,000) was subject to non-recourse
factoring arrangements and therefore derecognised.
No trade receivables was subject to recourse
factoring arrangement in 2020 and 2019.

B 75 ¥ 2= B RE

23 EWRAKREE

2020 2019
—g-8% —TANF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FiET
228,426 316,300
(7,409) (4,151)
221,017 312,149

AEBEEP ZEZGHEFRBAINUEER
FETT  EHEP —RFARESKE
NEAEERI - EEH-—RE—EM
f{A ETEERARFZEFZEER
HRAAERE=EA - BR2EFPHAE
B LR o ANS B R U Bl & PR TR R 1
BRASYE B B 058 1 B LA #HE B = B b
ExE- - mREEABRSERRTAN
R ARBY BREREKERERE
‘R AEMERRAEMBEER -
FEMR AR R RIEAL AT E -

AEEFRESRUERRERE
EEESEFNEERR RZF
—EF=ZA=+—H BESEKE
K #155,898,0008 T (=T — L F -
162,147,000/ 70) B 7] 3 B Wi (R 12
ZH o AEEUERER - R F
FZE-NFHMEEFEBIRNETI LA
BPEREBELHE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 i a MY =

23 ACCOUNTS AND BILLS 23 EWERRREE @)
RECEIVABLE (continued)
An aging analysis of the accounts and bills receivable RBEER  BURERERRERZREKD
as at the end of the reporting period, based on the MURBEZEE)WOT :

invoice date, is as follows:

2020 2019

—E-BF —E-NF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

0 - 30 days 0£30H 123,280 166,541

31 - 60 days 31£260H 44,656 51,263

61 — 90 days 61£290H 31,974 59,536

Over 90 days 0B M E 28,516 38,960

228,426 316,300

Loss allowance B i (7,409) (4,151)

221,017 312,149

At 31 March 2020, the Group had certain RZE_EF=A=+—H  KX&EHTFA]

concentrations of credit risk that may arise from EERABNAAZERPREARLHE KR D

the exposure to the five largest customers and the MEAETEFEERE  DalMEARE

largest customer which accounted for approximately EFEU R THAETE 7 4934% (—ZFE— L5«
34% (2019: 42%) and 12% (2019: 19%) of the 42%) K12% (ZZ—NF 1 19%) °

Group’s total accounts receivable, respectively.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

23 ACCOUNTS AND BILLS
RECEIVABLE (continued)

The movements in provision for impairment of
accounts and bills receivable are as follows:

At beginning of the year N

Provision for impairment recognised RERNIER
during the year

Transfer to assets classified as HEESLE
held for sale

At end of the year RER

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach
to measuring expected credit losses which uses a
lifetime expected loss allowance for all accounts and
bills receivable. Note 3.1(b) provides for details about
the calculation of the allowance.

The carrying amount of accounts and bills receivable
approximate their fair values.

Denominated in

HKD BT
UsD ETT
RMB AR
Others HAp

B 7% ¥R AR MY 5

23 EWERARERE &)

RURA R RR 2 RMEREZSHMT

BB

REBELEEE

2020 2019
—E_EHF —E-NF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FETT FET
4,151 852
4,564 3,299
(1,306) -
7,409 4,151

AEBERBEBMBREERFEIRG
LT ERMEERR - A RK
RRERBREREMBEREREE - W
A3 () EBEREN A ER B FAER -

ERMRFRERIE 2 REEEE A FER

++

E o
LTS E¥stE
2020 2019
—E-BE —T-hAF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
23,443 58,817
125,763 196,541
71,674 56,684
137 107
221,017 312,149
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B 7% ¥R AR MY 5

24 PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS

24 ERNRERERE

2020 2019
—E-BF —E-NEF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FHETT
Prepayment for property, plant and W - WE REREENRIE

equipment 144,875 195,667
Prepaid construction costs (Note) TETEEK AN (B iE) 107,850 21,165
VAT recoverables AT EEE 45,006 52,603
Deposits and other receivables e RE M EWREIE 42,222 58,645
Tax reserve certificates & & - 25,408
Other prepayments H b T8~ 58 14,232 12,926
354,185 366,414
Less: Current portion ko BNEAER 5 (190,221) (155,772)
Non-current portion JEBNEREL & 163,964 210,642

Note: Btat -

As at 31 March 2020, such prepaid construction costs
include prepaid construction cost of approximately
HK$45,623,000 (2019: HK$6,693,000) to a main contractor
for the properties development project in Dushan Country,
Guizhou Province, the PRC. The properties, upon
completion, are for selling purpose and are expected to
be completed within its operating cycle, therefore, it is
classified as current assets.

Denominated in

HKD BT
RMB AR
Others =i

212 KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED #E#&EBAR A7

RZZTE-_ZTF=A=+—H FHEEMNEE
RABIERNRPEEMNEBILG 2 WEH
BRI E X F— & & EH#I45,623,0007
T (ZZF— N%F : 6,693,000/ 7T) 2 B &
HERA - ZEMENBTREHERSR I
BHARLRBHAST Atk EWHEA

MENEE °
LTS &% E
2020 2019
—E-BE —T—hAF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
185,856 245,001
167,233 120,136
1,096 1,277
354,185 366,414
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

25 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Listed equity investment,
at market value

Listed debt investment, LITEBEE -
at market value

Unlisted equity investment, EEMBRAEE -
at fair value

Key management insurance, EERE R -
at fair value

Less: Current portion

Non-current portion JEBNER SR &

The above investments at 31 March 2020 and 2019
were classified as held for trading and were, upon
initial recognition, classified by the Group as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss.

An insurance plan relating to the chairman of the
Company was included in financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss as at 31 March 2020.
The total insured sum as at 31 March 2020 was
US$3,500,000 (equivalent to HK$27,300,000). If
the Group withdrew from the insurance policies,
the account value, net of surrender charges, would
be refunded to the Group. The insurance plan was
classified as financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss as their contractual cash flows are not
solely for payments of principal and interest.

EWERAEE - ®H

A - BNERER

B 7% ¥R AR MY 5

/!

25 ERBEREBFQAFEHIIKRZEH

aE

BRFE

BAFE

2020 2019
—g-8% —TANF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FiET
88 -

- 3,936

8,445 10,204
12,336 -
20,869 14,140
(8,533) (14,140)
12,336 -

RIE_EERN T NF=ZA=1+—
Bz FiiREHNABIFIEEE W E X
HREHASEESEAEBERIZAT
BIRZEMEE -

Eé_v_?i A=+—H ' —HER
NRAIEFEEB 2 RBITEEBLERE
BEEZATEIEZSHEEN-

RZEBE-ZEF=A=+—H @BFRRE

/43,500,000 7T (#8% 7427,300,0007%

TL) o WASKERR - AEBEAERE

RPEAE(HIRERRER) - EEBA/\D,Z’]

fﬁim%]ﬁﬂ%ﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬁi&ﬂ

HIRBRETEI DA B BIERIZA Wﬁﬁll

RZEBEE °
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26 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS,
TIME DEPOSITS AND RESTRICTED
BANK DEPOSITS

26 ReRkREZEHY - EHPER
xBE%JﬁE 'T?a‘%

2020 2019
—EC-EHF —LF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FETT
Time deposits — original maturity of FEHTFH - REIEA
more than three months tﬂ_fl H 14,641 13,754
Restricted bank deposits (Note) Z R ERITF R (A 2F) 11,925 5,017
Cash and cash equivalents RekReERY 244,681 222,153
271,247 240,924
Denominated in LT3 E¥stE
2020 2019
—E_EH —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FE T
HKD BT 124,670 62,923
RMB AR 54,817 45,511
usD ETT 75,331 111,618
Others Hit 16,429 20,872
271,247 240,924
Note: B A

Included in restricted bank deposits as at 31 March
2020 are RMB4,947,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$5,505,000) pledged to bank for trade financing; and
RMB5,770,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$6,420,000)
were related to certain bank accounts frozen by local
courts in the PRC in relation to two legal actions lodged by
certain contractors against the Group.

During the year, two construction contractors took legal
actions against two subsidiaries of the Group. For the
first case, the contractor is making a legal claim for the
overdue contract cost of RMB3,825,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$4,416,000), which the Group has
been fully provided for. For the other case, the contractor
is making a legal claim of RMB7,960,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$8,858,000), of which the Group
is negotiating with the contractor for an out-of-court
settlement. Based on the advice of legal counsel, the
possibility of an economic benefit outflow is remote, the
directors consider the outcome is uncertain and cannot be
reasonably estimated at this stage.

Restricted bank deposits as at 31 March 2019 were
RMB4,276,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$5,017,000)
which can only be applied in the designated property
development projects prior to the completion of
construction.

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED #&Em5%EE R

R-ZZE_ZTF=A=+—HZIRHBITHF
m@ﬁﬁ%’%@ﬁﬁﬁmﬁ%ﬁﬂz}\ﬁm
4,947,0007T (#8517 495,505,000/ 7T)

% A R ¥5,770,0007C (48 %7‘5@%@6,420,000
BT FRP B AR RS 2B TRITE
O - H R Bl AR R A A 5 R AR RO

BITHAR -

RAFE  MEARE R NS EREH B
NEVREVERTE - LE—FREMHM S » &
EEELEAZPRREIAHAORNAAR
£3,825,0007T (4855 1 494,416,000/ 7T )
MALEEERNEEHTREBEE RS —F
REMmME  AEEEHEIZHRETARKE
7,960,0007T (1855 74 #78,858,000/8 7T) * AN
& (335 1IF B bt B 32 P i 1T Bk 7 LAE AR BE A

MEE - RIBAZERMNE EJ 27 Fl| 2= 07
E’JT“‘“&W& MEZERE  E&ERTTE
RN R Eéf@ﬁ.ﬁr

ZE-NAF =A==+ HZIRHIRITHE
A R #4,276,0007T (18 % 1 495,017,000
ﬁ)@ﬂﬁé%%@ﬁiﬁ RIEEMRER
B
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS,
TIME DEPOSITS AND RESTRICTED
BANK DEPOSITS (continued)

As at 31 March 2020, the cash and cash
equivalents, time deposits and restricted
bank deposits of the Group denominated in
RMB amounted to HK$54,817,000 (2019:
HK$45,511,000). RMB is not freely convertible
into other currencies; however, under Mainland
China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment
of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies
through banks authorised to conduct foreign
exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based
on daily bank deposit rates. Time deposits are made
for varying periods of between four months and one
year (2019: between four months and one year)
depending on the immediate cash requirements of
the Group and earn interest at the respective time
deposit rates.

DISPOSAL GROUP CLASSIFIED
AS HELD FOR SALE AND
DISCONTINUED OPERATION

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group
entered into negotiation with a third party to
dispose of the entire equity interest of AJEENAE
HERE)BRALAR and BIRSHREBEMARA
A] and its subsidiaries (collectively as the “Disposal
Group”). The Disposal Group is the core operating
subsidiaries of the glass technology and application
segment. Negotiation process has already begun
before the year-end and management considered
the transaction is highly probable to be completed.
As a result, the Disposal Group is classified as
discontinued operation in accordance with HKFRS
5 and the comparative information relating to the
discontinued operation has been re-presented on a
consistent basis accordingly. The transaction was
subsequently completed (Note 40).

Assets and liabilities of the Disposal Group were
classified as “Assets classified as held for sale” and
“Liabilities directly associated with assets classified
as held for sale”, respectively as at 31 March 2020.

26

27

B 7% ¥R AR MY 5

RERREZEFY EHEX
ZREBITER @)

NR-ZZT_ZTFE=A=+—H KEEMN
AREBHEZREMRESERY - ©H
TR RZBRHIRITF R AE54,817, ooo,%
T (ZZF—H%E :45511,00087C) °
REAATEMEBRBHEME %ﬁﬁ :
RIE (R E AR LMBEINE B IR EH) &
(HEME - EERMNEERRTE)  A%H
BERRABRITEARESBRAEME
B DUETT HINTE 75 o

RITRSRE BT BIRITF A R ERE
ME - AREBERANKRSFTE - FEN
FROEAZE-—F(ZZE-AF: N TFHE
BEAZE—F)HEAZEMENR  LRE
EHIE RN R BRER B, -

DTRABFFEHEZHERER
ERILEREXHK

BE_ZT_TF=-A=+—HLFE"
AEEB-BFETETER - ALE
B2 ERBEIN IR (FRRE) AR AP M BIZES
EEB(EMNBARRALEMBRF
(1 %%%ET&EEIJ)Z%*BH%E o K&
SEAWRBRMERERIBZZLEE
MEBLFE - EEREFCRFERNSG
MERERREEISIRABRETK
Ilit RIR & B B % s 2 R SE55%
HEEEODBREKRILKEEY A
EEE%JJ:%%%%%%Z%%—&ME&*

BEEFHE2Y - ERAXSFHEBE TK
(Pft5E40) °

R-ZE-_TE=-_A=+—H HEEHE
REERABEDRDERIDERE
FHEEE | R BAOBERRKIEHERE
BEERMBZAE] -
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27 DISPOSAL GROUP CLASSIFIED 27
AS HELD FOR SALE AND

PTEAREHEZHEERR
CRIEREER &)

DISCONTINUED OPERATION

(continued)

The financial performance and cash flow information
of the Disposal Group for the year ended 31 March
2020 and the period from 14 August 2018 (date of

acquisition) to 31 March 2019:

HEEARNEE_Z_ZEF=A=1—
BEtFER_Z—-—N\FNA+IA (K
BEH)BRE_ZE—NF=ZA=+—H
IHFHEZHBERARRETEER

Period from
14 August 2018
to
2020 31 March 2019
—E-N\F
NA+HBERE
—E-NF
=A=+-—8
i et -2 1 HAfE]
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Revenue W = 55,633 82,817
Cost of sales FiER=ID N (44,808) (69,964)
Gross profit E7 10,825 12,853
Other income and gains, net Ha A Rz 558 1,090 1,473
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHAX (2,212) (3,370)
Administrative expenses AL (17,162) (15,859)
Impairment loss on contract assets EHEERSREE
and financial assets ZREBE (1,341) (322)
Loss before income tax BRETEBRIATE B (8,800) (5,225)
Income tax credit FrigHige 528 418
Loss from discontinued operation BRALREXE EE (8,272) (4,807)
Exchange translation reserve on MEBINEBEECELGE
translation of foreign operations (262) (18)
Other comprehensive loss from RECRIEEEEE
discontinued operation HthZ2HEEE (8,534) (4,825)
Cash (used in)/generated from T E (A EE
operating activities ZHe (2,826) 1,107
Cash used in investing activities REZHMARS (1,952) (1,762)
Cash generated from financing activities MEEFHELEZRS 5,324 -
Exchange realignment B 3, 58 (14) 17
Net increase/(decrease) in cash FeRESZERANZ
and cash equivalents B,/ (Rd) FE 532 (638)

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED #E#&EBAR A7
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27 DISPOSAL GROUP CLASSIFIED TEARFHEZHERER
AS HELD FOR SALE AND E,,%glt,f.‘%”é%ﬁ%%%”/
DISCONTINUED OPERATION
(continued)

The following assets and liabilities were reclassified L‘ATﬁ?&%ﬁEﬁiEmtﬂ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ
as held for sale in relation to the discontinued MR-ZZEZTF=-A=+—RHEHHEE
operation as at 31 March 2020: RFELE
2020
—ECEHF
HK$°000
FET
Assets classified as held for sale TRAEBELEERE
Property, plant and equipment (Note 15) W - B R&EHZ15) 31,403
Intangible assets (Note 18) mAE (Mi18) 25,796
Inventories FE 7,498
Contract assets ANEE 25,633
Accounts receivable JiE U BR 3Kk 25,764
Prepayments and deposits AN RIEBERES 15,464
Cash and cash equivalents ReMBRSERY 595
Total assets of disposal group held for sale BFHELEZHESEBEELE 132,153
Liabilities directly associated with assets HOBABELEEE
classified as held for sale BEEHBAzAE
Accounts payable and other payables JE A1 BR 3k K HL i A< 3R 90,901
Contract liabilities BHAERE 924
Deferred tax liabilities EERIBEE 3,771
Total liabilities of disposal group held for sale S EHECHEEBEEAE 95,596
In accordance with HKFRS 5, the assets classified BIEEAEHREERFESS  DEA
as held for sale are measured at lower of their BEHESERBESEABIELER]
carrying amount immediately prior to being classified MEmMEEAFEREEKRAME 2
as held for sale and fair value less costs to sell. At REEF=E - NVB D EABELEEZ
the date of initial classification as held for sale, the H BEYEEBERMs7EENBEBZE
carrying amount of the assets and liabilities relating HEERZBA ZAFEREEKA - A
to the Disposal Group were lower than the fair value It ARG o KBRS M R B 5T 2 1 A
less cost to sell as at that date. Accordingly, no loss RIEBE -

was recognised due to remeasurement at the initial
classification.
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28 ACCOUNTS AND BILLS PAYABLE, 28 EREZREE - 2iMELS

OTHER PAYABLES AND BHNEBE
PROVISIONS
2020 2019
—B-BF —E-hF
HK$°000 HK$’'000
FET FET
Accounts and bills payable (Note i) BRI (K i) 360,027 740,050
Accrued expenses FEER 9,797 17,568
Other payables H th f& A FRIE 52,639 50,201
Payable for construction work BETREZEMNRIE 67,350 21,552
Financial liabilities THRBE 489,813 829,371
Accrued employee benefit expenses FEETEERAAX 109,339 129,300
VAT and other tax payable BERREMENTIE 25,985 20,716
Deferred income (Note i) IEEM A (H #tii) 82,365 103,300
Total trade and other payables &~ BR 3 N H b JE S FRIB 4R KA 707,502 1,082,687
Less: Non-current portion of deferred 3 : #RIEUR A = FEENER &R 15
income (Note i) (K7 &tii) (50,545) (82,090)
Less: Non-current other payables B B fth JERD HA FE A 3B (32,826) -
Current portion Bl ER & 10 624,131 1,000,597
Denominated in NT5E%sHE
2020 2019
—E_EF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
HKD BT 279,209 604,340
RMB AR 420,902 464,698
Others Hip 7,391 13,649
707,502 1,082,687

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED w5 E AR A A
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

28 ACCOUNTS AND BILLS PAYABLE,
OTHER PAYABLES AND
PROVISIONS (continued)

Notes:

(i) The accounts and bills payable and other payables
are non-interest-bearing and are normally settled
within credit terms of two months, extending up to
three months.

The carrying amounts of accounts and other
payables are considered to be the same as their fair
values, due to their short term nature.

At 31 March 2020, the aging analysis of the accounts
and bills payable based on invoice date are as

follows:

0 - 30 days 0&30H

31 - 60 days 31&60H

61 - 90 days 61£90H

Over 90 days 90H KA
(if) The balance mainly represented government grants

received in respect of the subsidies from The
People’s Government of the Dushan County, Guizhou
Province (the “Dushan County Government”) for the
Group’s manufacturing company located in Dushan
County, Guizhou Province, the PRC. These grants
are held as deferred income and recognised to the
income statement on a systematic basis to match
with the costs or the assets’ useful lives that they
are intended to compensate in accordance with the
agreements with the Dushan County Government.
During the year ended 31 March 2020, subsidies of
HK$36,595,000 (2019: HK$33,112,000) had been
recognised and included in subsidy income of “Other
income and gains, net” in the consolidated income
statement.

The movements in deferred income are as follows:

At beginning of the year REH]

Additions NE

Grant recognised during the year RE AR Z fEaL
Exchange realignment ME 5, 58 &

At end of the year RER

B 7% ¥R AR MY 5

28 ENRANEE - HMENSR
HEBE e

Wiz

(i)

(ii

HRNEMNER R EMENRBLEEE
WL AREREERRSFRN

HRAFE-
RZE-_TF=ZA=+—8 " ENHE
i&%ﬁﬂﬁ%%a%Z%%ﬁﬁm
2020 2019
—E-EE —ZET—NF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FHET
129,286 268,120
39,807 112,284
46,050 147,826
144,884 211,820
360,027 740,050
HEHRTEEEMNEBLUEARRF
(198 LS ERAT ) # Bk 4 A = B AL R
HEMEB LGz RiEERNFHER
BB - ZSm IR R HEERK
HRIEBEERABRIURGZEEE
BIEEE L GBFEI L2 e
ZRASEENTFEAFTEH - REZE
—TE-ZE=—A=+—-HItEE B
" 72/ B X 1E36,595,0008 T (=&
— JLEE £ 33,112,000 7T) Wt AR A
Yok R 9 [ b e A R Mezs - %8R

&
E=t
5
DT
=
>
>

BEWAZ BN

2020 2019
—E-FF —T—AF
HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FAET

103,300 137,755

20,575 5,004

(36,595) (33,112)

(4,915) (6,347)

82,365 103,300
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B 7% ¥R AR MY 5

29 BANK BORROWINGS

Unsecured
Current portion
Non-current portion

Bank borrowings mature until year 2023, and bear
average interest at 3.6% (2019: 3.7%) per annum.

At 31 March 2020, based on the contractual
repayment terms, the Group’s bank borrowings =
maturity analysis would be as follows:

Within 1 year or on demand
Between 1 and 2 years
Between 2 and 5 years

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED #&Em5%EE R

29 RITEE

2020 2019
= —T-NF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FETT FET
L

BN ERER 9 413,243 810,106
JEBNHAER & 263,566 -
676,809 810,106
RITEER_Z_ZFFH  WiKTH
FHE36%(ZE—NF:3.7%)5TE -
Eéfyfyi A=+—8" Eéé’vzﬁ
C REEZIRTTIEE RO

ZZHT :
2020 2019
—EC-EH —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FETT FET
R—FARIZEK 413,243 688,106
Bl —FEENBEAME 177,634 102,000
BEWEENBBERE 85,932 20,000
676,809 810,106
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

29 BANK BORROWINGS (continued)

The following table summarises the maturity analysis
of the bank borrowings which are subject to
repayment on demand clause based on their original
scheduled repayment dates:

Within 1 year R—FA
Between 1 and 2 years
Between 2 and 5 years

The Group’s banking facilities are secured by
the corporate guarantees given by the Company
and certain subsidiaries of the Company.
The carrying amounts of the Group’s bank
borrowings approximate their fair values. Except
for a bank borrowing of RMB80,000,000 (2019:
RMB80,000,000), equivalent to HK$89,021,000
(2019: HK$93,863,000), all other bank borrowings
are denominated in HKD.

As at 31 March 2020, the Group has
uncommitted undrawn bank facilities amounting to
HK$27,757,000 (2019: HK$56,377,000).

B —FETBEAME
HBMFEETBRALSF

B 7% ¥R AR MY 5

29 WITEE

TRBAMEIRERKEEIER 2 RITE

BRI - HRBREENKHEBR
gl .

2020 2019

—E-EHF —E-NF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FETT FET

27,500 315,926

27,500 98,500

37,500 137,000

92,500 551,426

NEBZRITREUNRNRB ARG E
FHBRARAMREZ AFERAIKET -
AEBBTEEZERAESRE QA FER
= B—Z2R{TEE ARKS0,000,000
L (ZZE—h%F + AR¥80,000,0007T)
(F8E£ 789,021,000 7L (=T — L5 :
93,863,000/ L)) #h + T B EAbiR1T1E
BB ITEHE -

R-E-_ZTF=FA=+—H8 ' A&EEZ
AIBEUIEEFRIRTTRYE /27,757,000
T(ZZE— % : 56,377,000/ 7T) °
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30 DEFERRED TAX

The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets

during the year are as follows:

Gross deferred tax liabilities

At 1 April 2018

Deferred tax debited to equity
during the year

Deferred tax debited to the
income statement during the
year (Note 11)

Exchange realignment

At 31 March 2019

Effect of adoption of
HKFRS 16 (Note 2.3)

At 1 April 2019

Deferred tax credited to equity
during the year

Deferred tax debited/(credited)
to the income statement during
the year (Note 11)
- Continuing operations
- Discontinued operation

Transfer to liabilities directly
associated with assets
classified as held for sale
(Note 27)

Exchange realignment

At 31 March 2020

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 i a MY =

30 EFEH A

BEERBERBREERFAZESN

T

EERHRERE

Depreciation
allowance in

excess of
related
depreciation Others Total
WERE
BHEH
TENSE Hit @E
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET FET
RZZE—N\FMNA—H 36,031 1,471 37,502
FARERNR 2
EIERI A 13,977 - 13,977
FRR ISR NBR
ZIETERITE
(KisE11) - 4,139 4,139
[ 5 AR 1,667 - 1,667
RZE—hF
=F=+—H 51,675 5,610 57,285
RANE BB RS 2R
F16R 2T E
(Ht:#2.3) (14,652) - (14,652)
RZE-NFMA—A 37,023 5,610 42 633
FRFAEZRZ
BIERIE (3,576) - (3,576)
FRR MR
e GtA) 2
EIERTE (W at11)
—BELEETK - 7 7
—BERIHEEE - (528) (528)
BREESE AR
ELEEEER
HHEBE
(Biaz2o7) - (3,771) (3,771)
IE X R (1,047) - (1,047)
R-Z_2F
=H=+—8 32,400 1,318 33,718

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED #E#&EBAR A7
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30 DEFERRED TAX (continued)

Gross deferred tax assets

At 1 April 2018 RZZ2—-N\EMA—H

Deferred tax (debited)/credited ERR UL (1K),
to the income statement FAZBIERE
during the year (Note 17) (BizE11)

Exchange realignment L
At 31 March 2019 R-E-NE=A=1—H

Deferred tax credited/(debited) &Rz FA/
to the income statement (k) 2 ETFE
during the year (Note 11) (Hi11)

Exchange realignment EREE
At 31 March 2020 R-B-ZF-A=+-H

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 4 [Z i

30 ELEFIE (&)

B 7% ¥R AR MY 5

ELEHRBEELARE

Deferred

subsidy
Lease liabilities income Others Total
HEEHE EEHBRA 2ty @t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FE FET FET FE7
- 33,536 159 33,695
- (6,756) 512 (6,244)
- (1,547) 16 (1,531)
- 25,233 687 25,920
32 (3,748) (108) (3,824)
1) (1,205) 4) (1,210
31 20,280 575 20,886

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED &#sBEAR A r]
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30 DEFERRED TAX (continued)

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of
HK$21,516,000 (2019: HK$19,959,000) that are
available indefinitely for offsetting against future
taxable profits of the companies in which the losses
arose.

The Group also has tax losses arising in Mainland
China of HK$118,136,000 (2019: HK$154,754,000)
that will expire in one to five years for offsetting
against future taxable profits.

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised
in respect of these losses as they have arisen in
subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some
time and it is not considered probable that taxable
profits will be available against which the tax losses
can be utilised.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a
10% withholding tax is levied on dividends declared
to foreign investors from the foreign investment
enterprises established in Mainland China. The
requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and
applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower
withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax
treaty between Mainland China and the jurisdiction
of the foreign investors. For the Group, the
applicable rate is 5%. The Group is therefore liable to
withholding taxes on dividends distributed by those
subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect
of earnings generated since 1 January 2008.

At 31 March 2020, no deferred tax has been
recognised for withholding taxes that would be
payable on the unremitted earnings that are subject
to withholding taxes of the Group’s subsidiaries
established in Mainland China. In the opinion of the
directors, it is not probable that these subsidiaries
will distribute such earnings in the foreseeable future.
The aggregate amount of temporary differences on
undistributed profit of the subsidiaries in Mainland
China for which deferred tax liabilities have not been
recognised totalled approximately HK$630,465,000
(2019: HK$491,372,000) at 31 March 2020.

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED w5 E AR A A
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EEBE (2)
AEBREAELE ZMBEB B
21,516,000 5t (=& — L F :
19,959,000/ 7T) + AJ R HA AR K 88
EXBEBZ AR ZRRERT GF -

AEBTRPENMEERBGIE
118,136,000 & (=& — L F :
154,754,000 70) * SR —E A FEIH
FA A 4 85 2R SR E AR B g I o

EIETR IR B X R 5L % B B 1R R i
R AREBRREELACE —REHE
REBERR 2B AR - BERTUE A
#AKAIBE AR B IH TR AR -

RIBFBEGEMEHZE KA BEAMK
VZINEARELEAINEREET KR
B BIRI0%ERIBHR - bR ERQ =
TENF-A—RBER WEARNZ
TELFE+_A=ZT—BERZEBH - ¥
REAEIINEREE Z ADEERE R
FIAARAD M sk - B AE REE 2 IEHN
MK - LAKEME  ERHERE%
R AN E A B TP B AL 2 %
EMBRARMBE _TENF-—A—HE
EEZ BN DK Z BB S EH

NZZE_ZTFE=A=+—8 " WEHAK
EEA P E R Z KB R E A
MBIz AELE AT 2 EREOH
MRECHE -ZE2RA - ZSHEBLQ
RIEAFERARTKAIGED RERBE
M-MR-_ZTZ-_ZTF=F=+—H B
AR ERELERTE A & 2 B B A
BRAARD K AN G EEBEA
H#)/5630,465,0008 7T (— T — N4 ¢
491,372,000 7T) °
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31 SHARE CAPITAL 31 IR
2020 2019
—B-BF —FE-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Authorised: ETE
1,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 1,000,000,0008% & A%
HK$0.10 each H{EC.108 T 2 LMl 100,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITERER
438,960,000 (2019: 438,960,000) 438,960,000% (— & — .6 :
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each 438,960,0000% ) &%
H{E0. 10 T2 A 43,896 43,896

A summary of movements in the Company’s share
capital is as follows:

Number of Share
shares in Share premium
issue capital account Total
BT
RAEE B 3R EE Bt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET
At 1 April 2018 RZZE—\$MA—A 438,460,000 43,846 154,672 198,518
Share options exercised 171 B AR 1E
(Note) (Hzt) 500,000 50 1,343 1,393
At 31 March 2019, R-ZE-AFE=A=+-H"
1 April 2019 and ZE-NENA-BR
31 March 2020 B B ad = 438,960,000 43,896 156,015 199,911
Note: K17 -

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the subscription
rights attaching to 500,000 share options were exercised
at the subscription prices of HK$2.262 per share (Note
32), resulting in the issue of 500,000 shares for a total
cash consideration, before expenses, of HK$1,131,000.
An amount of HK$262,000 was transferred from the
share-based payment reserve to share premium upon the
exercise of the share options. As at the exercise day, the
market price approximated to HK$2.50 per share.

RBE_ZT-NAF=ZA=+—HILFER"
500,000 AR M 5« RIBRRRBES
B2.2628 ST (T (M 532) - BT
500,000 M 17 - 483 & KB /R1,131,0007
7L CREF RS2 Al) © &#1262,0008 TR 1T 1%
BRERAARD RERNNRFEHEERS
Pin s (B - RITEBH > mEH/ER2.50
AT e
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32 SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

During the year ended 31 March 2013, the Company
terminated the share option scheme adopted by
the Company on 20 August 2002 (the “Old Share
Option Scheme”) and adopted a new share option
scheme (the “New Share Option Scheme”) pursuant
to a resolution passed in the annual general meeting
dated 20 August 2012 which became effective on
the same date. The New Share Option Scheme will
remain in force for ten years commencing from the
effective date, after which period no further options
will be granted but the provisions of the New Share
Option Scheme shall remain in full force to the
extent necessary to give effect to the exercise of any
option granted prior thereto or otherwise as may be
required in accordance with the provisions of the
New Share Option Scheme.

The Old Share Option Scheme

The Company operated the Old Share Option
Scheme for the purpose of providing incentives
and rewards to eligible participants who contribute
to the success of the Group’s operations. Eligible
participants of the Old Share Option Scheme
included the directors, including independent
non-executive directors, other employees of the
Group, suppliers of goods or services to the
Group, customers of the Group, any person or
entity that provides research, development or other
technological support to the Group, the Company’s
shareholders and any non-controlling interests in
the Company’s subsidiaries. The Old Share Option
Scheme became effective on 20 August 2002 and,
unless otherwise cancelled or amended, would
remain in force for 10 years from that date.

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED #E#&EBAR A7

32

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 i a MY =

BB RS
REE-ZT—=F=A=1+—HILFE
A ARAIEREARRTRZZTZT_F
NAZ+ RN ERETS ([EER
EED)  WREBEBHA-Z——FN
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

32 SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

The Old Share Option Scheme (continued)

The maximum number of unexercised share options
currently permitted to be granted under the Old
Share Option Scheme is an amount equivalent,
upon their exercise, to 10% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time. The maximum number
of shares issuable under share options to each
eligible participant in the Old Share Option Scheme
within any 12-month period, is limited to 1% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any time. Any
further grant of share options in excess of this limit
is subject to shareholders’ approval in a general
meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive
or substantial shareholder of the Company, or to
any of their associates, are subject to approval
in advance by the independent non-executive
directors. In addition, any share options granted to
a substantial shareholder or an independent non-
executive director of the Company, or to any of their
associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time or with an aggregate
value (based on the price of the Company’s shares
at the date of grant) in excess of HK$5,000,000,
within any 12-month period, are subject to
shareholders’ approval in advance in a general
meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be
accepted within 28 days from the date of the offer,
upon payment of a nominal consideration of HK$1 in
total by the grantee. The exercise period of the share
options granted is determinable by the directors, and
commences after a certain vesting period and ends
on a date which is not later than 10 years from the
date of offer of the share options.

B 75 ¥ 2= B RE

32 BRETE ®)

EBRESE(E)
BEEBBRETZREAETRE Z AT
FRERESSHE (R1TER) BERAR
RNEMEM B EITRM 210% ° IRE
A+ {8 A 8 - BIEEBRETEE
RERSEE ZEREN FRITROR
SH B RRAR TR TR
Z1% o EfE—FEEBEERE
BREARBRREARD FERELE -

MARFEE FETHABRFER
RAFEERMBERARLERE  AS
SR IEMITEFIOE oM - IE
A+—EABHE  m—ARREER
RABULIERTESTHESEMBEA
BREBEARARBEMAFEEEEITRG
0.1%3k &8 H 48 185,000,000 7T (IR &
HEBBARNGROERTE) 2EW
R BEARBREAZ LEREI
o

EEAARBROEREZS AL
AT NABAEXNEEREA RIS
TTEMBRERLEE RHBkiEZ
TEHHESFRT  RECHRBHLHE
W W NERBERZ B BER+
FZBEHRRILE -
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32 SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

The Old Share Option Scheme (continued)

The exercise price of the share options is
determinable by the directors, but may not be less
than the highest of (i) the Stock Exchange closing
price of the Company’s shares on the date of offer
of the share options; (ii) the average Stock Exchange
closing price of the Company’s shares for the five
trading days immediately preceding the date of offer;
and (iii) the nominal value of the Company’s shares.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

Upon termination of the Old Share Option Scheme,
no further options will be granted thereunder;
however, the rules of the Old Share Option Scheme
will remain in full force and effect to the extent
necessary to give effect to the exercise of options
granted prior to its termination or otherwise as may
be required in accordance with the rules of the Old
Share Option Scheme. As at 31 March 2020, there
were 1,250,000 options (2019: 3,250,000 options)
granted but not yet exercised under the Old Share
Option Scheme.

The New Share Option Scheme

The Company operates the New Share Option
Scheme for the purpose of providing incentives
and rewards to eligible participants who contribute
to the success of the Group’s operations. Eligible
participants of the New Share Option Scheme
include the directors, including independent non-
executive directors, other employees of the Group,
suppliers of goods or services to the Group,
customers of the Group, any person or entity
that provides research, development or other
technological support to the Group, the Company’s
shareholders and any non-controlling interests in
the Company’s subsidiaries. The New Share Option
Scheme became effective on 20 August 2012 and,
unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain
in force for 10 years from that date.

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED #E#&EBAR A7
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18 -

BAEY TNETHAEADZRBEINK
RRGEREZERN -

RIFEBIREREIE  BEE—PBER
EAEELRE AW EERETSZ
RMABIDATREBA O RIER  UWEEE
BREERIEATR D JEERIEE
BREFEZRANSTRERLZE
PIERETBETE R _TF=
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

32 SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

The New Share Option Scheme (continued)

The maximum number of unexercised share options
currently permitted to be granted under the New
Share Option Scheme is an amount equivalent,
upon their exercise, to 10% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time. The maximum number
of shares issuable under share options to each
eligible participant in the New Share Option Scheme
within any 12-month period, is limited to 1% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any time. Any
further grant of share options in excess of this limit
is subject to shareholders’ approval in a general
meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive
or substantial shareholder of the Company, or to
any of their associates, are subject to approval
in advance by the independent non-executive
directors. In addition, any share options granted to
a substantial shareholder or an independent non-
executive director of the Company, or to any of their
associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time or with an aggregate
value (based on the price of the Company’s shares
at the date of grant) in excess of HK$5,000,000,
within any 12-month period, are subject to
shareholders’ approval in advance in a general
meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be
accepted within 28 days from the date of the offer,
upon payment of a nominal consideration of HK$1 in
total by the grantee. The exercise period of the share
options granted is determinable by the directors, and
commences after a certain vesting period and ends
on a date which is not later than 10 years from the
date of offer of the share options.

The exercise price of the share options is
determinable by the directors, but may not be less
than the highest of (i) the Stock Exchange closing
price of the Company’s shares on the date of offer
of the share options; (i) the average Stock Exchange
closing price of the Company’s shares for the five
trading days immediately preceding the date of offer;
and (iii) the nominal value of the Company’s shares.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

As at 31 March 2020, there were 1,100,000 options
(2019: 3,100,000 options) granted but not yet
exercised under the New Share Option Scheme.
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32 SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

The following share options were outstanding under
the Old Share Option Scheme and New Share
Option Scheme (the “Schemes”) during the year:

2020

Directors

£z

LiuTat Luen

HiKa Po, Ax 1
R

Wong Chi Wai

Sun Kwai Yu, Vivian
Kz

Cheng Kok Kin, Paul
g8y

Cheung Wang Ip
[y

Other employees
ihES

In aggregate

Al

mEl

Date of share options
granted
RiBRERS

04-01-2010

10-03-2016

20-03-2011
07-01-2017
07-01-2017
09-07-2018

29-03-2011
09-07-2018

07-01-2017
09-07-2018

09-07-2018

20-03-2011
09-07-2018
09-07-2018
09-07-2018
09-07-2018

Vesting period
BRH

from to

i z

04-01-2010  03-01-2013

10-03-2016  16-02-2019

07072017
09-07-2018

12:09-2017
12-09-2018

hote i) /2%

09-07-2018  12-00-2018

Mo

09-07-2018  20-07-2018

09-07-2019
09-07-2020

08-07-2019
08-07-2020

32 BREE ()
BIEERERE S R ERE S ([5%
FErED) RERDRITE ZBRER
T -
—ECEF
Price of the
Company's
shares
immediately
At At before the
1 April 31 March grant date
2019 Granted  Exercised Lapsed 2020 Exercise 527
# during during during i priceper  RARZE
ZE-AE  theyear  theyear  theyear C—Z-FE Exercise period share  RAASH
BA-B  RERRE RERGE WERZN ZR=1-R ks SheRE ZHE
HKS HKS
AT AT
2,000,000 - - (2,000,000 - (4-01-2013 - 03-01-2020 2402 2,060
1,000,000 - - (1,000,000) - 17-02-2019 - 09-03-2026 1160 1160
300,000 - - - 300,000 29-03-2011 - 28-03-2021 2192 2110
400,000 - - - 400,000 07-07-2017 - 06-07-2027 2.262 2.0
100,000 - - - 100,000  13-09-2017 - 06-07-2027 2.262 2.200
100,000 - - - 100,000 13-09-2018 - 08-07-2028 2410 2410
300,000 - - - 300,000 29-03-2011 - 28-03-2021 2792 2710
100,000 - - - 100,000 13-09-2018 - 08-07-2028 2410 2410
100,000 - - - 100,000  07-07-2017 - 06-07-2027 2.262 2.200
100,000 - - - 100,000 09-07-2018 - 08-07-2028 2410 2410
100,000 - - - 100,000 21-07-2018 - 08-07-2028 2410 2410
650,000 - - - 650,000 29-03-2011 - 28-03-2021 2192 2110
100,000 - - - 100,000 09-07-2018 - 08-07-2028 2410 2410
400,000 - - (400,000 - (9-07-2018 - 08-07-2028 2410 2410
300,000 - - (300,000) - 09-07-2019 - 08-07-2028 2410 2410
300,000 - - (300,000 - (9-07-2020 - 08-07-2028 2410 2410
6,350,000 - - (4,000,000 2,350,000
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32 SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

The following share options were outstanding under
the Old Share Option Scheme and New Share

B 7% ¥R AR MY 5

32 BRESTE &)

RIBE BREET 8 KB 8 ([
FBDREFERDRITREZEREN

Option Scheme (the “Schemes”) during the year: T (8)

(continued)

2019 —E-NF

Price of the

Company's

shares

immediately

At At before the

Vesting period 1 Apri 31 March grant date

FES 018 Ganed  Exercised Lapsed 2019 Exercise A7

Date of share options from to i during during during i pieeper  RERZR
ganted S heyear  theyear theyer —E-7% Exercise period shae  REBEE
RibERERS ] I OBR-R REREL REAAE MERKR ZA=1-AR ks 8RGRE JhE
HK$ HK$

A AT

Directors

EH

Li TatLen 040112010 04012010 03012013 2,000,000 - - - 2000000 DHOVZIZ-030UA00 241 2060

Hui Ka Po, Alex ™= 10/03/2016 10/03/2016  16/02/2019 1,000,000 - - - 1000000 17/02/2019 - 09/03/2026 1160 1160

558

Wong Chi Wai 29/03/2011 300,000 - - - 300,000 29/03/2011 - 28/03/2021 219 2710

i 07ion2017 f 400,000 - - - 400,000 07/07/2017 - 06/07/2027 2.062 220

rior017 07072017+ 12092017 100,000 - - - 100000 13/09/2017 - 06/07/2027 2.262 220
09/07/2018 09/07/2018 1210972018 - 100,000 - - 100,000 13/09/2018 - 08/07/2028 2410 2470

Sun Kwal Yu, Vivian - 29/08/2011 oAz 300,000 - - - 300,000 29/03/2011 - 28/03/2021 219 2770

il 09/07/2018 09/07/2018 1210912018 - 100000 - - 100,000 13/09/2018 - 08/07/2028 2410 2410

Cheng Kok Kin, Paul ~ 07/07/2017 100,000 - - - 100,000 07/07/2017 - 06/07/2027 2062 220

ks 09/07/2018 - 100,000 - - 100,000 09/07/2018 - 08/07/2028 2410 2410

Cheung Wang Ip 09/07/2018 09/07/2018  20/07/2018 - 100000 - - 100,000 21/07/2018 - 08/07/2028 2410 2470

R

Other employees

s

In aggregate 29/03/2011 650,000 - - - 650,000 29/03/2011 - 28/03/2021 219 2770

A 0rior2017 L : 400,000 - [40o000) M - - 070712017 - 06/07/2027 2.062 2200
07ion2017 07072017 30112017 100,000 - (1oo000) M - 01/12/2017 - 06/07/2027 2.062 220
09/07/2018 f ‘ - 100000 - - 100‘000 09/07/2018 - 08/07/2028 2470 2410
09/07/2018 ot - 400,000 - - 400,000 09/07/2018 - 08/07/2028 2410 2470
09/07/2018 09/0772019  08/07/2019 - 300000 = = 300,000 09/07/2019 - 08/07/2028 2410 2470
09/07/2018 09/07/2020  08/07/2020 - 300000 - - 300,000  09/07/2020 - 08/07/2028 2410 2470

5,350,000 1500000 (500,000 - 6,350,000

Notes: i3

(i) Mr. Hui Ka Po, Alex had resigned as an executive 0] FRREECDEEHTEST A 2F
director with effective from 8 July 2019. —NFELANBRBER -

(i)  Vested upon granted. iy RELEES -

(i) During the year ended 31 March 2019, 1 eligible iy HE-_Z—NAEF=ZA=+—BLHF
employee has exercised 500,000 share options, the R 1%{:}&1 & 8 B2 17{£500,00017
weighted average closing price of shares immediately AR - NBET 1§ HEAgI & 2 n
before the date of his exercise was HK$2.50. BT (E A2.50/ 7T °
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32 SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2020, share options
amounted to HK$2,159,000 are lapsed (2019: Nil)
and no share option expenses were recognised
during the year (2019: HK$980,000).

The following share options were outstanding under

the Schemes during the year:

At the beginning of year ~ RE )

Granted during the year  “ER#H
Exercised during the year 4 N{T{E
Lapsed during the year FRKK

At the end of year RER

B AR AT A ()
HE-_Z_TF=A=+—HLFE "
2,159,000 Tz B EE LK (= F
—NEF ) R F A IR R AE B
S (ZZ— 4 : 980,000/ 7T) °

As at 31 March 2020, the Company had 2,350,000
(2019: 6,350,000) share options outstanding under
the Schemes. Should they be fully exercised,
the Company will receive HK$6,082,000 (2019:
HK$13,916,000) (before issue expenses). The
exercise in full of these share options would, under
the present capital structure of the Company,
result in the issue of 2,350,000 (2019: 6,350,000)
additional ordinary shares of the Company and
additional share capital of HK$235,000 (2019:
HK$635,000) and share premium of approximately
HK$5,847,000 (2019: HK$13,281,000) (before issue
expenses).

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED w5 E AR A A

FAN - ZEFFTEETERITEABRE
mE
2020 2019
—Z-%F —TNF
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise Number of exercise Number of
price options price options
InEF g nkEFEH
TEE BREZE TEE HEREHE
HKS$ per HK$ per
share share
ZRET FRE T
2.191 6,350,000 2.120 5,350,000
- - 2.470 1,500,000
- = 2.262 (500,000)
1.800 (4,000,000) - -
2.588 2,350,000 2.191 6,350,000
RZZEZZTEF=ZH=+—H A2
ﬁﬁi%ﬁ+§hﬁ7@%ﬁ235opoMﬁ(_

T— F4 1 6,350,00010) i R1TIE 2 B
BEHE - WZSERBERETE AR
A) 15 U 26,082,000/ 7L (T — L4 ¢
13,916,000/ 7) CGRINBR TR ) ©
BIBARG 2R ERLERE  BEITE
zfﬁ%&%#ﬂ?ﬁﬁﬁh‘mzﬁmom
i (ZZ— hF : 6,350,0000%) KA

I 3F A% Ko BB AN FT 1Y H§¢235,0005%7_c
—ZT—AF : 6350008 7T) A R KHD
i (8 495,847,000 L (Z & — hLF ¢
13,281,000/ 70) CRINBREITHAL) °
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% ¥R AR MY 5

RESERVES 33 f#fE
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the REBRANFEE MBEFE 2 HEHERE
movements therein for the current and prior years REEHFBORTBRR ZEEER
are presented in the consolidated statement of HERANZTY -
changes in equity of the financial statements.
The contributed surplus of the Group represents the REEBZ#MABBERER—NAANE
difference between the nominal value of the shares MAtHETZEBEAMKEREAR
of the aggregate share capital of the subsidiaries AR Z IR EE RN A RIS ZIER
acquired pursuant to the Group reorganisation on 7 SMBETROEBEIZE -
April 1998 and the nominal value of the Company’s
shares issued in exchange therefor.
Other reserve represents the excess of the HiREERREB L EG IR ER
consideration over the share of net assets acquired FTEEEFE 2D
from non-controlling interests.
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 34 BERBALRFRER
AND BALANCES
(a) Key management compensation (@) ETEEBEAESHMH
Key management includes executive directors FEERBABBEASENTE
of the Group. The compensation of key E - AEBFTEEIREAS ZHMNN
management personnel of the Group is shown T
below:
2020 2019
—E-EHF —E-hnF
HK$°000 HK$’000
F#ET FET
Salaries, allowances and e EMREWRET
benefits in kind 16,225 14,049
Equity-settled share option expense LAz 458 7 B AR #E B 2 = 117
Pension scheme contributions RIREETEIMH R 78 90
Total compensation paid to key ENEZEEREAER
management personnel e 16,303 14,256

Note:

Further details of the directors’ and the chief
executive’s emoluments are included in Note 10 to
the financial statements.

EENRSTHRABHFMZE—THF
BE R U BRKRMEE0 -

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED &#&BEAR A A
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 i a MY =

34 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
AND BALANCES (continued)

(b)

Significant transactions with related
parties

On 21 January 2020, the Group entered into
a memorandum agreement with Century
Grand International Limited, a company wholly
owned by Mr. Cheng Chor Kit, chairman of
the Group, to dispose of a property in Hong
Kong for a cash consideration amounted to
HK$19,750,000.

On the same day, the Group also entered into
a sale and purchase agreement with Mr. Cheng
to dispose of the entire interest in Unicon
Investments Limited, an indirect wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, which is principally
engaged in property investment, for a cash
consideration amounted to HK$39,500,000.

The transactions were completed on 31
March 2020, resulted in a gain on disposal
of approximately HK$16,842,000 and
HK$31,416,000, respectively.

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED w5 E AR A A

34 EHEBATIXRIREGRE)

(b)

HEERBALZEERS

R-EBE-TF—-F—-+—H K&
BEHEAEEFEOBGELESER
B RBEXBEBEER ARG L
Boiktsm - WHE—BURES
Y% - 3R e KB /19,750,000

BT e

REHE - AEBITREESLEFTLE
B WHEARRZHESZE
WMEBARWERIRERBRAR (X2
WEMERE) 22HBRE  Re
& £39,500,000/% T °

ZELGER_ZE_ZEFE=FH
=+—H%EK - DREARHE KRS
#916,842,000/% 7t 531,416,000
BIT °
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

34 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
AND BALANCES (continued)

(b)

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 4 [Z i

Significant transactions with related
parties (continued)
The following table summarises the consideration

B 7% ¥R AR MY 5

34 EHEBATIXRIREGRE)

(b) BEEEAEBMALTZIERS (&)

TRBAAE KA & & A 35

and the amounts of the identifiable assets and EENMNBENSRE
liabilities disposed of:
Disposal of  Disposal of
a property  a subsidiary Total
HE—MHE
HE-EWE HEAR @gt
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FET
Cash consideration ReRE 19,750 39,500 59,250
Less: Assets and liabilities disposed of:  Ji: HEZ BERAE
- Property, plant and equipment - WE BRERRE
(Note 15) (hi##15) 2,460 6,014 8,474
- Right-of-use assets (Note 17) - FREEEWiE17) 448 2,031 2,479
- Cash and cash equivalents - RekReERAY - 52 52
- Other net liabilities - HaEFE - (13) (13)
Net asset value EEFE 2,908 8,084 10,992
Gain on disposal (Note 6) HEWE (fize) 16,842 31,416 48,258

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the
disposal of a subsidiary is as follows:

Cash consideration received
Less: Cash and cash equivalents included in the
disposal of a subsidiary

Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents included in
the cash flows from investing activities

FRALE—HNBARNRER

EDMMAT
2020
—E_-EF
HK$°000
FET
FTER 2 3R & KRB 39,500
W ETALE—RKB AR
RERREERY (52)
HAREERHZREREZ
ReELKREFRAMRAFEE 39,448

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED &#&BEAR A A
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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34 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 34 EEBMALTIXRZRESR2)
AND BALANCES (continued)

(c)

Year-end balance

(c) HFHRER

Amount due to non-controlling &S — FEI B B R B) FE I AR

interests of a subsidiary

Note:

The balance represented amount due from non-

2020 2019

—E-EHF —E—hEF

HK$°000 HK$’000

FAETT FET

M 2 FRIB - 10,560

EEHRRREW—RHME QR Z K

controlling shareholders of a subsidiary with no RE 2B ERTFE -

interest charged.

35 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 35 GERERERKNE

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(a)

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant (a) HEVE BRERZREBMABRE

and equipment

In the consolidated cash flow statement,

RiFRRERERA - HEWE -

proceeds from disposal of property, plant and B N REPTIE R

equipment comprise:

Net book amount:

Property, plant and equipment
(Note 15)

(Loss)/gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment (Note 6)

Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED

2020 2019
—ECEHF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
RTEDFE
ME - BB RERB
(Htat15) 3,776 9,201
HEWE  BEREE
2 (E18) W
(M it6) (622) 1,438
HEVE - BEK
RAEFTIS IR 3,154 10,639

BrasEFRAA ANNUAL REPORT 2020 “F[E &



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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35 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 35 MERETMERME @)
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(continued)
(b) Net debt reconciliation (b) FEKHEK
This section sets out an analysis of net debt NENE S & B AT R FE
and the movement in net debt for each of the BHDITAES) :
periods presented:
2020 2019
—B_RF —E-NF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FHEIT
Cash and cash equivalents RekBREERY
(Note 26) (Mt #126) 244,681 222,153
Liquid investment (Note 25) MENEIRE (M i225) 8,533 14,140
Bank borrowings (Note 29) RITIEE (M :t29) (676,809) (810,106)
Other financing Hihgh & (32,826) -
Lease liabilities (Note 17) HEBGEWE17) (4,000) -
Net debts FE (460,421) (573,813)
Cash and liquid investments RekmnEMtigs 253,214 236,293
Gross debt - floating interest rate ESMEzE — % B =R (676,809) (810,106)
Gross debt - fixed interest rate B AR — EE A X (32,826) -
Lease liabilities HEBE (4,000) -
Net debts BT (460,421) (573,813)
Note: Biat -
Liquid investments comprise current investments that MBEREBERERBMISEEZR
are traded in an active market, being the Group’s B§iRE - AIAEKE H*ﬁ_iﬁiﬁ?ﬁ /\Tﬁ/
financial assets held at fair value through profit or FEIEZCHEE -
loss.
Cash and cash Liquid Bank Other Lease
equivalents investment borrowings financing liabilities Total
RBeR
REERY  RBERE #iTEE HbRE HERE it
HK$'000 HK$:000 HK$:000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT TET AT AT FET AT
Net debt as at 31 March 2019 R=E-NE=F=1—R73E% 222,153 14,140 (810,106) - - (573,813
Impact on impact of HKFRS 16 Wﬂ%%ﬁﬁ%ﬁiﬁ‘ 6572 = = = = (985) (995)
Net cash movement bk £ 26,092 (3,936) 127,913 (33,696) 3,208 119,641
Exchange realignment EyHE (2,969) - 5,384 870 87 3372
Transfer to assets held for sale  EETH{EHELE (595) - - - - (595)
Other non-cash movements ~ EftEE 4% - (1,671) - - (6,400) (8,071)
Net debt as at 31 March 2020 W=B-F£=f=+-A236EH 244,681 8,533 (676,809) (32,826) 4,000) 460,421)

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 4 [Z i KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED &% 5EEAE R A
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36 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY

36 RERET2EMT A

CATEGORY
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of RBER SHEEemITAZEREN
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting T
period are as follows:
2020 2019
e —E-NF
Financial Financial Financial Financial
assets at fair assets at assets at fair assets at
value through amortised  value through amortised
profit or loss cost profit or loss cost
BAYE RE BATE REH
582 A 2 124 ARG EH)
tHEE tREE SREE SREE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Financial assets SHEE
Accounts and bills receivable BUETREEE - 221,017 - 312,149
Deposits and other receivables Re REMERE - 42,222 - 58,645
Cash deposits ReFR - 271,247 - 240,924
Financial assets at fair value ERBREATE
through profit or loss Sz eRBE 20,869 - 14,140 -
20,869 534,486 14,140 611,718
Financial liabilities tREE
Financial liabilities at amortised REHEKAFTEN
cost: FRAE:
Accounts and bills payable ENERLEE 360,027 740,050
Financial liabilities included in other & A E fih & ZUIE 2
payables, accrued liabilities EEEZ
TRER 129,786 89,321
Bank borrowings RIEE 676,809 810,106
Lease liabilities HEaE 4,000 -
1,170,622 1,639,477
Note: B EE
The fair values of the financial assets at amortised cost REBEKATENSREEN A TFEEER
approximate their carrying amounts. EEAE °

238
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

37 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL
POSITION AND RESERVE

MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

Statement of financial position of the Company

ASSETS

Non-current assets
Interests in subsidiaries

Financial assets at fair value through

profit and loss

Current assets
Prepayments

Cash and cash equivalents
Tax recoverable

Total current assets
Total assets

EQUITY

Equity attributable to equity
holders of the Company

Share capital

Reserves (Note)

Total equity

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities

Accrued liabilities and other payables

Bank borrowings
Tax payable

Total current liabilities

Non-current liability
Bank borrowings

Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 4 [Z i

B 75 ¥ 2= B RE

37 AAAZHBRRER MER
)

AT 2B EAARRE
2020 2019
—EEH —E-NF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
BE
FRBEE
NN A ¥ 954,147 1,105,328
BRBREAFEYEY
EMEE 12,336 -
966,483 1,105,328
HREEE
TE R 2 _
ReMRESERY 92,333 5,416
A Uy B 7 18 678 -
MEBEERE 93,013 5,416
wWEE 1,059,496 1,110,744
R
ARAEZSEEAELES
fi&% < 43,896 43,896
s () 618,909 630,475
XA 662,805 674,371
=R
REBEE
JERT B & R H b e 508 5,491 6,070
RITIEE 192,634 429,750
FET IR - 553
mEBEERE 198,125 436,373
ERBAEB
RITIEE 198,566 =
=i 396,691 436,373
HERREE 1,059,496 1,110,744

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED & 5= E A R A A
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37 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL
POSITION AND RESERVE
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
(continued)

Note:

A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows:

37 AAAZHBRRER AR

E)N€))

Wi -

RRABZHEERENT

Share Share-based Capital

premium payment redemption Contributed Retained
account reserve reserve surplus profits Total
Y3
RERN REEE
RO BER DES1 wE  BARR  REEAN @t
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FE7 FET FET
At 31 March 2018 RZE-N\E=A=+—H
and 1 April 2018 k=Z-\FMA-A 154,672 3,209 14 104,750 406,454 669,099
Profit for the year FER - - - - 3,211 3,211
Issue of shares (Note 31) BB (Hz#31) 1,343 (262) - - - 1,081
Final 2018 dividend paid ERZZ-\ERBEE
(Note 12) (Fiit12) - - - - (30,728) (30,728)
Interim 2019 dividend paid BERZE-NFHHRE
(Note 12) (i12) - - - - (13,168) (13,168)
Equity-settled share option NESEEBRERS
expense (Note 32) (M) - 980 - - - 980
At 31 March 2019 RZZE-NE=R=1+-8
and 1 April 2019 RZZ-NEFNA—-A 156,015 3,927 14 104,750 365,769 630,475
Loss for the year FEBE - - - - (11,566) (11,566)
Lapse of share option BRI & - (2,159) - - 2,159 -
At 31 March 2020 RZEZZE=-A=+—H 156,015 1,768 14 104,750 356,362 618,909

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED w5 E AR A A
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

37 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 37
POSITION AND RESERVE
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

(continued)

The contributed surplus of the Company represents
the excess of the then combined net assets of
the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the same
reorganisation, over the nominal value of the
Company’s shares issued in exchange therefor.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, the
Company’s contributed surplus is available for
cash distribution and/or distribution in specie under
certain circumstances prescribed by section 54
thereof.

38 OPERATING LEASE 38
ARRANGEMENTS

(@) As lessor
The Group leases its investment properties
(Note 16) under operating lease arrangements,
with leases negotiated for terms of one year.

At 31 March 2020, the Group had total
future minimum lease receivables under non-
cancellable operating leases with its tenants
falling due as follows:

Within one year —F R
In the second to fifth years, inclusive FEERF
(BIEERME)

B 7% ¥R AR MY 5

RABZHBRRRREESE
e

RRBZBABBRIERER —FAEMK
BHBARERZAHEERERD
ARBRZAXRHMETROEEZIZE
%ﬁ o

REABRZE-NN\—FRFDE - HFE54
GETARRRI A AR THERATABAR
BIERESDIRR,/ HEYDIK -

REBENRZH

(@) ERHBAA
AEBRELLEHOLTHEHE
BEWME (ME16) - HAKLER
MEEZHBA—%F -

R ZF=-A=+—8 £K%
EARE N T 7 EARE B 8 2 s A
AZ DA HSEEEHAMER 2
RREFEHESBEHOT

2020 2019
—E_EH —E-NF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FE T FHET
118 77

= 7

118 84
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38 OPERATING LEASE

ARRANGEMENTS (continued)

(b) As lessee

The Group leases certain of its office properties
and warehouses under operating lease
arrangements. Leases for properties are
negotiated for terms ranging from one to two

years.

At 31 March 2020,

the Group had total

future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases falling due as

follows:

Within one year

In the second to fifth years, inclusive

—FR
F_EERF
(BREEEMF)

From 1 April 2019, the Group has recognised
right-of-use assets for these leases, except for
short-term lease commitments as disclosed

above.

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED % 5%EEAR AT

s ==}

(b)

REBOZTH 2

ERHAEE A

AEBRBESEHOTHHERES
THAEWERRE - MEMRLHK
ERmEE BN T —EMF -

R-ZZE-_TF=A=+—H £*&
BAR RN T 5 HAfE 2 HY 2 S AT 3
R EHOMEN 2 KK &IEMR
THEBIT

2020 2019
—g=%F —T-AF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FHET
695 755

- 449

695 1,204

BT AFOA—BE BREX
PR SR < R EAM ERESN - REE
ERZSHERRBEHAEEE -
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39 COMMITMENTS

Capital expenditure contracted for at the end of the

40

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 4 [Z i

year but not yet incurred is as follows:
Property, plant and equipment M - WEREE
Properties under development and BREPMENREDE

investment properties

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

(a)

(b)

Leased a property from a related party
Upon the completion of disposal of a subsidiary
mentioned in Note 34(b), the Group has
subsequently entered into a lease agreement
with Unicon Investments Limited to lease back
the property for a term of three years for an
annual lease rental of HK$1,498,000.

Disposal of glass technology and
application operation

As disclosed in Note 2.1 and Note 27, on
20 April 2020, the Group entered into a
sale and purchase agreement with a third
party, to dispose of its entire equity interest
in the Disposal Group, at a consideration of
RMB34,500,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$38,390,000), resulted in a gain of approximately
HK$2,101,000.

The transaction was subsequently completed.

B 7% ¥R AR MY 5

39 AiE

RERDATNERREELEZEA N

T

(a)

(b)

2020 2019
—g-8% —T-NF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FHT FIET
108,391 175,122
420,970 475,602

40 MEWREE

B—ZEREALHRA—EYE
M 5E34(0)Fr it 2 & — I /B
RNAEITTKIE - ANEEE G SRR
EBERARFVHAERZE  AEF
1H£1,498,000/8 cH B Y2 - M
HA=4F -

HERBREMRERER

BN FE2 A R FE27F B BR -
ZEETFENA-+H KEHHE
—ZE=ZAHANEEWE U
EHERHEEB 225 - RE
B ARM34,500,0007T (FHER L
38,390,000/ 7T) -+ i B A Wz 49
2,101,000/ 7T °
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MEBE

Year ended 31 March
BZE=A=1-HLEE
RESULTS EY| 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
“Z-Z2F —E-NF T\ T+t ZT—RF
HK$°000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FHET FET FET

REVENUE S 3,114,221 4221878 3,034,274 2,472,193 2,317,504
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE BT BRATRR
INCOME TAX (B8) 196,458 129,171 182,325 245,289 (31,574)
Income tax expense FBREY (22,821) (18,760) (32,619) (49,048) (40,103)
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR  F&i&7l/ (518) 165,365 110,411 149,706 196,241 (71,677)
ATTRIBUTABLE TO: AT EEEL :
Equity holders of the Company ARAERFEEA 170,049 112,384 149,821 196,375 (69,843)
Non-controlling interests s (4,684) (1,979) (115) (134) (1,834)
165,365 110,411 149,706 196,241 (71,677)

As at 31 March
R=A=+-H
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BERER 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
—E-8f -—T-NF -—E-N\E —E—+HE <-—B—AF
HK$°000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET FETL FET FET

NON-CURRENT ASSETS RBEE 1,325,819 1,541,484 1,240,511 927,839 863,650
CURRENT ASSETS MBEE 1,548,542 1,847,987 1623224 1,225,084 977,103
TOTAL ASSETS BEE 2,874,361 3,389,471 2,863,735 2,153,823 1,840,753
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEaE (1,265,474)  (2,040,170)  (1,264,231)  (1,011,419) (796,136)
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ETBAE (382,805) (139,375) (441,460) (236,093) (187,241)
TOTAL LIABILITIES BafE (1,648,279)  (2,179,545)  (1,705,691)  (1,247,512) (983,377)
NET ASSETS BEFE 1,226,082 1,209,926 1,158,044 906,311 857,376
Note: Btz -

On 21 April 2020, the Group announced the disposal of its RIZE-ZEENA-_+—H AEESHEHEER
entire interest in all the PRC subsidiaries engaging in glass WMERBERMREREFEOAE T RN E QRS
technology and application business. The business is classified SEERE  ZEBCOEAERIELEEER Bt
as discontinued operation and comparative figures for the year HRFEBHNGAWEZRTEHE-_ZE—NEFE=H8
ended 31 March 2019 in the consolidated income statement in =S+ —HIEFENEREFOAES - BHNFE
page 86 were restated accordingly. Effect of the restatement is WERNARABEMEFRTIR -

not presented in this financial summary.
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